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CHAIRMANS STATEMENT

Your Board of Directors announces that consolidated loss of

HK$68.9 million was recorded for the year ended December

31 2008 Turnover of the Group increased by 13.4% to

HK$1308.2 million

Our profit margin remained at the same reasonable level as

last year

The Groups motor car business continued to record very

successful year of sales and profit growth An order portfolio

of over two years was maintained for new Ferraris and an

encouraging order portfolio was also achieved for Maserati

We were proud to be awarded second Ferrari and Maserati

dealership in the city of Nanjing in the PRC The new 3S Centre

in Nanjing was successfully inaugurated in November of last

year with favourable response from the market

Our operations in Singapore and Malaysia achieved good sales

and profit growth for the year and we have added new brands

to these Southeast Asian markets We expect these operations

to continue to be stable this year

As prudent measure amidst the uncertain global economic

situation we opted to preserve liquidity and decided to

terminate the planned acquisition of SKC Group Limited the

Kingkow brand of childrens wear and its distribution

Despite one-time loss resulting from these actions we

have saved potential cash outflow of over HK$96 million

The HK$30 million convertible loan note was totally paid off

by the Group in 2008 which effectively reduces our financial

cost in 2009

2008 was year that witnessed global financial tsunami

catching everyone by surprise The Group considers itself

fortunate as we disposed of our major real estate holding in

timely manner by the end of 2007 at good valuation and

generated cash inflow of HK$352 million As result the

Group is in very sound financial position This is reflected

by very healthy cash position of HK$164 million at the end

of 2008 with comfortable current ratio of .4 and total

asset over total liabilities ratio of 1.6 Having said that as the

global financial situation remains depressed it is our strategy

to act conservatively in our financial commitments this year

we strive mainly to achieve positive cash flow and preserve

an even stronger liquidity than we already have
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CHAIRMANS STATEMENT

Progress is also being made to dispose of discontinue or

restructure all the loss-making businesses of the Group as

soon as is feasible This should eliminate any potential loss

from such businesses within this financial year Due to the

generally severe market downturn which led to an adverse

financial performance recorded in some business segments

particularly for the fashion and motor yacht segment their

results were unsatisfactory Whilst our motor yacht businesses

in Hong Kong were satisfactory the results of this operation

in the PRC were disappointing Urgent efforts are being made

by us to either turn around or dispose of these unprofitable

businesses can assure you that
progress is already underway

at this very moment and there will certainly be substantial

improvements in these areas

In the meantime cost cutting is being exercised throughout all

departments of the Group This should result in significant

decrease in our total operating costs for the year Working

capital will be deployed mainly to focus on support of the

profitable businesses such as motor car segment We are

actively looking for opportunities that can generate additional

profit for the Group in 2009

Whilst our business direction of lifestyle brand building and

distribution networking remains unchanged the Group must

act prudently in implementing this strategy to achieve long-

term growth in stable manner as the general economic

environment remains depressed

would like to emphasize again that in our business people

are the key working with passion expertise and in harmony

On behalf of your board would like to express our utmost

gratitude and sincere appreciation to our shareholders bankers

and very loyal staff for their most valuable trust support and

contribution

$IEfl
th

IflflflSM
nm

TR- flflHflM
flflAUM

ktkT AIthffiu$nn

Dr Richard Man Fai LEE

Executive Chairman

Hong Kong March 27 2009
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2008 200 2006 2005 2004

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

Results

Turnover 1308229 1153201 786580 697454 625057

Loss/Profit from operations /I 23699 4135 27730 76322 2109

Finance costs 8298 4355 11381 6685 7902

Other non-operating income 76021 28624

Other non-operating expenses 18958 15468 25658 3065

Share of results of associates 18 1169 7777 20739 19743

Loss/Profit before tax 3t 50973 49164 11538 48898 28601

Income tax expense/credit /1 8079 6256 11 4t 11502 29502

Loss/Profit for the year /lj 59052 42908 10397 37396 901

Attributable to

Equity holders of the Company 68869 35677 7114 35461 1722

Minority interests 9817 7231 3283 1935 821

59052 42908 1039 37396 901

Assets and liabilities

Total assets 864775 800723 721686 615606 611661

Total liabilities 538874 397869 402707 31 1085 346733

Net assets 325901 402854 318979 304521 264928

Equity attributable to
equity

holders

of the Company 305093 380378 303976 300977 263319

Minority
interests 20808 22476 15003 3544 1609

Total equity if 325901 402854 318979 304521 264928
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CC

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Turnover

For the year ended December 31 2008 Group turnover hit

record high of HK$1308.2 million growth of 13.4% compared

to HK$1 53.2 million last year While our car operations

continued to maintain healthy growth in turnover which for

the first time achieved turnover of over HK$1 billion the

result of our fashion segment was unsatisfactory and drastic

measures had been taken to fine-tune this business model so

as to improve its financial performance

Gross Profit

Our gross profit margin increased by 0.4% from 18.6% last year

to 19.0% this year resulting in our gross profit contribution

increased by HK$33.3 million to HK$248.3 million 2007

HK$21 5.0 million

Distribution Costs and Administrative

Expenses

Distribution costs were up by 43.6% to HK$1 03.5 million 2007

HK$72.1 million due mainly to the corresponding increase

in turnover rental cost as well as direct staff cost including

sales commission

08 WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS continued

Distribution Costs and Administrative

Expenses continued

The increase in administrative expenses of HK$37.3 million

from HK$145.2 million of last year to HK$182.5 million this

year is mainly attributed to the corresponding increase in

turnover office rental of Wo Kee Hong Building subsequent

to its disposal in November 2007 which replaced the relevant

building depreciation cost in year 2007 as well as increased

staff cost as result of expanded business and new business

segment

Loss from Operations

We report that loss from operations for the year under review

was HK$23.7 million 2007 Profit of HK$4.1 million As the

global financial situation deteriorated our business in general

encountered severe downturn particularly during the last

quarter of 2008 The sector of operations being adversely

affected most were fashion motor yachts as well as electrical

appliances businesses

JI
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Conditions

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS continued

Loss from Operations continued

We have made due impairment of HK$9.0 million 2007

HK$6.0 million on our 10% investment in Digital Outdoor

Television Hong Kong Limited DOTV which was also

severely hit by the financial tsunami Though this impairment

hit the income statement it was non-cash adjustment and

thus has no negative impact on the Groups actual cash flow

The management of DOTV is actively seeking ways to improve

the financial performance of this business

Finance costs dropped significantly by HK$6.1 million from

HK$14.4 million to HK$8.3 million due to the overall improvement

in our cash position during 2008 as compared to previous

year

loss was booked at HK$6.0 million arising from termination

of Kingkows project being all costs associated with the

project inclusive of the compensation cost of HK$2.5 million

as agreed in the Termination Agreement as mentioned in our

announcement made on November 12 2008

Income tax of HK$8.1 million 2007 HK$6.3 million represented

mainly the profits tax payable of car group for the year under

review

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED fI It
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Conditions

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS continued

Loss Attributable to Shareholders

The board delivers loss attributable to shareholders of HK$68.9

million 2007 Profit of HK$35.7 million We understand that

during the current financial tsunami no business entity is

able to be immune from this hard time but we believe that

cautious cash management especially one who can maintain

healthy cash flow on hand will endure and survive We will

strictly adhere to this strategy and have strong confidence

that we will continue to build good future for the Groups

business

Financial Conditions

The Group was financed by combination of its equity capital

base cash flow generated from operations and bank borrowings

As usual bank and other liabilities were being met upon their

maturities in the normal course of business

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 2008 were HK$164.0

million 2007 HK$363.9 million The cash used in operating

activities was approximately HK$188.5 million compared with

the cash inflow of HK$53.9 million for year 2007 The cash used

in operations activities was mainly for purchase of inventories

especially in the motor car and motor yacht business
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Resufts of Operations and Financiai Conditions

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS continued

Financial Conditions continued

The Group had total borrowings at December 31 2008 amounting

to HK$1 90.6 million 2007 HK$84.3 million The Groups

long term gearing ratio stood at 12.4% 2007 3.6% based

on non-current liabilities excluding deferred tax of HK$37.7

million 2007 HK$1 3.7 million and shareholders equity of

HK$305.1 million 2007 HK$380.4 million The current ratio

was 1.4 2007 1.9 based on current assets of HK$711.4

million 2007 HK$711.7 million and current liabilities of

HK$501.2 million 2007 HK$384.2 million

It is the Groups management practice to hedge foreign currency

transactions with the objective to stabilize the cost via the

pegging of the exchange rates with bankers Accordingly the

Group was not exposed to material fluctuations in exchange

rates and related hedges during the year under review At

December 31 2008 the total outstanding foreign exchange

contracts purchased with banks amounted to HK$4.8 million

2007 HK$1 1.1 million
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Conditions

AJ $Y1

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS continued

Financial Conditions continued

The Group had trading facilities at December 31 2008 amounting

to HK$298.6 million 2007 HK$274.2 million of which HK$214.5

million 2007 HK$1 50.2 million was utilized Certain of the

Groups properties motor yacht inventories cash deposits and

all assets of subsidiary were pledged at year ended 2008 in

an aggregate amount of HK$21 6.8 million 2007 HK$1 56.5

million to secure facilities granted by our bankers

At December 31 2008 the Group had contingent liabilities of

approximately HK$4.0 million 2007 HK$3.5 million in respect

of bank guarantee issued to the purchaser of the disposed

associate in Jiangmen by subsidiary

BUSINESS REVIEW

Cars and Car Accessories

The business consists mainly of the import distribution and

after-sales service of Italian Ferrari Maserati Alfa

Romeo and Fiat cars and spare parts in Hong Kong and

Macau In the PRC we operate Ferrari and Maserati car

dealerships in Dalian and Nanjing
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Management Dkcussion and Analysis of Resufts of Operations and Financial Condftions

BUSINESS REVIEW continued

Cars and Car Accessories continued

Compared to the last
year turnover increased by 3.6% to

HK$1004 million as result of continued growth of our car

trading business

Sales of Ferraris 8-cylinder sports car models remained

strong with the addition of 430 Scuderia The launch of the new

grand touring model the California GT was great success

We have collected very strong order portfolio and are now

quoting delivery time of close to three years The limited

series Scuderia Spider 6M was introduced in November and

we have pre-sold all of our allocation in 2009 The Ferrari

12-cylinder models the 599 GTB Fiorano and the new 612

Scaglietti One-to-One also did well in the
year

Awareness of the Maserati brand achieved boost due to

the arrival of two new models the GranTurismo Sin September

and the restyled Quattroporte in November Demand for

Maseratis two-door GranTurismo remained high with

strong order portfolio

The dealership in Dalian achieved its budgeted results with

good sales of both Ferrari and Maserati cars In November

we opened the second dealership in Nanjing to serve the

prosperous eastern Jiangsu province good response from

the market was generated

The PDI Pre-Delivery Inspection work being carried out by

the Group on behalf of Ferrari Maserati Cars International

Trading Co Limited in Shanghai generated good additional

income with the opening of new dedicated PDI Centre in

April in Shanghai

The Alfa Romeo business was slow due to highly competitive

market environment This segment suffered particularly in

the last quarter of 2008 The new Fiat 500 model started

well However this segment was also depressed due to the

economic downturn

14 WOKEEHONGHOLDINGSLIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Resufts of Operations and Financial Conditions

BUSINESS REVIEW continued

Cars and Car Accessories continued

As all of the Groups facilities are fully operational work has

started to build another new 35 Centre in Shatin to replace

the existing Tokwawan Centre This will enable us to cope

with our expanding car business

Electrical Appliances

The business consists of marketing and distribution of

wide range of consumer and commercial air-conditioning

and home appliance products from major brands namely

MHI Mitsubishi Heavy Industries of Japan Frigidaire

and GREE and audio-visual products of our own Rogers

and Bodysonic brands Steinway Lyngdorf Marantz and

Denon audio-visual products and Alpine car electronics

The product ranges are well-placed in the market to suit the

needs of different market segments

Turnover for 2008 was HK$1 96.1 million which decreased by

5.9% when compared with last year

The exceptionally cool weather in May and the successive

rainy days in June and July caused downturn to the air-

conditioning business Jobbers and retailers were tied down

with high inventory which resulted in price dumping in the

market The Group responded by lowering its inventory level

and putting more effort into developing the small and medium

business sectors with our commercial air-conditioners

Our own British Rogers brand which celebrated its 60th

anniversary performed well in the period with the relaunch

of the legendary LS 3/5a monitor speaker system total of

12 Rogers shop-in-shop counters were opened in major chain

stores in eastern PRC

The Group was also awarded the exclusive distributorship of

the top-end luxurious audio brand Steinway Lyngdorf for

Hong Kong Macau and the PRC
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operators and Financal Conditions
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BUSINESS REVIEW continued

Electrical Appliances continued

Our subsidiaries in Singapore achieved the best results in the

past ten years with good business growth of Alpine car

audio in OEM and after market distribution The MHI air-

conditioning business in Singapore achieved good sales growth

and profitability in the first half due to the introduction of

the new multi-split air-conditioner certification of the highest

ratings by the National Environmental Agency coupled with

successful promotional activities and strong dealer networking

Our subsidiaries in Malaysia achieved good results with sales

and profit growth due to successful implementation of our

marketing strategy

Motor Yachts and Helicopters

The business consists of the import and distribution of the

luxurious Italian Ferretti motor yachts in the PRC the Italian

Pershing motor yachts in Hong Kong and Macau and the

leading Taiwanese Horizon motor yachts in Hong Kong

Macau and the PRC

2008 marks the first year for the Group to act as the exclusive

distributor of Ferretti motor yachts in the PRC In line

with our business development plan for 2008 our offices in

Xiamen Shenzhen and Shanghai are actively engaged in the

network development of the Ferretti and Horizon brands

through exhibitions advertising and promotional campaigns

with one Ferretti yacht sold and delivered during the second

half of 2008

The first half of the year
has also been very encouraging for

Horizon with two yachts sold and delivered in 2008 and

number of orders are being secured for 2009

We also distribute Italian Agusta Westland helicopters in

Hong Kong Macau and southern PRC This business is still in

its exploratory stage
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Conditions

BUSINESS REVIEW continued

Fashion Apparels and Accessories

The business consists of the import distribution sub-licensing

and retailing of several fashion brands including Italian John

Richmond Richmond Richmond Denim and Sweet

Years in Hong Kong and the PRC These are premium brands

ranging from up-market fashion to designer casual wear Mono

brand shops of John Richmond Richmond and Sweet

Years are opened in Hong Kong and Beijing Distribution of

Italian Marina Yachting designer casual wear started in

late 2008 with two mono brand shops open in Shenyang and

Hong Kong

The Group is also licensed to manufacture and sell American

Playboy lingerie and ladies swim wears in the PRC Hong

Kong Macau Taiwan Malaysia and Singapore and the Playboy

ladies apparel in the PRC and Taiwan Several sales counters

are in prime department stores and more are going to be set

up in the coming years

As part of our business expansion strategy the Group acquired

controlling shareholding of 60% equity interest in Creative

Pacific Limited company engaged in the business of design

trading and sale of apparels in the PRC and together with its

subsidiaries owns the reputed fashion brand V-one which

comprises seven clothing lines of different styles An overhaul

of its operations has been made and it maintains network

of about 86 points of sale in the key cities of the PRC

In July 2008 our Group was appointed by the Italian Binda

Group as its sole and exclusive distributor of watches and

accessories under the brands of Breil Milano DG
Moschino and Ducati in the PRC Hong Kong Macau and

Taiwan until December 31 2010 Approximately 106 points of

sale were opened in the PRC and 33 in Hong Kong
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Conditions

PERSONNEL

At the end of 2008 the total number of employees of the Group

excluding associates was 659 2007 407 representing 62%

increase in headcount This is mainly due to the acquisition

of 60% stake in Creative Pacific Limited during the year

which operates the fashion brand V-one in the PRC the

set-up of new company in Nanjing in September 2008 for

the operation of the newly acquired second dealership for

both Ferrari and Maserati cars and the expansion of our

car business group motor yacht business and the set-up of

retail shops in Hong Kong and the PRC for fashion apparels

and accessories business

With the continuous expansion in the PRC and in the direction

of securing more luxurious brands for distribution we exercised

more local recruitment The management is committed to

staff motivation training and development to ensure that our

employees remain stable as well as competitive and dynamic in

the marketplace Together with the continuous organizational

improvements led by our committed management team we

are confident that our business and our employees will grow

together for the benefit of the Group in the years to come
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Conditions

PROSPECTS

As the global financial situation worsens continuous

slowdown in our key markets is expected However the Group

is confident of stable return from our car business especially

Ferrari and Maserati This is supported by strong order

portfolio Successful new models like the California GT and

the forthcoming opening of our largest 3S Centre will further

strengthen sales and service income The new Nanjing dealership

will be in full operation this year to generate additional sales

and profit margins

Major overhauls of the fashion business the electrical appliance

business and the motor yacht business are being carried out

to cut costs significantly and enhance efficiency All business

divisions are required to contribute profit as result of such

overhauls The general market for high-end fashion will be

very competitive and investments in this sector will be scaled

back considerably

China is pushing ahead with economic policies to stimulate

domestic consumption This will certainly provide greater

business opportunities for some of our consumer products

We expect good growth in our fashion watches and jewelry

business consolidation of our middle-priced fashion lines like

V-one and Playboy will achieve growth in this market

situation

Whilst the Group will continue to grow into an important

lifestyle products distribution company our business in 2009

will be managed cautiously to preserve strength in liquidity

and increase efficiency in the current uncertain economic

environment

1JIHCalifornia GT
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Richard Man Fai LEE BSB MBA aged 52 the Executive

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company is the

son of Mr Wing Sum LEE the former Director and Honorary

Chairman of the Company and Ms Kam HarYUE Non-executive

Director and the elder brother of Mr Jeff Man Bun LEE an

Executive Director of the Company He is the Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer of China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise

Inc an associated company of the Group

Dr LEE is responsible for formulating the Groups overall

strategic planning and business development Dr LEE has

29 years experience in marketing consumer products He

has bachelors degree and masters degree in business

administration from the University of Minnesota

In September 2006 Dr LEE was bestowed the title of Commander

of the Order of the Star of Italian Solidarity by Hon Romano

Prodi the Prime Minister of Italy in recognition of his

contribution in advancing Italian business and culture in Hong

Kong and PRC Dr LEE served for two consecutive terms as

the Chairman of the Radio Association of Hong Kong the

trade association of audio visual business in Hong Kong He

has been with the Group for 25 years

In March 2009 Dr Lee was awarded the 11th World Outstanding

Chinese Award and the Honorary Doctorate of Business

Administration from International American University

Jeff Man Bun LEE BSc MSc University of Michigan MSc

Stanford University aged 50 is an Executive Director of the

Company and was appointed in January 2002 He is the son

of Mr Wing Sum LEE and Ms Kam Har YUE and the younger

brother of Dr Richard Man Fai LEE He is responsible for

strategic planning and development of new projects of the

Group Prior to joining the Group he was System Software

Specialist at the Research and Development Department of

Apple Computer International Limited for years He had also

been actively involved in the Groups business from 1991 to

1997 prior to his current appointment

20 WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

uk lung WONG FCCA CPA Practising aged 52 has been

an Executive Director of the Company since June 2004 and is

the Chief Financial Officer and member of the Remuneration

Committee of the Company He is also the Chief Financial

Officer of China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise Inc an associated

company of the Group Mr WONG is fellow member of

the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an

associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants He is an Independent Non-executive Director of

Chi Cheung Investment Company Limited

Waison Chit Sing HUI BBA MBIM aged 58 was appointed

as an Executive Director of the Company in March 2006 Mr

HUI has over 31 years experience in retail management as

well as distribution of electrical appliances and consumer

electronics products He also has extensive experience in PRC

including representative of famous European luxurious apparel

brands and the setting up and management of prestigious

shopping malls

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Boon Seng IAN M.A Cambridge University aged 53 has

been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company

since April 1999 and is member of the Audit Committee and

the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the Company

Mr TAN is the Chairman and Managing Director of Lee Hing

Development Limited and non-executive director of Star

Cruises Limited both companies are listed on the Main Board

of the stock exchange of Hong Kong He is also the executive

Director of 1GB Corporation Berhad company listed on the

stock exchange of Kuala Lumpur Malaysia He also holds

directorships in many other companies

Raymond Cho Mm LEE Ed.M Harvard University aged 53 has

been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company

since May 2001 and is the Chairman of the Audit Committee

of the Company Mr LEE is the Chairman of the U.S.-based

East West Enterprises Co Ltd and the Oasis Development

Enterprises Group of real estate development and investment

companies In addition he is the founder and director of the

East West Institute of International Studies at Gordon College

USA and over the years has served on the boards of various

community and charitable organisations
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Ying Kwan CHEUNG FCCA CPA aged 49 has been an

Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since

November 2005 and is member of the Audit Committee and

member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company

He is finance manager of Caning Technology Limited and

has over 22 years of experience in financial management for

number of corporations and listed companies He is fellow

member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants

and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Kam Har YUE aged 76 was involved in the policy making

of the Group from 1962 to December 1989 She has been

redesignated as Non-executive Director of the Company

since then to scrutinise the performance of management of

the Company She has over 34 years experience in trading

and distribution of consumer products Ms YUE is the spouse

of Mr Wing Sum LEE who is the former Director and Honorary

Chairman of the Company and the mother of Dr Richard Man

Fai LEE and Mr Jeff Man Bun LEE both of whom are Executive

Directors of the Company

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Herbert ADAMCZYK aged 68 is the Managing Director

of Technorient Limited subsidiary of our Group and the

Director and Chief Operating Officer of China Premium Lifestyle

Enterprise Inc an associated company of the Group He is

also the Managing Director of Auto Sportiva Limited Noble

Brand Investments Limited Keyforce Holdings Limited and King

Express Group Limited which are subsidiaries of the Group

engaged in Alfa Romeo and Fiat vehicles motor yachts and

helicopters trade respectively He has 44 years experience in

the automotive trade in Hong Kong He has motor engineering

background and has been with the Technorient Group for 26

years He is an Executive Committee member of the Motor

Traders Association of Hong Kong
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Powell Kwok Chuen CHEUNG MBA aged 45 is the Deputy

Director-Group Marketing of Wo Kee Hong Limited He is also

the directors of various subsidiaries of the Group He has

20 years sales and marketing experience in both industrial

and consumer products He has been with the Group for 17

years

Kwang Liang CHIA BSBA Hons aged 48 is Director and

General Manager of the subsidiary companies of the Group in

Singapore He also oversees the operation of the companies of

the Group in Malaysia He has over 22 years corporate and

financial management experience and has been with the Group

for 15 years Prior to joining the Group he worked in KPMG

Peat Marwick as an auditor for years and multinational

company for years He is also an officer of the Singapore

Arm Forces

John NEWMAN aged 41 is Deputy Managing Director

of Auto Italia Limited subsidiary of Technorient Ltd He

has 21 years experience with blue chip sports and luxury

car manufacturers and importers and was director of

successful motor racing team in Europe He holds Diploma

in Business and Finance is qualified pilot and member

of the Institute of the Motor Industry in the UK Experienced

in sales marketing distribution dealer development media

communications and customer relationship management he

has been with the Group since 2005

Terence Po Sheung WONG aged 57 is the General Manager of

Human Resources and Administration Department of the Group

and General Manager of Wo Kee Services Limited Warehouse

Operations Division previously the General Manager of Wo

Kee Services Limited and was appointed in May 2005 He has

38 years experience in property management distribution

management after-sales services and logistics management

He had been with the Group for years from 1991 to 1997

prior to his current appointment

MBA 45T20
Kwang Liang CHIA BSBA Hons 48

15 fiA4
KPMG Peat Marwickffi5

John NEWMAN 41
IIHE
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DIRECTORS REPORTi$Ji

The Directors present to shareholders this annual report and

audited financial statements for the financial year ended

December 31 2008

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company

Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the import marketing

and distribution of cars and car accessories motor yachts

helicopters premium fashion apparels and accessories air-

conditioning and refrigeration products audio-visual equipment

car audio and electronic products and property investment The

activities and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries

are set out in note 51 to the financial statements

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Details of segmental information are set out in note to the

financial statements

GROUP RESULTS

The consolidated income statement is set out on page 55 and

further analysis is given in the accompanying notes to the

financial statements

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend

2007 nil for the year ended December 31 2008 No interim

dividend was paid during the year 2007 nil

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
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DIRECTORS REPORT

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during MiJ
the year are set out in note 36 to the financial statements

Information about the share options of the Company and

details of movements in the share options of the Company

during the
year are set out in the Share Option Information

section in this Annual Report and in note 49 to the financial

statements

RESERVES 14
Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the

Company during the
year are set out in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity on pages 59 to 60 of this

Annual Report and in note 37 to the financial statements

respectively

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property plant and equipment of the

Group and of the Company during the year are set out in note

to the financial statements

DONATIONS

During the year the Group made charitable and other donations 2j tJ

of HK$395000 2007 HK$1209000 f-1209000

BORROWINGS

Details of the Groups borrowings are set out in note 34 to

the financial statements No interest was capitalised by the 341
Group during the year
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DIRECTORS REPORT

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Groups five largest suppliers accounted for 35.1 of the

Groups purchases during the year 3.8% being attributable

to the largest supplier The percentage of turnover attributable

to the Groups five largest customers is less than 30.0%

during the year

As far as the Directors are aware no Director of the Company

their associates or any shareholder who to the knowledge

of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Companys share

capital has interest in the Groups five largest suppliers

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On November 26 2008 Wo Kee Hong Limited WKHL
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company provides guarantee

the Guarantee to bank to secure loan granted by the

bank to New Conception Fashion

Shanghai Co Ltd New Conception Shanghai 60%

indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company The loan was

for the principal amount of up to the Renminbi equivalent

of HK$4 million bearing normal interest chargeable by the

bank WKHL would charge New Conception Shanghai fee

equivalent to 1% per annum of the amount of the Guarantee

in respect of the provision of the Guarantee

Details of the other connected transactions of the Company

during the year are disclosed in Directors Interests in

Contracts in this Directors Report

During the year under review the transactions in the ordinary

courses of business within the Group which involved the

companies in which Dr Richard Man Fai LEE Mr Jeff Man Bun

LEE and Ms Kam Har YUE are directly or indirectly interested

are shown in note 40 to the financial statements
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DIRECTORS REPORT

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company who held office during the

year and up to the date of this report are

Executive Directors

Dr Richard Man Fai LEE

Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr Jeff Man Bun LEE

Mr Tik lung WONG

Mr Waison Chit Sing HUI

Non-executive Director

Ms Kam Har YUE

4E fl

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Boon Seng IAN

Mr Raymond Cho Mm LEE

Mr Ying Kwan CHEUNG

In accordance with Bye-law No 99 of the Bye-laws of the

Company Messrs Boon Seng IAN and Kam Har YUE will

retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming Annual

General Meeting and being eligible shall offer themselves

for re-election

According to the Wo Kee Hong Holdings Limited Company Act

of Bermuda 1991 no Director holding the office of chairman

or managing director shall be subject to retirement by rotation

as provided in the Bye-Laws of the Company However in

order to comply with Code Provision A.4.2 of the Code on

Corporate Governance Practices set out in Appendix 14 to the

Rules Governing the Listing Securities on The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited the Listing Rules that every director

including those appointed for specific term should be subject

to retirement by rotation as least once every
three

years Dr

Richard Man Fal LEE being the Chairman of the Company will

retire voluntarily from office at the forthcoming Annual General

Meeting and being eligible offer himself for re-election

gij
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DIRECTORS REPORT

DIRECTORS continued

The Independent Non-executive Directors INEDs are subject

to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Companys Bye-

laws The Company has received from each INED confirmation

of his independence pursuant to the independence assessing

factors guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules

The Company considers the INEDs to be independent

DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who is proposed for re-election at the

forthcoming Annual General Meeting has an unexpired service

contract with the Company which is not determinable by the

Company within one year without payment of compensation

other than statutory compensation

Dr Richard Man Fai LEE entered into service agreement with

the Company for term of years commencing from April

2002 and the appointment continues thereafter unless and

until terminated by either party giving to the other months

notice in writing or pay-in-lieu

Mr Jeff Man Bun LEE entered into service agreement with

the Company for term of year commencing from January

21 2002 and the appointment continues thereafter unless and

until terminated by either party giving to the other months

notice in writing or pay-in-lieu
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DIRECTORS REPORT

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at December 31 2008 the interests and short positions

of each Director and chief executive of the Company in the

shares underlying shares and debentures of the Company or

any associated corporation within the meaning of Part XV of

the Securities and Futures Ordinance SF0 as recorded in

the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SF0

or are required pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies to be notified

to the Company and the Stock Exchange are as follows

7YBffl

Beneficial interests and short positions in

the Company at December 31 2008

the shares of

TL /i\ -e i-

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each Shareo.io
Personal Family Corporate Total

interests interests interests interests

i11

Dr Richard Man Fai LEE

Mr Jeff Man Bun LEE

Mr Tik lung WONG

Mr Waison Chit Sing HUI

Mr Boon Seng TAN

Mr Raymond Cho Mm LEE

Ms Kam Har YUE

2779725

566280

6251659

116560284 119340009

note

Nii

118295146

notes

IMi

2304240

note

ft3

116560284

note

118861426

2304240

122811943
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DIRECTORS REPORT

tSttLI

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

continued

Notes

The 116560284 Shares are held by Modern Orbit Limited

which is wholly owned by Cyber Tower PTC Inc formerly

known as Cyber Tower Inc as trustee of The WS Lee Unit

Trust 99% of the units of The WS Lee Unit Trust are held

by discretionary trust of which Mr Wing Sum LEEs family

members including Ms Kam Elar YUE Dr Richard Man Fai

LEE and Mr Jeff Man Bun LEE are the beneficiaries The

remaining 1% of the units of The WS Lee Unit Trust is held

by Skylink International Asset Corporation company

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and owned by

Ms Kam Har VUE Dr Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr Jeff

Man Bun LEE

Out of the 118295146 Shares 1734862 Shares are held

by Fisherman Enterprises Inc company incorporated in

the British Virgin Islands and wholly owned by Mr Jeff

Man Bun LEE

The 2304240 Shares are beneficially owned by ODE Asia

Limited 100% owned by M.W Lee Sons Enterprises Limited

which is controlled by Mr Raymond Cho Mm LEE

All interests in the shares are long position None of the

Directors held any short position in the Shares

Beneficial interests and short positions in underlying shares

of equity derivatives of the Company at December 31

2008 are disclosed in the section headed Share Option

Information of this Annual Report

fl1tUR
ff1

6S60284J Modern Orbit

Limitedti Modern Orbit LimitedtCyber

Tower PTC Inc ffNCyber Tower Inc

1tThe WS Lee Unit TrustAtWtj
The WS Lee Unit Trust99%ti

tfl
The WS Lee Unit Trust

f1 %t Skylink International Asset

Corporation4

tfflL

118295146J%i9j5 t1734862
15 Fisherman Enterprises Inc

2304240% I5 tM.W Lee Sons

Enterprises Limited tf .ODE Asia

Limitedj ffiM.W Lee Sons

Enterprises LimitedMi

Ifft

T%MEnE1H_H LLXJSritx 2J fle1ffaXik

Jflo
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DIRECTORS REPORT

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

continued

Beneficial interests and short positions in shares in TTTfYLui
associated corporations at December 31 2008

Associated corporations Number of shares or

in which shares or amount of equity class and/or

equity interests are interests held or description

held or interested interested in of shares

Director tflflfl
13 n4fli /n
Ms Kam Har YUE Rogers Entertainment 34335 Non-voting deferred shares

International Limited

Shinwa Engineering 3850000 Non-voting deferred shares

Company Limited

PR

Wo Kee Hong Limited 8900 Non-voting deferred shares

note

Pf

Wo Kee Services Limited Non-voting deferred shares

note

Notes

8500 shares held by Mr.Wing Sum LEE the spouse of Ms

Kam Har YUE are included

The share is held by Mr Wing Sum LEE the spouse of ft9J15

Ms Kam Har YUE

All interests in the above shares are long positions None 1EJ

of the Directors held any short positions in the above tItttf5fI1tIMt
shares
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DIRECTORS REPORT

DIRECTORS INTEREST IN ASSETS AND/OR
ARRANGEMENT

As at December 31 2008 save as those disclosed in Directors

Interests in Contracts in this Directors Report none of the

Directors had
any

other direct or indirect interest in
any assets

which have been acquired or disposed of by or leased to any

members of the Group or were proposed to be acquired or

disposed of by or leased to any member of the Group

As at December 31 2008 save as those disclosed in Directors

Interests in Contracts in this Directors Report there is no

other contract or arrangement subsisting in which Director

was materially interested and which was significant in relation

to the business of the Group as whole

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

On January 18 2008 Wo Kee Hong B.V.l Limited

WKHBVI wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

entered into sale and purchase agreement with Dr

Richard Man Fai LEE the executive Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer and controlling shareholder of the

Company pursuant to which WKHBVI agreed to acquire

the entire issued share capital in Sunny Villa Holdings

Limited Sunny Villa and its shareholders loan in the

amount of approximately HK$1.8 million at an aggregate

consideration of HK$4.3 million which was settled by

internal resources of the Company and paid in cash at

completion Sunny Villa is property investment company

holding nine units on the of floor of residential

building known as Block Carlton Heights in Shenzhen

the PRC

On September 182008 Auto Italia Limited an approximately

70.50% owned subsidiary of the Company purchased

unit of vintage Ferrari from Dr Richard Man Fai LEE

the executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

and controlling shareholder of the Company for cash

consideration of HK$4.68 million

Apart from the foregoing there were no other contracts of

significance in relation to the Group business to which the

Company or any of its subsidiaries was party and in which

Director had whether directly or indirectly material interest

subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the

year ended December 31 2008
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DIRECTORS REPORT

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
continued

Directors Interests in Competing Business

None of the Directors of the Company other than INEDs is

interested in
any

business apart from the Companys business

which competes or is likely to compete either directly or

indirectly with the Companys business

Convertible Loan Note

Details of the convertible loan note issued by the Company

are shown in note 31 to the financial statements

Substantial Shareholders

Save as disclosed below and in the section headed Directors

Interests in Securities at December 31 2008 so far as is

known to the Directors no other person had or was deemed

or taken to have an interest or short position of 5% or more

of the interests in the Shares or underlying shares of the

Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under

Section 336 of the SF0

Beneficial interests and short positions in Shares and underlying

shares of equity derivatives of the Company at December 31

2008

--- --7

-4 Ab --

nil

aX 2M -T

5%
fflf

Number of Shares

Number of

underlying shares of

equity derivatives

Approximate

of the total

issued Shares

1Uft
Modern Orbit Limited 116560284

notefi

Shareholder

39.64%
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DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
cont ued

Substantial Shareholders continued
Notes

The 116560284 Shares are held by Modern Orbit Limited which

is wholly owned by Cyber Tower PTC Inc formerly known as

Cyber Tower Inc as trustee of The WS Lee Unit Trust 99% of

the units of The WS Lee Unit Trust are held by discretionary trust

of which Mr Wing Sum LEEs family members including Ms Kam

Har YUE Dr Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr Jeff Man Bun LEE are

the beneficiaries The remaining 1% of the units of The WS Lee

Unit Trust are held by Skylink International Asset Corporation

company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and owned

by Ms Kam Rar YUE Dr Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr Jeff Man

Bun LEE All of Dr Richard Man Fai LEE Mr Jeff Man Bun LEE

and Ms Kam Har YUE are directors of the Company

All interests in Shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives

of the Company are long position None of the substantial

shareholders hold any short positions in the Shares or underlying

shares of equity derivatives the Company

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this Annual Report based on information that

is publicly available to the Company the Directors acknowledge

that more than 25% of the issued capital of the Company are

held by the public

PURCHASE SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Details of repurchases by the Company of its own shares during

the years are set out in note 36 to the financial statements

The repurchases were made for the purpose of enhancing the

net asset value per share of the Company

Save as disclosed above there was no purchase sale or

redemption of the Companys listed securities of the Company

or its subsidiaries during the year
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DIRECTORS REPORT

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the

Companys Bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda although there

are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in

Bermuda

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year were audited by HLB

Hodgson Impey Cheng who will retire at the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer themselves

for re-appointment

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr Richard Man Fal LEE

Executive Chairman CEO

Hong Kong March 27 2009
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Maintaining an effective and solid corporate governance

framework is one of the top priorities of the Company This

includes informing our shareholders of our corporate practices

in our Annual Report We have complied with all the provisions

of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices the CG

Code contained in Appendix 14 of The Rules Governing the

Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited the Listing Rules throughout the accounting year

ended December 31 2008 except for deviation from Code

Provision A.2.1 which is explained in the following relevant

paragraphs

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasize

quality board sound internal control and transparency and

accountability to all shareholders

thi

A.2.1

it
DIRECTORS

A.1 The Board

We are governed by board of Directors the Board

which assumes the responsibility for leadership

and control of the Company Our Directors are

collectively responsible for promoting the success

of the Company by directing and supervising the

affairs of the Company
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS continued

A.1 The Board continued

The Board meets regularly normally four times each

year at approximately once every three months

and additional meetings will be arranged if and

when necessary Regular Board meetings schedule

of each year is normally made available to all

Directors members at the beginning of the year and

any amendments to this meeting schedule will be

notified to Directors at least 14 days before regular

meeting Special Board meetings will be held as

and when necessary Matters on transactions where

Directors are considered having conflict of interests

or material interests will not be dealt with by way

of written resolutions and separate Board meeting

shall be held where INEDs who have no material

interests shall be present in the meeting In addition

Directors considered having conflict of interests or

material interests in the matters before the Board

are required to declare their interests and abstain

from voting for the relevant resolution

Appropriate notices are given to all Directors for

attending regular Board meetings and other meetings

package containing agenda and all the relevant

information is normally dispatched to the Directors

three days in advance of the relevant meetings

Board meetings involve the active participation

either in person or through electronic means of

communication of majority of Directors The

Company Secretary assists the Executive Chairman in

preparing the meeting agenda and each Director may

request the inclusion of items in the agenda Directors

are also consulted on matters to be included in the

agenda for all regular meetings of the Board

Minutes of the Board meetings are recorded in detail

and draft minutes are circulated to all Directors for

review and comment before being approved by the

Board immediately following the meeting All the

minutes of the meetings are properly kept by the

Company Secretary and are available for inspection

by the Directors during normal office hours

A.1 o1
I-

14
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS continued

A.1 The Board continued

The Board met ten 10 times in 2008 The attendance

of individual Director at these Board meetings is

as below

Number of meeting

A.1

JpKr

Executive Directors

Dr Richard Man Fai LEE

Mr Jeff Man Bun LEE

Mr Tik Tung WONG

Mr Waison Chit Sing HUI

9/10

8/10

10/10

7/10

90%

80%

100%

70%

Non-executive Director

Ms Kam Har YUE

INEDs

Mr Boon Seng TAN

Mr Raymond Cho Mm LEE

Mr Ying Kwan CHEUNG

4/10

8/10

10/10

40%

80%

100%

Average attendance rate 71.25%

The Company has also taken out appropriate insurance

cover for our Directors in respect of legal actions

taken against Directors and officers The Board reviews

the extent of the insurance cover every year

A.2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that

the roles of chairman and chief executive officer

should be separate and should not be performed

by the same individual
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS continued

A.2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

continued

Dr Richard Man Fai LEE is the Executive Chairman

and Chief Executive Officer The Board considers

that this structure will not impair the balance of

power and authority between the Board and the

management This is because the Board has adopted

clear guideline as to the power and authority of the

Board and the management There is guideline as

to the power and duties of Chief Executive Officer

The details were set out fully in the corporate

governance report in 2005 annual report

In addition the Board which comprises experienced

and high caliber individuals meets regularly to

discuss issues and operation of the Group The Board

believes that this structure is conducive to strong and

consistent leadership enabling the Group to make

and implement decisions promptly and efficiently

As Executive Chairman of the Company Dr Richard

Man Fai LEE has to ensure that all Directors are

properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings

and that Directors receive adequate information

which must be complete and reliable in timely

manner

A.2

tft
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS continued

A.3 Board composition

Currently the Board comprises eight Directors

including four Executive Directors one Non-executive

Director and three INEDs The Listing Rules require

every listed issuer to have at least three INEDs at

least one of whom must have appropriate professional

qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise Mr Ying Kwan CHEUNG one

of the INEDs is fellow member of the Association

of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate

member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants Each of the three INEDs has

confirmed his independence in accordance with

Rule 3.13 annually

Two of the four Executive Directors and the non-

executive Director are family members Dr Richard

Man Fai LEE and Mr Jeff Man Bun LEE both of

whom are Executive Directors are the sons of Ms

Kam HarYUE Non-executive Director and brothers

Save as those disclosed herein Board members do

not have any family financial or business relations

with each other

The biographies of our Directors are set out in the

Directors and Senior Management Profiles section

in this Annual Report Details of the biography of

the Directors seeking re-election at the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting to be held on May 18 2009

are set out in the circular issued by the Company on

or about April 15 2009 sent to shareholders together

with this Annual Report The Company also maintains

on its website http//www.wokeehong.com.hk an

update biography of the Directors
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS continued

A.4 Appointments re-election and

removal of Directors

Non-executive Directors of the Company are appointed

for specific term of two years subject to re-election

in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company All

Directors including those appointed for fixed term

except for Dr Richard Man Fai LEE the Executive

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company

are subject to the retirement by rotation provisions

in the Bye-laws of the Company

Director appointed by the Board to fill casual

vacancy or as an addition shall hold office until the

next general meeting

According to the Wo Kee Hong Holdings Limited

Company Act 1991 no director holding the office

of chairman or managing director shall be subject

to retirement by rotation as provided in the Bye-

laws of the Company In order to comply with Code

Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code that every director

should be subject to retirement by rotation at least

once every three years Dr Richard Man Fai LEE the

Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of

the Company sent confirmation to the Company that

he would voluntarily retire from his directorship at

future annual general meetings of the Company at

least once every three years and being eligible for

re-election would offer himself for re-election at

the relevant general meetings

The Board has not established Nomination Committee

for reviewing new appointment of Directors and

senior executives and management succession plan

for Executive Directors and senior executives Any

Director can nominate potential Director candidate

The whole Board undertakes the duties collectively

of selection and assessment to ensure all candidates

to be selected and appointed as Director must be

able to meet the standards set out in Rules 3.08

and 3.09 of the Listing Rules candidate who is

to be appointed as an NED should also meet the

independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS continued

A.5 Responsibilities of Directors

Each newly appointed Director is provided with

package of orientation materials setting out the

required duties and responsibilities of Directors

under the Listing Rules and other relevant statutory

requirements of Hong Kong Newly appointed Directors

are invited to attend briefing session on directors

duties and responsibility under laws and regulations

conducted by legal professional Our Directors are

kept informed on regular basis on the latest

development of any latest changes to the regulatory

requirements All our Directors are encouraged to

participate in continuous professional development

seminars and/or courses to update their skills and

knowledge on the latest development or changes in

the relevant statutes Listing Rules and corporate

governance practices

The functions of Non-executive Directors have included

the functions as specified in Code Provision A.5.2a

to of the CG Code except for the Code Provision

A.5.2c of the CG Code to the extent that the Company

does not have nomination committee

The Company has adopted the standard set out in

Appendix 10 Model Code for Securities Transactions

by Directors of Listed Issuers the Model Code
of the Listing Rules in relation to the dealings in

securities of the Company by the Directors and

employees of the Group Having made specific enquiry

of all Directors during the year ended December 31

2008 the Directors have complied with the standard

set out in the Model Code

A.6 Supply of and access to information

In respect of regular Board meetings and so far

as practicable in all other cases an agenda and

accompanying board papers are sent in full to all

Directors in timely manner and at least three

days before the intended date of Board meeting

an Audit Committee meeting or Remuneration

Committee meeting
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS continued

A.6 Supply of and access to information

continued

The Board and each Director have separate and

independent access to the Groups senior management

All Directors are entitled to have access to board

papers minutes and related materials

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B.1 The level and make-up of

remuneration and disclosure

The Remuneration Committee was established in

accordance with the CG Code The existing members

of the Remuneration Committee are Mr Boon Seng

TAN Mr Ying Kwan CHEUNG both of whom are

the INED5 and Mr Tik Tung WONG an Executive

Director Mr Boon Seng TAN is the Chairman of the

Remuneration Committee The terms of reference

of the Remuneration Committee are adopted with

reference to the CG Code including the specific

duties set out in Code Provision B.1 .3a to

During the year the Remuneration Committee met

on two occasions with 100% attendance of all

the members

The Remuneration Committee has adopted set of

policy and guidelines to govern its administration in

reviewing considering and fixing the remuneration

packages and benefits of Directors and senior

management of the Group During the year 2008

the Remuneration Committee had

reviewed the service agreements of the Executive

Directors in accordance with the policy and

guidelines adopted by it

made recommendations to the Board in relation

to the renewal of the service agreements of

two Executive Directors
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT continued

B.1 The level and make-up of

remuneration and disclosure

continued

reviewed and recommended the parameters for

determining the Executive Directors bonus and

set up an Executive Directors bonus payout

pool and

fixed the payment schedule of non-executive

directors fee

Full minutes of the Remuneration Committee meetings

are kept by the Company Secretary Draft and

final versions of the minutes of the Remuneration

Committee meetings are sent to all members of

the Remuneration Committee for comments and

approval

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

C.1 Financial reporting

Management shall provide such explanation and

information to the Board as will enable the Board

to make an informed assessment of the financial

and other information put before the Board for

approval

The Directors are responsible for overseeing all

financial aspects of the Company and for keeping

proper accounting records and preparing accounts

of each financial period which give true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the Group and the

results and cash flow for that period In preparing

the accounts for the year ended December 31 2008

the Directors have

approved the adoption of all applicable Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards which are

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

continued

Cl Financial reporting continued
selected and applied consistently appropriate

accounting policies

made judgments and estimates that are prudent

and reasonable and

prepared the accounts on the on-going concern

basis

The Board is accountable to its shareholders for

clear and balanced assessment of the Companys

financial position and prospects In this regard the

Directors are responsible for presenting balanced

clear and understandable assessment to annual and

interim reports other price-sensitive announcements

and other financial disclosures required under the

Listing Rules and reports to regulators as well as

to information required to be disclosed pursuant to

statutory requirements Financial results of the Group

are announced in timely manner in accordance

with all statutory requirements particularly the

timeframe stipulated in Rule 13.491 and of the

Listing Rules and the Directors acknowledge their

responsibility for preparing the financial statements

of the Group

The Groups external auditors are HLB Hodgson

lmpey Cheng the Auditors The statement of the

Auditors about their reporting responsibilities on

the financial statements of the Group is set out on

pages 53 to 54 of this Annual Report

For the year ended December 31 2008 no material

uncertainties relating to events or conditions that

may cast significant doubt upon the Companys

ability to continue as going concern was reported

on by the Auditors
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

continued

C.1 Financial reporting continued

During the year 2008 the Auditors have performed

audit and non-audit services and their remuneration in

respect of audit and non-audit services is HK$650000

and HK$1 81 5000 respectively

C.2 Internal controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound

and effective internal control system to safeguard

the Groups assets and shareholders interests Such

system is designed to manage the risk within an

acceptable risk profile and to achieve the business

objectives It aims to provide reasonable but not

absolute assurance against material misstatement of

management and financial information and records

or against financial losses or fraud

The Board has established an on-going process for

identifying evaluating and managing the significant

risks faced by the Group The key procedures that

the Group has established and implemented are

summarised as follows

Segregation of duties and functions of the

respective operational departments of the

Group

Monitoring the strategic plan and

performance

Designing an effective accounting and information

system

Reviewing systems and procedures to identify

measure manage and control risks including

reputation legal credit market and operational

risks

Handling price-sensitive information by setting

out the procedures and policies
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

continued

C.2 Internal controls continued

Updating the internal control manual when

there are changes to business environment or

regulatory guidelines

Reviewing by Audit Committee for the report

submitted directly from external consultants

and

Following up with various departments to ensure

timely implementation of the recommendations

and report the status to the management

periodically

Since 2005 the Group has conducted an annual

review of the effectiveness of its internal control

system covering all material controls including

financial operational and compliance as well as risk

management The Group has also engaged external

consultants with particular experience in the design

and implementation of internal control systems to

conduct an annual review and make recommendations

for improvement and strengthening of the internal

control system Such review is conducted with

reference to the principles outlined in Internal

Control and Risk Management Basic Framework

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants The external consultants have reported

an overall satisfaction on the improvements based

on last years recommendations and current internal

control system of the Group

TZ .4

C.2

L11

Annual Report 2008 iit 47



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
continued

C.2 Internal controls continued

Based on the assessments made by the external

consultants the Audit Committee and the Board

considered that the key areas of the Groups internal

control system are reasonably implemented to

prevent material misstatement or loss safeguard

the Groups assets maintain appropriate accounting

records ensure compliance with applicable laws

and regulations as well as fulfil the requirements

of the CG Code regarding internal control systems

in general The Group shall use its best endeavour

to implement the recommendations made by the

external consultants in order to further improve the

internal control system

C.3 Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in December 31

1998 The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee

are reviewed annually and have included the duties

set out in Code Provision C.3.3a to of the CG

Codes The existing members of the Audit Committee

comprise Mr Raymond Cho Mm LEE Mr Boon Seng

TAN and Mr Ying Kwan CHEUNG all of whom are

INEDs Mr.Ving Kwan CHEUNG being fellow member

of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants

and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants has the appropriate

professional qualification and experience in financial

field Mr Raymond Cho Mm LEE is the Chairman of

the Audit Committee
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
continued

C.3 Audit Committee continued

During the year the Audit Committee has conducted

three formal meetings and discharged its

responsibilities Attendance of individual member

at the Audit Committee meetings in 2008 is as

below

BD Ti
I_ IJ..J1

C.3

Number of meeting

Average attendance rate Jft 78%

The principal duties of the Audit Committee included

reviewing the financial controls internal control

and risk management system annual report and

accounts interim report and accounts

The following is summary of the work performed

by the Audit Committee during the year 2008

met with the external auditors to discuss the

general scope of their audit work and the

matters related to the audit of the financial

statements for the years ended December 31

2007

reviewed the audit issues raised by the external

auditors

considered and recommended to the Board

adoption of new accounting standards

reviewed and recommended to the Board for

approval of the audit fee proposal for the Group

for 2007

reviewed the audited accounts and final results

announcement for the year 2007

4o --
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

continued

C.3 Audit Committee continued

reviewed the interim report and the interim

results announcement for the six months ended

June 30 2008

reviewed the effectiveness of internal control

system of the Group

reviewed and considered the report of the

annual internal control review of the Group

reviewed the non-audit services provided by

the auditors of the Company and assess the

independence and objectivity of the external

auditors in relation to their provision of non

audit services

reviewed the related party transactions and

Compliance of the relevant Listing Rules and

accounting policies in relation thereto

reviewed the terms of reference of the Audit

Committee and

discussed the annual and interim budget of the

Group

All issues raised by the Audit Committee have been

addressed by the management The work and findings

of the Audit Committee have been reported to the

Board During the year no issue that brought to the

attention of the management and the Board was of

sufficient importance to require disclosure in the

Annual Report

Full minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are kept

by the Company Secretary Draft and final versions

of the minutes of the Audit Committee meetings

are sent to all members of the Audit Committee

for comments and approval The Interim and Annual

Reports of the Company have been reviewed by the

Audit Committee
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

D.1 Management functions

The Board oversees the Companys strategic

development and determines the objectives strategies

and policies of the Group It also monitors and

controls operating and financial performance and sets

appropriate policies for risk management in pursuit

of the Groups strategic objectives and delegates

the implementation of strategies and day-to-day

operation of the Group to the management The Board

is entrusted with certain reserved powers which were

fully described in the corporate governance report

in the 2005 Annual Report

D.2 Board committees

Apart from the Audit Committee particulars are

disclosed under C.3 and the Remuneration Committee

particulars are disclosed under B.1 the Board

has also established three other committees of the

Board namely the Financial Control Committee the

Executive Directors Committee and the Operation

Review Committee The composition and functions

of the respective board committee were set out in

the corporate governance report in the 2005 Annual

Report

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

E.1 Effective communication

The Company follows the practice that at the annual

general meeting separate resolution is proposed

in respect of each separate issue including the

re-election of Directors In every annual general

meeting of the Company the Chairmen of the Audit

Committee and the Remuneration Committee or

the members of the respective committees or their

respective appointed delegates are present to answer

questions of shareholders
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS continued

E.2 Voting by poli

The Company informs shareholders of the procedures

for demanding poll by incorporating them in the

circular for annual general meetings and special

general meetings In addition in every general

meeting the chairman of the meeting provides an

explanation of the procedures for voting by poll at

the commencement of the meeting The procedures

for conducting poll were incorporated in the circular

for the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

At the 2008 annual general meeting the Executive

Chairman has provided an explanation of the

procedures for demanding poll by shareholders at

the commencement of the meeting

Dr Richard Man Fai LEE

Executive Chairman CEO

Hong Kong March 27 2009

2J
E.2
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

qJi4 tttP4
Hodgson Irnpey Cheng

Chartered Accountants

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

We have audited the consolidated financial statements ofWo Kee

Hong Holdings Limited the Company and its subsidiaries

collectively referred to as the Group set out on pages 55

to 193 which comprise the consolidated and company balance

sheets as at December 31 2008 and the consolidated income

statement the consolidated statement of changes in equity

and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then

ended and summary of significant accounting policies and

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation

and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated

financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance This responsibility

includes designing implementing and maintaining internal

control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair

presentation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or

error selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies

and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances

31/F Gloucester Tower

The Landmark

11 Redder Street

Central

Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated

financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion

solely to you as body in accordance with Section 90 of the

Bermuda Companies Act and for no other purpose We do not

assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report We conducted our audit

in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants Those

standards require that we comply with ethical requirements

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit

evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements The procedures selected depend on

the auditors judgment including the assessment of the

risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial

statements whether due to fraud or error In making those risk

assessments the auditors consider internal control relevant

to the entitys preparation and true and fair presentation

of the consolidated financial statements in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the entitys internal control An audit also

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by

the directors as well as evaluating the overall presentation

of the consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide basis for our audit opinion

OPINION

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and

of the Group as at December 31 2008 and of the Groups loss

and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly

prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng

Chartered Accountants

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong March 27 2009
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
f-r tn it

1-n -t
o4c 14 mi

For the year ended December 31 2008

fl11flHH-Hik

2008 2007

c-it
Notes HK$OOO HK$OOO

Mfi

Turnover 1308229 1153201
Cost of sates 1059901 938222

Gross profit 248328 214979

Other operating income 16863 4479
Distribution costs 103520 72125
Administrative expenses 182479 145220
Fair value losses/gains

on investment properties 1t 16 641 2022

Write-down of properties held for

sale to net realisable value 2250

Loss/profit from operations 23699 4135

Finance costs 8298 14355

Impairment on available-for-sale

financial assets 27 9000 6000
Provision for guarantee 14 950 7500
Transaction costs for

terminated acquisition 15 6008
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 39 76021

Loss on disposal of an associate 22 1968
Share of results of associates 22 18 1169
Share of result of

jointly controlled entity 23 3000

Loss/profit before tax 50973 49164
Income tax expenses 10 8079 6256

Loss/profit for the year 59052 42908

Attributable to

Equity holders of the Company 68869 35677

Minority interests 9817 7231

59052 42908

Loss/earnings per share

attributable to equity

holders of the Company
Basic and diluted restated 11 HK$0.235jf HK$0.135t

The accompanying notes on pages 63 to 193 form an integral

part of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
kt
vJ r1 LEE
At December 31 2008

Notes

tt

2008

fl
HK$OOO

2007

K$OOO

5t

Non-current assets

Investment properties 16 17000 9600

Property plant and equipment 17 56415 44541

Prepaid lease payments
18 26712 1558

Goodwill 19 31611 2787

Interests in associates 22 95

Interest in jointly

controlled entity 23

Available-for-sale financial assets 27 21527 30527

Deferred tax assets 35 10 16

153370 89029

Current assets

Inventories 24 234664 24993

Properties held for sale at net

realisable value 21150 23400

Trade and other receivables 25 249504 185075

Derivative financial

instruments 44 98

Amounts due from associates 26 39834 14260

Amount due from jointly

controlled entity 26 2119

Other financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss 28 17

Cash and cash equivalents
29 164030 363949

711405 711694

Current liabilities ttAt
Trade and other payables

30 330489 243956

Bills payables 14383 36758

Tax payables 2418 162

Amounts due to related companies if
32 944 1343

Convertible loan note PififflXfl 31 30207

Obligations under finance leases

due within one year
33 936

Borrowings

due within one year
34 152919 70827

501153 384189

Net current assets 210252 327505

Total assets less current liabilities 363622 416534
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET CONTINUED
4j- /\

At December 31 2008

H-

2008 2007W\
Notes HK$OOO HK$OOO

Non-current liabilities

Obligations under finance leases

due after one year 33 168

Borrowings

due after one year 34 37709 3506

Deferred tax liabilities 35 12

37721 13680

Net assets 325901 402854

Capital and reserves

Share capital J2tS 36 29403 255314

Reserves 275690 25064

Equity attributable to equity

holders of the Company 305093 380378

Minority interests 20808 22476

Total equity 325901 402854

The accompanying notes on pages 63 to 193 form an integral

part of these financial statements IJ11

The financial statements on pages 55 to 193 were approved

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on March A1 1J
27 2009 and are signed on its behalf by

Director Director
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BALANCE SHEET

At December 31 2008

Ti

Notes

2008

HK$OOO

2007

HK$OOO

Non-current assets

Property plant and equipment 17 794 560

Investments in subsidiaries 21 266213 271075

267007 271635

Current assets

Trade and other

receivables 5209 726

Amounts due from subsidiaries 26 60216 36918

Amounts due from associates 26 197 114

Amount due from

jointly controlled entity 26 195

Other financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss 28 17

Cash and cash equivalents 315 318

66138 38093

Current liabHities

Trade and other payables 1213 4092

Amounts due to subsidiaries 26 293322 180127

Amounts due to related companies 32 441 441

Convertible loan note 31 30207

Financial guarantee contracts 3445 8307

298421 223174

Net current liabilities 232283 185081

Net assets 34724 86554

Capital and reserves attributable to

equity holders of the Company
Share capital 36 29403 255314

Reserves 37 5321 168760

Total equity 34724 86554

The financial statements on pages 55 to 193 were approved

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on March 1.Ei
27 2009 and are signed on its behalf by

Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended December 31 2008flAnH-h hI

Exchange
diffenencee

arming or tronelotion

of financial etotemente

of ovenneon nperotionn

net necognioed
in

the income etotement

Recognition of eqoity

nettled chore boned payment

Annual Repore 2008 I1c$A4t 59

Attributable to equity
holdero of the

Company

Copitol

Shone Shore redemption

copitol pnemiom monroe

PtA
IT OTUM

HK$000 HKfooy tK$ooo

PT Uff PT

22L6l5 918At
ionoory 12007

Eqoity fAccomu

Shone component of loted leoreri

optionr Exchange
oonoertible Contributed Other Retained Minority

nerenee meoeroe loon note nurplon monroe profitn interentn mInI

noon VT
HOT P2 il flbO

PB fin flU PtA 00 flf

HK$000 tK$oto tK$oaO HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

tAft tAT2 1AIfATH UAf tAf

Loon
tK$OOO

nooe

AA

4155 105

15

151230 65y21 15003 310979

242 227

21532153

Net income reccgnined

directly
in

xqoity
AifT 2153 15 242 2380

Pnctit for the year lTooAf 35677 7231 42008

Total
reoognined

income

for the year tkAAoOT 2153 15 35677 7473 452t0

lance of thoret open AAO
eoencioe of chore

nptionn AThAh 2433 226 72 25t7

lonue of nharen
open

ocqoieition of available T0iitT

fotnole financial annetn AAhAAT 31266 4734 3t000

Lopee of chore optiorn lT2AAAAT 64 64

At Decemben 31 2001 ond 00h-j-A
Jonoory

2008 2553f4 4960 916 2017 4170 185 151236 f30080 22476 402854

tochorge
differencen

orining on tranelotion fO200AAhf

of financial ntatementn

of oaeroeao operotiono ATATAO

rot recognined in the

income ntotement T2AA 15 230 215

Net income recognined

directly in equity 2xiaof 15 230 215

Lonniprofit for the
year

00 000 /0AA 68869 9017 59052

Total recognmned income $t0OOAA

for the
year

AfOff 15 68869 10041 58831

Redemption of convertible loon note 0llHA0AT00 185 185

Arming from capital redootmon A0hA0t 229782 229702

Elimination of ocoumolated hThA

lonoen upon capitol jflltT

reonganinatior ATOT0 229782 229102

lnooe of boron nhonen fAhhIllA 5186 f5106

Inoreane in minority internet OTA100

renolting
from

acqoinition 0hITAA0

of nobeidiorien 021000 1715 1115

Cancellation on

reporohane of ehoren 1235 4960 1235 1441 6401

Lopne of chore ophorn 0%OAAA00 180 180

At December 31 2008 OOLooooJA00 29403 2151 1831 4185 151236 124651 20808 325901



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY CONTINUED

For the year ended December 31 2008

Included in the above is the Groups share of post-acquisition

accumulated losses of associates as follows

HK$OOO

At January 2007 75875

Loss for the year 1169

At December 31 2007 and

January 2008 77044
Loss for the year 18

At December 31 2008 77062

Note The other reserve of the Group was transferred from the share

premium account pursuant to the capital re-organisation on

September 18 2002
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended December 31 2008

nflAH-nfl H-E EtA

Operating activities

Loss/profit before tax

Adjustments for

Share of results of associates

Share of result of jointly

controlled entity

Interest income

Interest expenses

Finance leases charges

Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

Gain on disposal of property

plant and equipment

Fair value losses/gains on other

financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

Fair value gains on derivative

financial instruments

Provision for guarantee

Write-down of properties held

for sale to net realisable value

Fair value losses/gains on

investment properties

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Loss on disposal of an associate

Impairment on goodwill

Impairment on available-for-sale

financial assets

Share-based payment expenses

nfl
/A

11
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2008

HK$OOO

2007

HK$000

50973 49164

18 1169

3000
8812
7867

28

12794
306

1922
14013

20

10754

1046 444

11

98
950

57
7500

2250

641 2022
76021

1968

118

9000 6000

2153

Operating cash flows before

movements in working capital 2ftAt 24064 2392

lncrease/decrease in inventories AAJn /i 82774 26026

Increase in trade and other receivables tAt AtfthAAfA AjU 47518 36301
Increase in amounts due from associates AAAAAAAA 25574 10309
Increase in amount due from

jointly controlled entity AtAt 2119
Increase in trade and other payables AAAAAAIAJA44AAAA 16291 76927

Decrease in bills payables 114AAA 22375 9226
Decrease in amounts due AitAAA

to related companies AtAt 399 5571

Cash used in/generated ffifi/fifrA
from operations 188532 53938

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid 4811 693
Overseas tax paid 1006

5817 693

Net cash used in/generated

from operating activities 194349 53245



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT CONTINUED
Lffi1iL

For the year ended December 31 2008

ihi

Investing activities

Purchase of property

plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property

plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of an associate

Capital injection to

joint controlled entity

Capital injection to

an associate

Net cash outflow/inflow from

acquisition of subsidiaries

Net cash inflow from disposal

of subsidiaries

Interest received

it 11

2008

HK$OOO

2007

HK$OOO

50061 32673

2734 1983

6791

3000

114

10065

352746

8185 1922

Net cash used in/generated from

investing activities 52321 330777

Financing activities

New bank loans 557194 496629
New other loans 3392
Proceeds from exercise of share options 2587

Payment for repurchase of shares 6402
Repayment of bank loans 463725 528963
Repayment of other loans 8443
Redemption of convertible loan note 30000
Repayment of obligations

under finance leases 1109 1404
Interest paid 10104 13355
Finance lease charges paid 28 20

Net cash generated from/used in

financing activities 40775 44526

Net decrease/increase in cash

and cash equivalents 205895 339496

Cash and cash equivalents

at January 363366 22023

Effect of foreign currency

exchange rate changes 349 1847

Cash and cash equivalents

at December 31 157122 363366

Analysis of the balances of cash

and cash equivalents

Being
Cash and cash equivalents 64030 363949
Bank overdrafts 6908 583

157122 363366

The accompanying notes on pages 63 to 193 form an integral

part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

hJ

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is public limited company incorporated in

Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited the Stock Exchange The address

of the registered office and principal place of business

of the Company is disclosed in the corporate information

section of the annual report

The Company is holding company with major subsidiaries

engaged in import marketing distribution and after-sales

service of high quality branded products serving customers

in the Asian region and in particular the markets of

Peoples Republic of China the PRC Hong Kong Macau

Singapore and Malaysia The products include principally

cars and car accessories motor yachts helicopters premium

fashion apparels and accessories air-conditioning and

refrigeration products audio-visual equipment car audio

and electronic products other electronic and electrical

products and property investment

The consolidated financial statements are presented in

Hong Kong dollars which is the same as the functional

currency of the Company These financial statements

were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on March 27 2009

19
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008iiiH-Hih

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS HKFRSs
In the current year the Group has applied for the first

time the following of amendments and interpretations

the new HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants the HKICPA which

are effective for the

January 2008

Groups financial year beginning

TiI42iJ
2JrH-
ijj

HKAS 39 HKFRS

Amendments

HKIFRIC nt 11

HKIFRIC Int 12

HKIFRIC Int 14

Reclassification of Financial

Assets

HKFRS Group and Treasury

Share Transactions

Service Concession

Arrangements

HKAS 19The Limit on

Defined Benefit Asset

Minimum Funding

Requirements and their

Interaction

39Ij
ji 2j

11

Ij19
JIj

II ii

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect

on how the results and financial position for the current

or prior accounting periods have been prepared and

presented Accordingly no prior period adjustment has

been required

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised standards amendments or interpretations that

have been issued but are not yet effective
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

H- ih

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS HKFRSs continued

ljtE

HKAS Revised

HKAS 23 Revised

HKAS 27 Revised

HKAS 32

Amendments

HKAS 39

Amendment

HKFRS HKAS 27

Amendments

HKFRS

Amendment

HKFRS Revised

HKFRS

Presentation of Financial

Statements2

Borrowing Costs2

Consolidated and Separate

Financial Statements3

Puttable Financial Instruments

and Obligations Arising

on Liquidation2

Eligible hedged items3

Cost of an Investment in

Subsidiary Jointly Controlled

Entity or Associate2

Vesting Conditions and

Cancellations2

Business Combinations3

Operating Segments2

Customer Loyalty Programmes4

Agreements for the

Construction of Real Estate2

Hedges of Net Investment in

Foreign Operation5

Distribution of Non-cash

Assets to Owners3

Ij

23

IJ

27

IJ

32

Ij

gij

27 Ii 1-

74

741

13

16

17

iJ

Et
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSgtnj
For the year ended December 31 2008WWAn H-I- iL1J

Effective for annual

January 2009

Effective for annual

July 2009

July 2008

Effective for annual

October 2008

The application of HKFRS Revised may affect the

accounting for business combination for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first

annual reporting period beginning on or after July 2009

HKAS 27 Revised will affect the accounting treatment for

changes in parents ownership interest in subsidiary The

directors of the Company anticipate that the application

of the other new and revised standards amendments or

interpretations will have no material impact on the results

and the financial position of the Group
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

H-I- HLt

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in

accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

HKFRS5 which term collectively included Hong Kong

Accounting Standards HKASs and Interpretations

the Interpretations issued by the HKICPA accounting

principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance and the applicable disclosure requirements

of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the

Stock Exchange the Listing Rules

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared

under the historical cost convention as modified by the

revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets financial

assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

including derivative financial instruments and investment

properties which are carried at fair value

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in

conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical

accounting estimates It also requires management to

exercise its judgement in the process of applying the

Groups accounting policies

tktfl
fi 2$ t2$ 2$

2$ 2$ 2$ 2$ 2$ 2$ 2$ ft 2$ 2$ 2$ 2$ 2$ 2$ 2$
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For the year ended December 31 2008

H-J1 EIH- EJ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the

financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries

made up to December 31 each year Control is achieved

where the Company has the power to govern the financial

and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits

from its activities

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of

during the year are included in the consolidated income

statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to

the effective date of disposal as appropriate

Where necessary adjustments are made to the financial

statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting

policies into line with those used by other members of

the Group

All intra-group transactions balances income and expenses

are eliminated on consolidation

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated

subsidiaries are presented separately from the Groups

equity therein Minority interests in the net assets consist

of the amount of those interests at the date of the

original business combination and the minoritys share

of changes in equity since the date of the combination

Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minoritys

interest in the subsidiarys equity are allocated against

the interests of the Group except to the extent that the

minority has binding obligation and is able to make an

additional investment to cover the losses
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2D08

nflAt-nH-I---

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using

the purchase method The cost of the acquisition is

measured at the aggregate of the fair values at the

date of exchange of assets given liabilities incurred or

assumed and equity instruments issued by the Group in

exchange for control of the acquiree plus any costs directly

attributable to the business combination The acquirees

identifiable assets liabilities and contingent liabilities

that meet the conditions for recognition under HKFRS

Business Combinations are recognised at their fair values

at the acquisition date except for non-current assets or

disposal groups that are classified as held for sale in

accordance with HKFRS Non-current Assets Held for

Sale and Discontinued Operations which are recognised

and measured at fair value less costs to sell

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset

and initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost

of the business combination over the Groups interest in

the net fair value of the identifiable assets liabilities and

contingent liabilities recognised IL after reassessment

the Groups interest in the net fair value of the acquirees

identifiable assets liabilities and contingent liabilities

exceeds the cost of the business combination the excess

is recognised immediately in profit or loss

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is

initially measured at the minoritys proportion of the

net fair value of the assets liabilities and contingent

liabilities recognised
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities including special purpose

entities over which the Group has the power to govern the

financial and operating policies generally accompanying

shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights

The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are

currently exercisable or convertible are considered when

assessing whether the Group controls another entity

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Companys

balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment

loss

Investments in associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has

significant influence but not control generally accompanying

shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting

rights

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are

incorporated in these consolidated financial statements

using the equity method of accounting Under the equity

method investments in associates are carried in the

consolidated balance sheet initially at cost as adjusted

for the post-acquisition changes in the Groups share

of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the

associate less any identified impairment loss When

the Groups share of losses of an associate equals or

exceeds its interest in that associate which includes

any long-term interests that in substance from part of

the Groups net investment in the associate the Group

discontinues recognising its share of further losses An

additional share of losses is provided for and liability is

recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred

legal or constructive obligation or made payments on

behalf of that associate
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

H- ihJ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Investments in associates continued

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Groups

share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets

liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate

recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as

goodwill The goodwill is included within the carrying

amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment

as part of the investment

Any excess of the Groups share of the net fair value

of the identifiable assets liabilities and contingent

liabilities over the cost of acquisition after reassessment

is recognised immediately in profit or loss

Where group entity transacts with an associate of the

Group profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of

the Groups interest in the relevant associate

Jointly controlled entity

Joint venture arrangement that involves the establishment

of separate entity in which venturers have joint control

over the economic activity of the entity are referred to

as jointly controlled entities

iiIi
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

nflA3-z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Jointly controlled entity continued

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled

entity are incorporated in the consolidated financial

statements using the equity method of accounting Under

the equity method investments in jointly controlled entities

are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as

adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Groups share

of net assets of the jointly controlled entities less any

identified impairment loss When the Groups share of

losses of jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its

interest in that jointly controlled entity which includes

any long-term interests that in substance form part of

the Groups net investment in the jointly controlled entity

the Group discontinues recognising its share of further

losses An additional share of losses is provided for and

liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group

has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity

Any excess of the Groups share of the net fair value

of the identifiable assets liabilities and contingent

liabilities over the cost of acquisition after reassessment

is recognised immediately in profit or loss

When group entity transacts with jointly controlled

entity of the Group profits or losses are eliminated to

the extent of the Groups interest in the jointly controlled

entity
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to

January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and

operations of subsidiary or jointly controlled entity

for which the agreement date is before January 2005

represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the

Groups interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets

and liabilities of the relevant subsidiary or the relevant

jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions

of net assets and operations of subsidiaries or jointly

controlled entity after January 2001 the Group has

discontinued amortisation from January 2005 onwards

and such goodwill net of cumulative amortisation as at

December 31 2005 is tested for impairment annually and

whenever there is an indication that the cash generating

unit to which the goodwill relates may be impaired see

the accounting policy below

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after

January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiary or

jointly controlled entity which is accounted for using

proportionate consolidation for which the agreement date

is on or after January 2005 represents the excess of the

cost of acquisition over the Groups interest in the fair

value of the identifiable assets liabilities and contingent

liabilities of the relevant subsidiary or jointly controlled

entity at the date of acquisition Such goodwill is carried

at cost less any accumulated impairment losses
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008f\ E-

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continue

Goodwill continued

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after

January 2005 continued

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of

subsidiary or jointly controlled entity is presented

separately in the consolidated balance sheet

For the purposes of impairment testing goodwill arising

from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant

cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units

that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the

acquisition cash-generating unit to which goodwill

has been allocated is tested for impairment annually

and whenever there is an indication that the unit may

be impaired For goodwill arising on an acquisition in

financial year the cash-generating unit to which goodwill

has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end

of that financial year When the recoverable amount of

the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount

of the unit the impairment loss is allocated to reduce

the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit

first and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on

the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in

the consolidated income statement An impairment loss

for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods

On subsequent disposal of subsidiary or jointly

controlled entity the attributable amount of goodwill

capitalised is included in the determination of the amount

of profit or loss on disposal
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable for the sale of goods and services

in the ordinary course of the Groups activities Revenue

is shown net of returns rebates and discounts and after

eliminating sales within the Group Revenue is recognised

as follows

Sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered

and the significant risks and rewards of ownership of

the goods have passed to the buyer

Maintenance services income is recognised when services

are rendered

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on

time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and

at the effective interest rate applicable which is the rate

that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts

through the expected life of the financial asset to that

assets net carrying amount

Rental income arising from operating leases is recognised

on straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant

leases

Commission income is recognised when the relevant

services are rendered

Dividend income from investments is recognised when

the shareholders rights to receive payment have been

established

Ij
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the
year

ended December 31 2008

-h ih

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Segment reporting

business segment is group of assets and operations

engaged in providing products or services that are subject

to risks and returns that are different from those of other

business segments geographical segment is engaged in

providing products or services within particular economic

environment that are subject to risks and returns that

are different from those of segments operating in other

economic environments

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the

terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership to the lessee All other leases are

classified as operating leases

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are

recorded as receivables at the amount of the Groups net

investment in the leases Finance lease income is allocated

to accounting periods so as to reflect constant periodic

rate of return on the Groups net investment outstanding

in respect of the leases

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the

consolidated income statement on straight-line basis

over the terms of the relevant leases
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008AiiEI hJ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Leasing continued

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as

assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception

of the lease or if lower at the present value of the

minimum lease payments The corresponding liabilities

to the lessors are included in the consolidated balance

sheet as finance lease obligations Finance costs are

charged to the income statement over the terms of the

relevant leases so as to produce constant periodic rate

of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations

for each accounting period

Rental payables under operating leases are charged

to the income statement on straight-line basis over

the terms of the relevant leases Benefits received and

receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease

are recognised as reduction of rental expense over the

lease term on straight-line basis

Leasehold land

Interest in leasehold land is accounted for as operating

leases and amortised over the lease term on straight-line

basis except for those that are classified and accounted for

as investment properties under the fair value model
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

HH---

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual

group entity transactions in currencies other than the

functional currency of that entity foreign currencies are

recorded in its functional currency i.e the currency of

the primary economic environment in which the entity

operates at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the

dates of the transactions At each balance sheet date

monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are

retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet

date Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are

denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at

the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value

was determined Non-monetary items that are measured

in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are not

retranslated

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary

items and on the translation of monetary items are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

arise except for exchange differences arising on monetary

item that forms part of the Groups net investment

in foreign operation in which case such exchange

differences are recognised in equity in the consolidated

financial statements Exchange differences arising on the

retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value

are included in profit or loss for the period except for

differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary

items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised

directly in equity in which cases the exchange differences

are also recognised directly in equity
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the
year

ended December 31 2008

EE ihfi

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Foreign currencies continued

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial

statements the assets and liabilities of the Groups

foreign operations are translated into the presentation

currency of the Group i.e Hong Kong dollars at the

rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date

and their income and expenses are translated at the

average exchange rates for the year unless exchange

rates fluctuate significantly during the year in which

case the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of

transactions are used Exchange differences arising if

any are recognised as separate component of equity

the exchange reserve Such exchange differences are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the

foreign operation is disposed of

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets

acquired arising on an acquisition of foreign operation

on or after January 2005 are treated as assets and

liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at

the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet

date Exchange differences arising are recognised in the

exchange reserve

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in

finance costs in the income statement in the period in

which they are incurred

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement schemes are

charged as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008A5 55

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

coin tin

Tax at fl

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for

the
year

Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported

in the consolidated income statement because it excludes

items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible

in other years and it further excludes income statement

items that are never taxable or deductible The Groups

liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates

that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

balance sheet date

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or

recoverable on differences between the carrying amount

of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial

statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the

computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabilities are

generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences

and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent

that it is probable that taxable profit will be available

against which deductible temporary differences can be

utilised Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if

the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the

initial recognition other than in business combination

of other assets and liabilities in transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary

differences arising on investment in subsidiaries and

associates and interests in joint ventures except where

the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal

of the temporary difference and it is probable that the

temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008TAcH Hih

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Taxation continued

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed

at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent

that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit

will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected

to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the

asset is realised Deferred tax is charged or credited to

profit or loss except when it relates to items that are

charged or credited directly to equity in which case the

deferred tax is also dealt with in equity

Property plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment including buildings held

for use in the production or supply of goods or services

or for administrative purposes are stated at cost or fair

value less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of

property plant and equipment over their estimated useful

lives and after taking into account of their estimated

residual values using the straight-line method at the

following rates per annum

tMflUa
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Land held under

medium-term lease

Buildings on land held

under medium-term lease

Leasehold improvements

Furniture fixtures

and equipment

Machinery and tools

Motor vehicles

Motor yacht

Over the unexpired

term of lease

21/2

20% or over the

lease term

10 20%

20 331/3%

20 25%

5%

21/2

20%Jt

10 20%

20
331/3%

20 25%

5%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Property plant and equipment

continued

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their

expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets

or where shorter the term of the relevant leases

The land and buildings elements of lease of land and

buildings are considered separately for the purposes of

lease classification unless the lease payments cannot be

allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements

in which case the entire lease is generally treated as

finance lease To the extent that the allocation of the

lease payments between the land and buildings elements

can be made reliably the leasehold interests in land are

reclassified to prepaid lease payments under operating

leases which are carried at cost and amortised over the

lease term on straight-line basis Alternatively where

the allocation between the land and buildings elements

cannot be made reliably the leasehold interests in land

continue to be accounted for as property plant and

equipment

An item of property plant and equipment is derecognised

upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are

expected to arise from the continued use of the asset

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset

calculated as the difference between the net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount of the item is included

in the consolidated income statement in the year in which

the item is derecognised
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSflJfE
For the year ended December 31 2008

EIH- EJ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Investment properties

Investment properties are completed properties which

are held for their investment potential any rental income

being negotiated at arms length

On initial recognition investment properties are measured

at cost including any directly attributable expenditure

Subsequent to initial recognition investment properties

are measured at fair values using the fair value model

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of

investment properties are included in profit or loss for

the period in which they arise

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or

when the investment property is permanently withdrawn

from use or no future economic benefits are expected from

its disposals Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of

the asset calculated as the difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset

is included in the consolidated income statement in the

year in which the item is derecognised

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value Cost is calculated using the first-in first-

out method Net realisable value is the estimated selling

price in the ordinary course of business less applicable

variable selling expenses

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet

at cost For the purposes of the cash flow statement cash

and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand deposits held

at call with banks cash investments with maturity of

three months or less from date of investment and bank

overdrafts Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings

in current liabilities on the balance sheet
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008H-HjiJ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has present

obligation as result of past event and it is probable

that the Group will be required to settle that obligation

Provisions are measured at the directors best estimate

of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at

the balance sheet date and are discounted to present

value where the effect is material

contingent liability is possible obligation that arises

from past events and whose existence will only be

confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one

or more uncertain future events not wholly within the

control of the Group It can also be present obligation

arising from past events that is not recognised because

it is not probable that outflow of economic resources

will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be

measured reliably

contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed

in the notes to the financial statements When change

in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is

probable it will then be recognised as provision

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised

on the balance sheet when group entity becomes

party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially

measured at fair value Transaction costs that are directly

attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets

and financial liabilities other than financial assets and

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial

assets or financial liabilities as appropriate on initial

recognition Transaction costs directly attributable to the

acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss are recognised immediately

in profit or loss
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Financial instruments continued

Financial assets

The Groups financial assets are classified into one of

the four categories including financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss loans and receivables held-

to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial

assets All regular way purchases or sales of financial

assets are recognised and derecognised on trade date

basis Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or

sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets

within the time frame established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace The accounting policies

adopted in respect of each category of financial assets

are set out below

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is method of calculating

the amortised cost of financial asset and of allocating

interest income over the relevant period The effective

interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated

future cash receipts including all fees on points paid or

received that form an integral part of the effective interest

rate transaction costs and other premiums or discounts

through the expected life of the financial asset or where

appropriate shorter period

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis

for debt instruments other than those financial assets

designated as at financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss of which interest income is included in

net gains or losses
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSgflJ
For the year ended December 31 2008

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Financial instruments continued

Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has

two subcategories including financial assets held for

trading and those designated as at fair value through

profit or loss on initial recognition

financial asset is classified as held for trading if

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near future or

it is part of an identified portfolio of financial

instruments that the Group manages together and

has recent actual pattern of short-term profit-

taking or

it is derivative that is not designated and effective

as hedging instrument

financial asset other than financial asset held for

trading may be designated as at fair value through profit

or loss upon initial recognition if

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces

measurement or recognition inconsistency that

would otherwise arise or

the financial asset forms part of group of financial

assets or financial liabilities or both which is managed

and its performance is evaluated on fair value basis

in accordance with the Groups documented risk

management or investment strategy and information

about the grouping is provided internally on that

basis or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Financial instruments continued

Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss continued

it forms part of contract containing one or more

embedded derivatives and HKAS 39 permits the

entire combined contract asset or liability to be

designated as at fair value through profit or loss

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

are measured at fair value with changes in fair value

recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which

they arise The net gain or loss recognised in profit or

loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the

financial assets

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets

with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted

in an active market At each balance sheet date subsequent

to initial recognition loans and receivables including

trade and other receivables cash and cash equivalents

amounts due from associates and amount due from

jointly controlled entity are carried at amortised cost

using the effective interest method less any
identified

impairment losses see accounting policy in respect of

impairment loss on financial assets below

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives

that are either designated or not classified as any of the

other categories set out above At each balance sheet

date subsequent to initial recognition available-for-sale

financial assets are measured at fair value Changes in fair

value are recognised in equity until the financial asset

is disposed of or is determined to be impaired at which

time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised

in equity is removed from equity and recognised in profit

or loss see accounting policy in respect of impairment

loss on financial assets below
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

iEL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Financial instruments continued

Available- for-sale financial assets continued

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have

quoted market price in an active market and whose

fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives

that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of

such unquoted equity instruments they are measured

at cost less any identified impairment losses at each

balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition

see accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on

financial assets below

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets other than those at financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss are assessed for

indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective

evidence that as result of one or more events that

occurred after the initial recognition of the financial

asset the estimated future cash flows of the financial

assets have been impacted

For an available-for-sale equity investment significant

or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment

below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of

impairment

For all other financial assets objective evidence of

impairment could include

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty or

default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

PH- ih

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Financial instruments continued

Impairment of financial assets continued

For certain categories of financial asset such as trade

receivables assets that are assessed not to be impaired

individually are subsequently assessed for impairment

on collective basis Objective evidence of impairment

for portfolio of receivables could include the Groups

past experience of collecting payments an increase in

the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past

the average credit period of to 90 days observable

changes in national or local economic conditions that

correlate with default on receivables

For financial assets carried at amortised cost an impairment

loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective

evidence that the asset is impaired and is measured as

the difference between the assets carrying amount and

the present value of the estimated future cash flows

discounted at the original effective interest rate

For financial assets carried at cost the amount of the

impairment loss is measured as the difference between

the assets carrying amount and the present value of the

estimated future cash flows discounted at the current

market rate of return for similar financial asset Such

impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent

periods

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by

the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with

the exception of trade receivables where the carrying

amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account

Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account

are recognised in profit or loss When trade receivable

is considered uncollectible it is written off against the

allowance account Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the
year

ended December 31 2008

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Financial instruments continued

Impairment of financial assets continued

For financial assets measured at amortised cost if in

subsequent period the amount of impairment loss

decreases and the decrease can be related objectively

to an event occurring after the impairment losses was

recognised the previously recognised impairment loss

is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the

carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is

reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would

have been had the impairment not been recognised

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments

will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods

Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss

is recognised directly in equity For available-for-sale

debt investments impairment losses are subsequently

reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment

can be objectively related to an event occurring after the

recognition of the impairment loss

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by

group entity are classified according to the substance of the

contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions

of financial liability and an equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences

residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting

all of its liabilities The Groups financial liabilities are

generally classified into financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss and other financial liabilities The

accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities

and equity instruments are set out below
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Financial instruments continued

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is method of calculating

the amortised cost of financial liability and of allocating

interest expense over the relevant period The effective

interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated

future cash payments through the expected life of

the financial liability or where appropriate shorter

period

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest

basis other than those financial liabilities designated

as at financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss of which the interest expense is included in net

gains or losses

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other

payables amounts due to related companies bank

borrowings and obligations under finance leases are

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest rate method

Convertible loan note

Convertible loan note issued by the Company that contain

both financial
liability

and equity components are classified

separately into respective liability and equity components

on initial recognition

On initial recognition the fair value of the liability

component is determined using the prevailing market

interest rate of similar non-convertible debts The difference

between the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible

loan note and the fair value assigned to the liability

component representing the embedded call option for the

holder to convert the loan note into equity is included

in equity convertible loan note equity reserve
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Financial instruments continued

Convertible loan note continued

In subsequent periods the liability component of the

convertible loan note is carried at amortised cost using

the effective interest method The equity component

representing the option to convert the liability component

into ordinary shares of the Company will remain in

convertible loan note equity reserve until the embedded

option is exercised which the convertible loan note

equity reserve and the carrying amount of the liability

component at the time of conversion is transferred to

share capital and share premium as consideration for the

shares issued Where the option remains unexercised at

the expiry date the balance stated in convertible loan

note equity reserve will be released to the accumulated

losses No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon

conversion or expiration of the option

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible

loan note are allocated to the liability and equity

components in proportion to the allocation of the gross

proceeds Transaction costs relating to the equity component

are charged directly to equity Transaction costs relating

to the liability component are included in the carrying

amount of the liability portion and amortised over the

period of the convertible loan note using the effective

interest method

Equity instruments

Repurchase of the Companys own equity instruments

is recognised and deducted directly in equity No gain

or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase

sale issue or cancellation of the Companys own equity

instruments
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

LflA1H-nR H-h-- hJ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Financial instruments continued

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date

derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently

remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet

date The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit

or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated

and effective as hedging instrument in which event

the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends

on the nature of the hedge relationship The Group

designates certain derivatives as either hedges of the fair

value of fixed-rate bank borrowings fair value hedges

and hedges of highly probable forecast transactions for

foreign currency exposure cash flow hedges or hedges

of net investments in foreign operations

Financial guarantee contracts

financial guarantee contract is contract that requires

the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the

holder for loss it incurs because specified debtor

fails to make payment when due in accordance with

the original or modified terms of debt instrument

financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and

not designed as at fair value through profit or loss is

recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs

that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial

guarantee contract Subsequent to initial recognition the

Group measures the financial guarantee contact at the

higher of the amount determined in accordance with

HKAS 37 Provisions Contingent Liabilities and Contingent

Assets and ii the amount initially recognised less

when appropriate cumulative amortisation recognised

in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Financial instruments continued

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to

receive cash flows from the assets expire or the financial

assets are transferred and the Group has transferred

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of

the financial assets On derecognition of financial asset

the difference between the assets carrying amount and

the sum of the consideration received and the cumulative

gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity

is recognised in profit or loss

Financial liabilities are derecognised from the Groups

consolidated balance sheet when the obligation specified

in the relevant contract is discharged cancelled or

expires The difference between the carrying amount of

the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost

and net realisable value

Impairment

At each balance sheet date the Group reviews the

carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible

assets to determine whether there is any indication that

those assets have suffered an impairment loss or the

impairment loss recognised in prior years is no longer

exist or have decreased If the recoverable amount of an

asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount the

carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable

amount An impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Impairment continued

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverse the carrying

amount of the asset other than goodwill is increased to

the revised estimate of its recoverable amount but so

that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the

carrying amount that would have been determined had

no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior

years reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

For grants of share options which are conditional upon

satisfying specified vesting conditions the fair value of

services received determined by reference to the fair value

of share options granted at the grant date is expensed

on straight-line basis over the vesting period with

corresponding increase in equity share options reserve

The impact of the revision of the original estimates

during the vesting period if any is recognised in profit

or loss with corresponding adjustment to share options

reserve

For share options which are vested at the date of grant

the fair value of the share options granted is expensed

immediately to profit or loss

At the time when the share options are exercised the

amount previously recognised in share options reserve

will be transferred to share premium When the share

options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still

not exercised at the expiry date the amount previously

recognised in share options reserve will be transferred

to retained profits
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Accounting for derivative financial

instruments and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date

derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently

remeasured at their fair value at each balance sheet

date The method of recognising the resulting gain or

loss depends on whether the derivativeis designated as

hedging instrument and if so the nature of the item

being hedged The Group designates certain derivatives

as either hedges of the fair value of recognised assets

or liabilities or firm commitment fair value hedge

and ii hedges of highly probable forecast transactions

cash flow hedge

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction

the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged

items as well as its risk management objective and strategy

for undertaking various hedge transactions The Group

also documents its assessment both at the inception

of the hedge and on an ongoing basis of whether the

derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are

highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or

cash flows of the hedged items

Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are

designated and qualify as fair value hedges are

recognised in the consolidated income statement

immediately together with any changes in the fair

value of the hedged item that is attributable to the

hedged risk The adjustment to the carrying amount

of the hedged item for which the effective interest

is used is amortised to profit or loss as soon as an

adjustment exists The adjustment is based on

recalculated effective interest rate at the date the

amortisation begins

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group

revokes the hedge relationship the hedging instrument

expires or is sold terminated or exercised or no

longer qualifies for hedge accounting
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

continued

Accounting for derivative financial

instruments and hedging activities

continued

ii Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value

of derivatives that are designated and qualify as

cash flow hedges are recognised in equity The

gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is

recognised immediately in the consolidated income

statement

Amounts accumulated in equity are recognised in

the consolidated income statement as the underlying

hedged items are recognised When hedging

instrument expires or is sold or when hedge no

longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting any

cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that

time remains in equity and is recognised when the

forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the

consolidated income statement When forecast

transaction is no longer expected to occur the

cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity

is immediately transferred to the consolidated

income statement

iiiDerivatives that do not qualify for hedge

accounting and those not designated as

hedges

Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments

that do not qualify for hedge accounting and those

not designated as hedges are recognised immediately

in the consolidated income statement

tUI

ii ftIcP

p01

01 01 0101 r3

7I3
ri .o

iiiif_
Th1I-

77J
P01

Annual Report 2008 I1ç 97



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year
ended December 31 2008

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Groups accounting policies

which are described in note management is required

to make judgements estimates and assumptions about

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not

readily apparent from other sources The estimates and

associated assumptions are based on historical experience

and other factors that are considered to be relevant

Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed

on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates

are recognised in the period in which the estimate is

revised if the revision affects only that period or in the

period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods

Provision for impairment loss on trade

and other receivables

The provision for impairment loss on trade and other

receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation

of collectability and aging analysis of accounts and

on managements judgment considerable amount of

judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation

of these receivables including the current creditworthiness

and the past collection history of each account If the

financial conditions of the debtors were to deteriorate

resulting in an impairment of their ability to make

payments additional allowances may be required

Provision for obsolete inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis

at each balance sheet date and makes provision for

obsolete and slow-moving inventory items The management

estimates the net realisable value for such finished goods

based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current

market conditions The Group carries out an inventory

review on product-by-product basis at each balance

sheet date and makes provision for obsolete items
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY continued

Estimated impairment for goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an

estimation of the value in use of the cash generating

units to which goodwill has been allocated The value in

use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future

cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating

unit and suitable discount rate in order to calculate

the present value As at December 31 2008 the carrying

amount of goodwill was approximately HK$31 61 1000

2007 HK$2787000 Details of the recoverable amount

calculation are disclosed in note 19

Fair value of derivatives and other

financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not

traded in an active market is determined by using

valuation techniques The Group uses its judgement to

select variety of methods and make assumptions that

are mainly based on market conditions existing at each

balance sheet date

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous

jurisdictions Significant judgement is required in

determining the worldwide provision for income taxes

Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different

from the amounts that were initially recorded such

differences will accordingly be adjusted in the relevant

tax account in the year in which such determination is

made

31611000fT
2787000 II1

WJfftJ

flI
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year
ended December 31 2008

TURNOVER u1
2008

HK$ooO

2007

HK$OOO

Sales of goods to customers

less returns and discounts 1ft111 1232657 1071904

Maintenance service income 74589 65866

Rental income fliA 983 5431

1308229 11 53201

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS

Business segments

Principal activities of the Group are as follows

Cars and car Trading of cars and related

accessories accessories and provision

of car repairing services

Electrical Distribution of air- 1JiJii

appliances conditioning products

audio-visual equipment

including car audio

home appliances and

installation of

air-conditioning products

Property Rental of investment

investment properties and properties

held for sale

Fashion apparels Distribution and retail

and accessories of fashion apparels and

accessories
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS continued

Business segments continued
Prior to the year ended December 31 2008 the Group

organised into three operating divisions cars and car

accessories electrical appliances and property investment

In current year the Group has reclassified its previously

reporting business segments into four operating divisions

cars and car accessories electrical appliances property

investment and fashion apparels and accessories These

divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its

primary segment information

Segment information about these businesses is presented

below

th1Um

EEI

Annual Report 2008 iiiU



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL th5Th
SEGMENTS continued

Business segments continued

2008

Cars Fashion

and car Electrical
Peoperty apparels

and

accessories appliances investment accessories Others Eliminations Consolidated

fF 1th 0Jf

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

Turnover

External sales 1004038 196120 983 48725 58363 1308229

Inter-segorent sales 149 25 174

Total turnover 1004038 196269 983 48750 58363 174 1308229

Inter-segment
sales are charged

at prevailing
market rate

Results

Segment results 36858 405 2036 20740 8970 4707

Interest income 8812

Unallocated
corporate expenses

37218

Loss from
operations

23699

Finance costs 8298

Impairment on available-fur-sale

financial assets 9000

Provision for
guarantee

950

Transaction costs for

terminated acquisition
6008

Share of results of associates 18 18

Share of result of

jointly controlled entity 3000 3000

Loss before tao 50973

Income tax
expenses

8079

Loss for the
year

59052
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSMftJ
For the year ended December 31 2008

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL th1ia
SEGMENTS continued

Business segments continued
2008

Cars Fashion

and car Electrical Property apparels and

accessories appliances innestmeot accessories Others Eliminations Consolidated

fltft BflHh il

HK$000 HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$000 HK$000 HK$OOO HK$000

fl fl flic flTt flf

Consolidated balance sheet

Assets

Segrnert assets 384660 79793 38659 93742 53199 650053

Irterests in associates 95 95

Interest in
jointly

controlled
entity

Unallocated
corporate assets 214627

Consolidated total assets 864775

Liabilities

Segment liabilities 5jj 250268 24101 429 36886 15376 327060

Unallocated
corporate

liabilities ttIIflM 211814

Consolidated total liabilities 538874

Cars Fashion

and car Electrical Property apparels and

accessories appliances investment accessories Others Unallocated Consolidated

MMfl1 nn nns
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$OOO

Other information

Capital eopenditores 12657 269 189 6243 87 30616 50061

Depreciation 7174 478 52 2307 t92 259t 12794

Amertisatior of prepaid lease
payments

4ffiJI 25 272 306

Fair voIce losses

on ineestment properties 64t 641

Write-down of
properties

held for

sale to net realisable value 2250 2250

Fair value losses on other financial

assets at fair value
through profit

or loss 11 11

Gain/jlossj on disposal
of

property
W$i

plant and eqoipment J/ 1028 86 103 1046

Impairment on available-for-sale

financial assets 9000 9000

Provision for
guarantee

i1tj 950 950
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS continued

Business segments continued

2007 Restated

Cars Fashion

and car Electrical Property apparels and

accessories appliances investment accessories Others Eliminations Consolidated

HK$080 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

it JL

Turnover

External sales 883787 208526 15431 200 45257 1153201

Inter-segment
sales 110 110

Total turnover 883787 208636 5431 200 45257 110 11 53201

Inter-segment
sales are charged

at
prevailing

market rates

Results

Segment
results 23148 1834 11884 2636 3634 30596

Unallocated corporate eopenses
26461

Profit from operations 4135

Finance costs 14355

Impairment on available-for-sale CIW

financial assets 6800

Provision for
guarantee 7500

Gain on disposal
of subsidiaries 76021

Loss on disposal
of an associate 1968

Share of result of an associate 1169 1169

Profit before tax 49164

Income tao
expenses 6256

Profit for the
year 42908
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL IflthHUI
SEGMENTS continued

Business segments continued
2007 Restated

Cars Fashion

and car Electrical
Property apparels

and

accesseries appliances investment accessories Others Eliminations Consolidated

flM02ft flU flU fi flJR

HK$888 HK$888 HK$888 HK$888 HK$888 HK$888 HK$888

fl fl Fft

Consolidated balance sheet

Assets

Segment
assets 288548 84476 33366 3282 28579 438251

Interests io associates

Unallocated
corporate assets 378472

Consolidated total assets 888723

liabilities

Segment liabilities 2tS678 42388 668 558 t8148 268426

Unallocated corporate liabilities 53tI1M 128443

Consolidated total liabilities 397869

Cars Fashion

and car Electrical
Property apparels

and

accessories appliances investment accessories Others Unallocated Consolidated

MUU flU flU Mt flU
HK$888 HK$888 HK$oUU HK$888 HK$888 HK$888 HK$888

UTht flic fifi

Other information

Capital enpenditures 8639 1149 73 698 2736 19581 32788

Oepreciatinv tifi 6713 573 15 138 116 3199 18754

Amortisation of prepaid

lease
payments

yMtlltdt

Fair value gains on

investment properties 2822 2822

Gain/lnss on disposal of
property

11t5

plant and equipment itt 15 437 444

Impairment on available-for-sale

financial assets 6888 6888

Impairment on goodwill 118 118

Provision for
guarantee

ttt 7588 7588
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS continued

Geographical segments

The Groups operations are mainly located in Hong Kong

Singapore Malaysia PRC and Macau The following

table provides an analysis of the Groups turnover by

geographical market irrespective of the origin of the

goods/services

th
th

Turnover by

geographical market

2008 2007

HK$OOO

1308229 1153201

Contribution to

operating results

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

3344 26117

Other operating income

Unallocated corporate

expenses

Loss/profit from operations i1 /ii

HK$OOO

Hong Kong 1030466 980599 5190 23947

Singapore 81395 69539 3480 1999

Malaysia 35804 33532 3129 1727

PRC 153566 57017 14654 1954
Macau 6998 11175 489 280

Others 1339 118

16863 4479

37218 26461

23699 4135
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

IH--- hJ

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS continued

Geographical segments continued

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of

segment assets and capital expenditures analysed by the

geographical area in which the assets are located

Carrying amount

of segment assets

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Capital expenditures

2008

HK$OOO

Annual Report 2OO 07

2007

HK$OOO

Hong Kong 658837 694613 33345 29224

Singapore 30914 30750 181 192

Malaysia 19350 18052 81 216

PRC 55674 57308 16454 3156

864775 800723 50061 32788

OTHER OPERATING INCOME thX
2008 2007

\1E
HK$OOO HK$OOO

Commission income 3297 2479

Licence fee income for the right of

distribution of products 2000

Management fee refunded 580 1900

Interest income 8812

Exchange gain net 769

Fair value gains on derivative

financial instruments 98

Gain on disposal of property

plant and equipment 1046

Sundry income 261 100

16863 4479



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

H-n iii

LOSS/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS flfl/fl
2008 2007

LossJprofit from operations has been

arrived at after charging

LA /AA

Auditors remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses

included write-down of inventories to

net realisable value of approximately

HK$460000 2007 HK$1029000

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

Depreciation of

Owned assets

Assets held under finance leases

Fair value losses on other financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss

Staff costs including directors emoluments

Operating lease rental in respect

of land and buildings

Minimum lease payments

Contingent rentals

Share-based payment expenses

and crediting

Interest income

Foreign exchange differences net

Fair value gains

Other financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Gain on disposal of property

plant and equipment

460000nAA-LA
AA1029000it

Att IAAl

-AAMUIThA

it

/\i d173
ism

IL it

Htlfl 8LAfl

39800

2224

938222
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HK$OOO HK$OOO

H- it

948 915

1059901

306

12493 9871

301 883

11

118454 88749

15916

2153

1922

593

57

444



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008MTPH- iEi

jlE
2008

HK$OOO

2007

HK$OOO

Interest expenses on

Bank loans trust receipts loans

and overdrafts wholly repayable

within five years

Bank loans wholly repayable

after five years

Other loans wholly repayable

within five years

Effective interest expense on

convertible loan note note 31

Iii

N31
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FINANCE COSTS

4970

878

57

1962

11005

91

84

2833

7867 14013

Finance lease charges 28 20

Bank charges 403 322

8298 14355



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008TH
10 INCOME TAX EXPENSES io.F

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% 2007

17.5% of the estimated assessable profit arising in Hong 6.5%

Kong for the year 17.5%

Outside Hong Kong taxation is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the respective jurisdictions

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Current tax

Hong Kong 6953 2058

Outside Hong Kong 1116 193

8069 2251

Deferred tax note 35 35t
Hong Kong 4005

Outside Hong Kong 10

10 4005

Income tax expenses attributable to the

Company and its subsidiaries 8079 6256
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

AH-zH-h-- hl

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSES continued io.fifr1UJ

The tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the

loss/profit before tax as follows

2008 2007

flA
HK$OOO HK$000

Loss/profit before tax ffi/iij 50973 49164

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits 6.5%

Tax rate of 165% LT-fT 17.5%

2007 175% 1-%-h 8411 16.5 8604 17.5

Tax effect of share of

result of
jointly

controlled
entity 498 0.9

Tax effect of expenses that

are not deductible for

tax purposes 7649 5.0 5576 11.3

Tax effect of income that

are not taxable for tax

purposes 2312 4.5 5065 30.6

Under provision in respect

of
prior year 331 0.6

Utilisation of deferred tax

assets previously not

recognised 294 0.6

Utilisation of tax losses

previously not recognised 133 0.2

Tax effect of tax losses

not recognised 8763 17.2 8062 16.4

Effect of different tax rates

of subsidiaries and

associates operating in

other jurisdictions 1688 3.3 627 .3

Tax expenses and effective

tax rate for the year 8079 15.8 6256 12.7

There was no share of tax attributable to associates at H-h
December 31 2008 and 2007
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IfE
For the

year
ended December 31 2008AH

1LLOSS/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic lossIearnings per share is

based on the loss for the year attributable to equity holders

of the Company of approximately HK$68869000 2007

profit of HK$35677000 and on the weighted average

number of 305050834 2007 284961633 restated after

adjusting for the effects of bonus shares issue approved

on April 30 2008 The basic earnings per share for 2007

had been adjusted accordingly note 36

Diluted loss/earnings per share for the years ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 were the same as the basic

loss/earnings per share The Companys outstanding share

options and convertible loan note were not included in the

calculation of diluted loss/earnings per share because

the effects of the Companys outstanding share options

and convertible loan note were anti-dilutive

11 WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

LJ

12 DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES
EMOLUMENTS

Directors emoluments $JII
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight 4t tt -1

Directors 2007 ten Directors were as follows

Other emoluments

Retirement

Salaries Performance benefit

and related scheme

other incentive contributions

benefits payments Total

Fees t1I8i emoluments

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$000 HK$000

Executive Directors

Richard Man Fai LEE 2499 3500 12 6011

Jeff Man Bun LEE 350 352

uk Tang WONG 981 1000 12 1993

Waison Chit
Sing

HUI 1046 400 12 1458

4526 5250 38 9814

Non-executive Director

Kam Har YUE 34 34

Independent

Non-executive Directors

Raymond Cho Mm LEE 90 90

BoonSengTAN 90 90

Ying Kwan CHEUNG 90 90

270 270

Total for 2008 304 4526 5250 38 10118

Annual Report 2008 11



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008AH- hJ

12 DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES 12Jfl
EMOLUMENTS continued

Directors emoluments continued

Other emoluments

Retirement

Salaries Performance benefit

and related scheme

other incentive contributions

benefits payments Total

Fees emoluments

Ij
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

5E 1j

Executive Directors

Wing Sum LEE

Resigned on May 31 2007 fiIJ1 E-- 1800 1800

Richard Man Fai LEE 2482 170 12 2664

Jeff Man Bun LEE 20 21

Sammy Chi Chung SUEN

Resigned on April 19 2007 277 30 311

Tik lung WONG 949 60 12 1021

Waison Chit
Sing

HUI 1027 20 12 1059

6535 300 41 6876

Non-executive Director

Kam Har YUE 33 33

Independent

Non-executive Directors

Raymond Cho Mm LEE 88 88

BoonSengTAN 88 88

Ying Kwan CHEUNG 88 88

264 264

Total for 2007 297 6535 300 41 7173
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For the year ended December 31 2008

H---

12.DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES
EMOLUMENTS continued

Directors emoluments continued

The performance related incentive payments are

determined as percentage of the turnover or the

profit after tax of the Group

There was no arrangement under which Director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year

Employees emoluments

During the year the five highest paid individuals

included two Directors 2007 two Directors details

of whose emoluments are set out in note 12a

above The emoluments of the remaining highest

paid individuals were as follows

12

3U
Ij

12

2008

HK$OOO

2007

HK$OOO
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Salaries and other benefits 6986 6462

Retirement benefits scheme

contributions 24 25

7010 6487



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

12.DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES
EMOLUMENTS continued

Employees emoluments continued

The emoluments of the remaining highest paid

individuals fell within the following bands

12

2008 2007

Number of Number of

employees employees

HK$1000001 HK$1500000 1000001
HK$1500001 HK$2000000 1500001 2000000
HK$2500001 HK$3000000

HK$3000001 HK$3500000 3000001

13 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates mandatory provident fund MPF
scheme for all qualifying employees of its Hong Kong

subsidiaries The assets of the scheme are held separately

from those of the Group in funds under the control of

trustees The retirement benefit cost charged to the income

statement during the year amounted to approximately

HK$2644000 2007 HK$2511000 which represents

contributions paid or payable to the fund by the Group

at the rates specified in the MPF Ordinance

For subsidiaries other than in Hong Kong contributions

are made to the defined contribution schemes by the

Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes

at the relevant jurisdiction The contributions made by

subsidiaries other than in Hong Kong during the year

amounted to HK$2871000 2007 HK$1 01 7000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008AH-iH---

14 PROVISION FOR GUARANTEE

Pursuant to share purchase and subscription agreement

dated June 30 2006 subsidiary of the Company provided

guarantee amounting to maximum of RMB1 1000000

equivalent to approximately HK$1 2500000 as at December

31 2008 to cover the warranty and indemnity clauses

stipulated therein During the year ended December 31

2008 an amount of HK$8450000 has been paid and

HK$950000 2007 HK$7500000 has been recognised

in the consolidated financial statements of the Group

15 TRANSACTION COSTS FORATERMINATED

ACQUISITION

On September 2008 wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company Smart Apex Holdings Limited Smart Apex
entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement with Ms

Chu Wan Kam Sabrina Ms Yeung Sui King and seven

individuals and one body corporate the SKC Vendors

which Smart Apex agrees to acquire 80% of the issued

share capital in SKC Group Limited SKC Group for the

aggregate cash consideration of HK$96200000

On November 12 2008 termination agreement was

entered into between the SKC Vendors and Smart Apex

Pursuant to the termination agreement the Group agreed

to pay an amount of HK$2500000 as compensation in

respect of the termination of acquisition of 80% of issued

share capital of SKC Group The
expenses paid in relation

to this transaction was approximately HK$3508000

14

iioooooo

12500000 JAE

8450000A if

950000 f7500000Br1
15-PJ

96200000A

3508000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fj-
For the year ended December 31 2008

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16.ttll

Investment

properties

Investment outside

properties in Hong Kong

Hong Kong held under

held under medium-

medium- term leases

term leases fff1

Total

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$000

The Group

Fair value

At January 2007 227340 7578 234918

Disposal of subsidiaries 227340 227340

Increase in fair value recognised

in the income statement 2022 2022

At December 31 2007

and January 2008 9600 9600

Acquisition of subsidiary 8041 8041

Decrease in fair value recognised

in the income statement 641 641

At December 31 2008 17000 17000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008AH- hJ

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES continued

The investment properties of the Group were revalued

at December 31 2008 by Raffles Appraisals Limited

2007 Raffles Appraisals Limited independent qualified

professional valuers Raffles Appraisals Limited is the

member of the Hong Kong Institute of Valuers and has

appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the

valuation of similar properties in relevant locations The

valuation which conforms to International Valuation

Standards was arrived by reference to an open market

existing use basis

The Groups investment properties are measured using

the fair value model

The investment properties of the Group are rented out or

available for rent under operating leases purpose further

summary details of which are included in note 41 to the

financial statements

The Group had pledged investment properties with

carrying amount of approximately HK$1 461 0000 2007

HK$7100000 to secure facilities granted to the Group

note 45

16 19 FJ

gij

$ti
N41

14610000
7100000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

17 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17.t4ll

Land and

buildings Land and

outside
buildings

in

Hang Kang Hung Kong

held under held under

medium- medium-

term leases term leases furniture

fiutures and

$ltZl l1l Leasehald equipment Machinery Motor Motor

ht4ff $t4ff impranements ffL and teals nehicles yacht Tutal

2flt UTt tflW flfl fl flU
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

fl NhTTc

The Group

Cast ar naluatian

At
January11

2007 100455 27491 32821 7621 14595 182983

Exchange difference fHh 205 146 110 465

Additions iffi 888 5967 2784 874 3042 7636 311191

Disposal of subsidiaries Wf4l hf 11004551 11004551

Disposals 161 11351 136481 137891

AtDecember3f2007and 1ffE
lunuary 2000 ggg 33657 35616 8499 14099 17636 110395

Exchange difference ffH 11 215 11901 tg 10 36

Acquisition
of subsidiaries

1ff
fff2H1 6394 1776 340 8StD

Additions fffl 2087 16219 3099 1069 1497 23glt

Disposals 11231 14143 139651 82311

At December 31 2008 fR E-1- 899 2087 56362 36150 9586 11961 t7636 t346gt

Representing

At cost 899 2087 56362 36150 9586 11961 17636 134681

At naluatiun 1ff 1fff

099 2087 56362 36150 9566 11961 17636 134601
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

hWW\H-n EH hl

17 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17
continued

Land and

buildings bud and

nutside buildings
in

Hnng Kong Hong Kong

held under held under

medium- medium-

term leases term leases Furniture

fl3Nl09h fl fintures and

ttfl fill Leusehuld equipment Machinery Mutur Motor

fin fl imprunoments fi and tools eehiclns yacht Total

un oun un mn fin
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

fill lftTl lffTl fill fill fill fill fill

The Group

Accomolated
depreciation

ilfiS

At lunuary 2007 24294 16407 29207 5695 6821 02504

Euchange difference lff 70 111 70 255

Prunided fur the
ynur

$lltk 1115 4353 1480 701 2219 882 0754

Dispusul
ef subsidiaries ftll1li$ If 25409 25409

Eliminated

upun dispusals II $$lf 22 21 23 2250

At December 31 2007 II ITIH

and
lanuary

2000 l\lfH 20905 38676 6488 6987 882 65054

Eechange difference ff11 155 27 25 183

Acquisitiun
uf subsidiaries flfflf1 5141 822 225 6188

Preeided fur the yeur 111ff 22 52 6691 214g 816 21g3 gg 12794

Eliminated
upun disposals ff1 30 4279 2364 6673

At December 31 2000 f1iH lIH 26 52 32g62 2934g 7216 7006 1764 7g266

Net book naloes

At December 31 2008 ff\1H 1H 873 2035 23500 6810 2370 4955 15872 56415

At December 31 2007 fff1fI-i- 884 12752 4940 2099 7112 16754 44541

At December 31 2007 the net book value of the Groups

motor vehicles included an amount of HK$2034000 in

respect of assets held under finance leases

Annuat Repore 2008 ccjj4tti0t



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

EH- ihJ

17 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
continued

The Group had pledged land and buildings and motor yacht

with carrying amount of approximately HK$2035000

2007 nil and HK$1 5872000 respectively 2007 nil

to secure facilities granted to the Group at December

31 2008 note 45
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17

Leasehold

improvements

HK$000

4L

45
Furniture

fixtures and

equipment

UL

HK$000

Motor

vehicles

I-s

HK$000

Total

HK$000

The Company

Cost

At January 2007 6244 16786 3234 26264

Additions 28 195 223

Disposals 1548 1548

At December 31 2007 and

January 2008 6272 16981 1686 24939

Additions 187 352 539

Disposals 3196 686 3882

At December 31 2008 6459 14137 1000 21596

Accumulated depreciation

At January 2007 6235 16200 2243 24678

Provided for the year 13 245 259

Eliminated upon disposals 558 558

At December 31 2007 and iiiEH
January 2008 6248 16445 1686 24379

Provided for the year 45 260 305

Eliminated upon disposals ltU4$ 3196 686 3882

At December 31 2008 6293 13509 1000 20802

Net book values

At December 31 2008 166 628 794

At December 31 2007 -iiEEH 24 536 560



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

18.PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18.fi5
The Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Cost

At January 1597

Exchange difference 22

Additions 26090 1597

At December 31 HH-- 27709 1597

Accumulated amortisation

At January

Charge for the year 306

AtDecember3l 311

Net book value

At December 31 27398 1592

The Groups prepaid lease

payments comprise

Land in Hong Kong

Medium term lease 25818

Land outside Hong Kong

Medium term lease 1580 1592

27398 1592

Analysed for reporting purposes as iiEftt
Current assets included in trade

and other receivables 686 34

Non-current assets 26712 1558

27398 1592

The Group had pledged prepaid lease payments with

carrying amount of approximately HK$2581 8000 to

secure facilities granted to the Group at December 31 ft45
2008 note 45
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008AE

19 GOODWILL 19
Iota

HK$OOO

The Group

Cost

At January 2007 2597

Acquisition of subsidiary 308

At December 31 2007

and January 2008 2905

Acquisition of subsidiaries 28824

At December 31 2008 31729

Accumulated impairment

At January 2007

Impairment loss 118

At December 31 2007

and December 31 2008 118

Carrying value

At December 31 2008 31611

At December 31 2007 iEIH 2787

During the year ended December 31 2008 the Group

assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill associated

with the Groups fashion apparels and accessories business

The recoverable amount of the fashion apparels and

accessories operations was assessed by reference to

value in use discount factor of 16.52% per annum was

applied in the value in use model

124 WOKEEHONGHOLDINGSLIMITED lt
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

19 GOODWILL continued

During the year ended December 31 2007 the Group

assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill and

determined that goodwill associated with the Groups

electrical appliances was impaired by approximately

HK$118000 The recoverable amount of the electrical

appliances operations was assessed by reference to value

in use discount factor of 10% per annum was applied

in the value in use model The main factor contributing

to the impairment of the cash-generating unit was the

decrease in the estimated cash flow generated from the

electrical appliances operations

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are

disclosed in note 20

20 IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

As explained in note the Group uses business segments

as its primary segment for reporting segment information

For the purposes of impairment testing goodwill with

indefinite useful lives set out in note 19 has been allocated

to an individual cash generating unit CGU including

subsidiaries in the car and car accessories electrical

appliances and fashion apparels and accessories

segments The carrying amount of goodwill net of

accumulated impairment losses at December 31 2008 was

approximately HK$31611000 2007 HK$2787000

The recoverable amount of the above CGU has been

determined based on value in use calculation That

calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial

budgets approved by management covering five-

year period and discount rate of 6.52% per annum

2007 10% per annum Another key assumption for

the value in use calculations is the budgeted gross

margin which is determined based on the CGUs past

performance and managements expectations for the

market development

i9iH-
118000

t/ILl

20

19B
rHEj

61 ooo
2787000

15 EI

i0%
Ii15
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

iH-

21.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 21

The Company

2008

Wfl
HK$OOO

2007

HK$OOO

Particulars of the Companys principal subsidiaries at

December 31 2008 are shown in note 51

22 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22

The Group

2008 2007

ii-i
HK$OOO HK$OOO

Share of net assets of

associates note 95

Notes

On December 30 2005 Italian Motors Sales Service

Limited subsidiary of the Company and Ferrari S.p.A

entered into an equity interest transfer agreement relating

to the transfer of 29% equity interest Equity Transfer in

Ferrari Maserati Cars International Trading Shanghai Co

Ltd FMC for consideration of US$870000 equivalent

to approximately HK$6800000 For year ended December

31 2007 loss from disposal of 29% equity interest in

FMC together with the realisation of accumulated exchange

differences was approximately HK$1968000

126 WOKEEHONGHOLDINGSLIMITED siitiff IWI fFUt

H4i
1fFerrari

S.p.A.Tt
870000

6800000
2i29%

Fj29%2
19680005

Unlisted shares at cost 296949 301811

Less Impairment loss recognised 30736 30736

266213 271075



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

E-E-- ihJ

22 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES continued

Notes continued

On July 2008
subsidiary of the Company contributed 20% equity interest

company established in the

PRC with registered capital of RMB500000 at total

amount of RMB1 00000 equivalent to approximately

HK$114000

The summarised financial information in respect of the

Groups associates is set out below

Particulars of the Groups principal associates at December

31 2008 are shown in note 52

22.LUi
-EH
Aiooooo
114000fr A1
ff500000

2008

HK$OOO

2007

HK$000

4i52
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Total assets 50837 8884

Total liabilities 43992 5819

Net assets/liabilities 6845 6935

Groups share of net assets of associates 95

Turnover 7261 72

Loss for the year 17883 5244

Groups share of results of

associates for the year 18 1169

Market value of listed securities 20787 84822



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

TAH-flHH--- HiEP

23 INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 23.MreJiL2.lt
ENTITY

The Group

$fl
2008 2007

WW\$ rWWEE
HK$OOO HK$OOO

Unlisted investment at cost 3000

Share of result of jointly controlled entity 3000

Notes

Particulars of the Groups jointly controlled entity as at WA .E
December 31 2008 is as follows

Place of
Percentage

incorporation of equity

registration Particulars attributable to

and operations of issued the Group

Name of entity gE/j share capital $4 Principal activitiesfl flfl

Sweet Years Hong Kong 6000000 shares 5O% Distribution

Asia Limited of HK$1 each and retail of

fashion apparels

19JH6000000 and accessories

Hfl
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

iiL

23 INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITY continued

Notes continued ffff

The summarised financial information in respect of the ti Hi

Groups jointly controlled entity which is accounted for

using equity method of accounting is set out below

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Total assets 2983

Total liabilities 3430

Net liabilities 447

Groups share of net assets of

jointly controlled entity

Turnover 2418

Loss for the year 6447

Groups share of result of jointly

controlled entity for the year 3000
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For the year ended December 31 2008

24 INVENTORIES 24.W
The Group

2008

HK$OOO

2007

HK$OOO

Included in the above figure are finished goods of

approximately HK$11944000 2007 HK$19601000

which have been pledged as security for bank loans

note 45

25 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

11944O00j
19601000

25

Trade receivables 28366 130118

Less allowance for doubtful debts 1604 4832

Total trade receivables net of

allowance for doubtful debts 26762 25286

Deposits prepayments and

other receivables 22742 59789

249504 85075

130 WOKEEHONGHOLDINGSLIMITED iuiL i1

Finished goods 212709 109361

Spare parts 21955 5632

234664 124993

The Group

2008 2007WA
HK$OOO HK$OOO



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

LhL

25.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

continued

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables

net for allowance of doubtful debts at the balance

sheet date

25

ft

Within 30 days 100630 82794

31 to 60 days 10547 18699

61 to 90 days 3911 6048

91 days to year 8075 6396

Over year 1k 3599 1349

Total 126762 125286

The Group allows an average credit period of to 90

days to its customers

Before accepting any new customer the Group uses credit

scoring system to assess the potential customers credit

quality and defines credit limits by customer Limits and

scoring attributed to customers are reviewed twice

year Approximately 90% of the trade receivables that

are neither past due nor impaired have the best credit

scoring attributable under the credit scoring system used

by the Group

Included in the Groups trade receivable balance were

debtors with carrying amount of HK$1 1674000 2007

HK$1 7745000 which are past due at the reporting date

for which the Group has not provided for impairment

loss The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances

177450003

I4

Annual Report 2008
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

25.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25
continued

Ageing of trade receivables which are

past due but not impaired

The Group

2008 2007

\qi
HK$ooO HK$OOO

91 days to year 8075 16396

Over year 3599 1349

Total 11674 17745

Movement in the allowance for doubtful

bts

The Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO95
Balance at beginning of the year 4832 5731

Impairment losses recognised

on receivables 966 1676

Amounts utilised during the year 1358
Amounts recovered during the year 2836 2575

Balance at end of the year 1604 4832

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually EtI

impaired trade receivables with balance of HK$966000

2007 HK$1676000 which were past due and not 1676000
recoverable The impairment recognised represented the

carrying amount of these trade receivables and the Group

does not hold any collateral over these balances
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008v_
25.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

continued

Ageing of impaired trade receivables

The Group

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Within 30 days 500 913

31 to 60 days

61 to 90 days 20

91 days to year 667 763

Over year 417 3156

Total 1604 4832

26 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES 26 I/
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due are unsecured interest-free and have

no fixed terms of repayment
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For the year ended December 31 2008

EE

27.AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 27
ASSETS

134 WOKEEHONGHOLDINGSLIMITED LJ Fti

The Group

2l
2007

HK$OOO

2008

HK$OOO

At January 30527 527

Additions 36000

Impairment loss on available-for-sale

financial assets note 9000 6000

At December 31 21527 30527

Available-for-sale financial assets

at December 31 comprise of

Unlisted securities

Debt securities without interest and

maturity date note I3ffa 527 527

Equity securities note 2j fb 21000 30000

21527 30527

Analysed for reporting purposes as

Current assets

Non-current assets 21527 30527

21527 30527



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

27 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

continued

Notes

The fair values of unlisted available-for-sale debt investments

have been estimated based on observable market prices

or rates

The unlisted equity securities are measured at fair value

Fair value is estimated based on observable market prices

or rates of similar equity securities In determining the

fair value risk adjusted discount rate of 10.6% 2007

15.04% was used

During the year ended December 312008 the Group assessed

whether there was any objective evidence that the unlisted

equity securities were impaired and determined that the

unlisted equity securities were impaired by approximately

HK$9000000 2007 HK$6000000 The main factor

contributing to the impairment was the changes in the

fair value of the unlisted equity securities

28.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

27

iff
ff-o

10.6%- 15.04%J%

9000000-EE 6000000

28

The Group and

the Company

2008 2007AE
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HK$OOO HK$OOO

At January 17 11

Fair value Iosses/gains on other

financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss /ti 11

AtDecember3l 17

Market value of listed securities

Equity securities listed in I-long Kong 17



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

28.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

continued

The carrying amounts of the above financial assets were

classified as held for trading

All financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are

stated at fair values Fair values of the listed investments

are determined by reference to the quoted market bid

prices available on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited

29 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances are interest bearing at respective saving

deposits rate in Hong Kong PRC Singapore and Malaysia

and the effective interest rate of the Groups bank

balances ranged from 0.1 8% to 13.00% 2007 2.09%

to 5.70% per annum

At the balance sheet date the cash and bank balances of

the Group included currencies denominated in Renminbi

RMB amounted to approximately HK$8974000 2007

HK$7985000 which is not freely convertible into other

currencies

At December 31 2008 bank balances amounts to

approximately HK$1 06565000 2007 HK$86796000

have been pledged to securing banking facilities granted

to the Group note 45 The pledged bank deposits will be

released upon the settlement of relevant bank borrowings

The pledged bank balances carry interest rate range from

0.01% to 4.50% 2007 2.39% to 5.07% per annum
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28

r4 ft

29

4F
4L

0.18%

13.00%LI-LT 2.09%5.70%

tAAJ
8974000AI

7985000A

106565000A-fi
867960007

PItt45

i1J0.01%
4.50% i-I2.39%5.07%



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008nTAn

30 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following were an aged analysis of trade payables

at the balance sheet date

31.CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTE

The Company issued 7.25% convertible loan note in the

principal amount of HK$30000000 on August 18 2005 to

Hanny Holdings Limited Hanny The convertible loan

note is denominated in Hong Kong dollars The convertible

loan note entitles the holder to convert it into ordinary

shares of the Company at any time between the date of

issue of the convertible loan note and the settlement

date on September 2008 at conversion price of

HK$1.00 per convertible loan note If the convertible

loan note has not been converted it will be redeemed

on September 2008 at par Interest of 7.25% will be

paid semi-annually up until the settlement date Further

details of which are set out in the announcement of the

Company dated August 18 2005

301jfl

2008

flWW\1E

HK$OOO

Mt

The Group

2007

HK$OOO

AATA

T4RlTL1SEh31 0J1cflXflFAATAA iiAA

300000005t A7.25%A

MAAAAAA

ii

AA 1.00

AflAAA
7.25%AAAAAA
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Within 30 days 26627 7995

31 to 60 days 2575 3111

61 to 90 days 7740 8953

91 days to year 6928 1410

Over
year 528 2314

Total trade payables AAA1tAAAA 54398 23783

Customers deposits accruals

and other payables 276091 220173

330489 243956



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

-l--- ihL

31 CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTE continued

The convertible loan note contains two components

liability and equity components Upon initial recognition

the convertible loan note was split between the liability

and equity components The equity component is presented

in equity heading Equity component of convertible

loan note The effective interest rate of the liability

component is 10%

On September 2008 the Company redeemed the

convertible loan note in consideration of HK$30000000

and discharge all of the Companys liabilities and

obligations including interest payment obligations

under the convertible loan note

The movement of the liability component of the convertible

loan note for the year is set out below

At December 31 2007 the fair value of the liability

component of the convertible loan note approximated

to its corresponding carrying amounts

138 WOKEEHONGHOLDINGSLIMITED 4j L1 ult4iH

J-RH J1Q%

1tiI
T- 17 If\

7j

2008

HK$OOO

2007

HK$OOO

The Group and

the Company

Face value of convertible loan note 30000 30000

Transaction cost 1735 1735

Equity component 85 85

Liability component on initial recognition

at August 18 2005 28080 28080

Interest charged 8439 6477

Interest paid 6519 4350

Redemption 30000

Liability component at December 31 EE 30207



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008iE

32AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED
Co PA ES

The Group The Company

2I
2008 2007 2008 2007WA WAIE

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Amounts repayable

within one year 944 1343 441 441

The amounts included in the current liabilities are

unsecured non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms

of repayment The related companies are controlled by

certain Directors of the Company
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the
year ended December 31 2008

EJ

33 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 33 ll
Present value of

lease payments

2008

HK$OOO

minimum lease

payments1PA1
2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

For the year ended December 31 2007 the average

effective borrowing rate was approximately 4% per annum

Interest rates are fixed at the contract date All leases

were on fixed repayment basis and no arrangement had

been entered into for contingent rental payments The

Groups obligations under finance leases were secured

by the charge over the leased assets

40 WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED f- Li

gIjrjJ4%

Minimum

2007

HK$OOO

The Group

Amounts payable under

finance leases

Within one year 1003 936

In the second to

fifth
year inclusive 194 168

1197 1104

Less Future finance charges 93

Present value of

lease obligations 1104 1104

Analysed as I1-F
Amounts due within

one year shown under TIi1iJ
current liabilities 936

Amounts due

after one year 168

1104



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008JH-Eh

34 BORROWINGS 34.PA

2008

HK$OOO

The Group

2j
2007

HK$OOO

Bank overdrafts 6908 583

Bank loans 180336 83750

Other loan 3384

190628 84333

Secured note 45 1fI 45 176885 75309

Unsecured 3743 9024

90628 84333

The maturities of the

above loans are as follows

Within one year 152919 70827

More than one year but not

exceeding two years 4921 2760

More than two years but not

exceeding five
years 2641 4305

More than five years 20147 6441

90628 84333

Less Amounts due within one year

shown under current liabilities 152919 70827

Amounts due after one year 37709 13506

Annual Report 2008 41



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ffE
For the year ended December 31 2008

----7j

34 BORROWINGS continued

The ranges of effective interest rates which are also equal

to contracted interest rates on the Groups borrowings

are as follows

34.gpI

2008 2007

Effective interest rate

Variable-rate borrowings 244% 8.75% 5.24% 8.75%

The Groups borrowings that are denominated in currencies

other than the functional currency are set out below

RMBOOO EUROOO JPYOOO MYROOO SGDOOo USD000

AJF

At December 31 2008 6100 633 1722 1345 997

At December 31 2007 25549 1887 823 226

During the year the Group obtained new bank borrowings

in the amount of approximately HK$557194000 2007

HK$496629000 The borrowings bear interest at market

rates and the proceeds were used to finance the working

capital

The fair values of the Groups borrowings at December

31 2008 approximate to the corresponding carrying

amounts

The borrowings were secured by certain assets of the

Group details were set out in note 45

The other loan is short-terms of borrowing which is

unsecured bear interest at approximately 2% per month

and repayable within one year
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For the year ended December 31 2008

35 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

The Group 2lI
Accelerated

tax Tax

depreciation losses Total

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

At January 2007 11 19915 4215 5700

Released on disposal

of subsidiaries 9909 194 19715

Charged to income statement

for the year 4005 4005

At December 31 2007

and January 2008 16 10

Exchange difference

Charged to income statement

for the year 10

At December 31 2008 12 10

Annual Report 2008 43
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tE
For the year ended December 31 2008

35 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
continued

The Group continued

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances

for financial reporting purposes

35 /ii

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Deferred tax liabilities 12

Deferred tax assets 10 16

10

At December 31 2008 the Group has unused tax losses of

approximately HK$1 07000000 2007 HK$1053600000

available for offset against future profits deferred tax

asset has been recognised in respect of approximately

HK$61000 2007 HK$91000 of such losses No deferred

tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining

amount of approximately HK$1 06939000 2007

HK$1053509000 due to the unpredictability of future

profit streams The tax losses may be carried forward

either years or indefinitely

44 WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED WI

1053600000k

1106939000-
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For the year ended December 31 2008

TA H--- H-

36 SHARE CAPITAL 36.1i9

Number of shares Nominal value

in
HK$000

Authorised

At January 2007 December 31 2007

and January 2008 of HK$1.00 each TT-LH-\H-
llHIfi.OOHt 350000000 350000

Effect of
capital reorgainsation note $IfHH-I fic 3150000000

At December 31 2008 of HK$0.10 each H-TTA H-
OH- 500000000 50000

Issued and
fully paid

At January 2007 of HK$1.00 each H-.H
221615433 221615

Exercise of share options note H1JHH-t 11ftEa 2433042 2433

Issue of shares upon acquisition
of

available-for-sale financial assets lH4H-tfH- yMtb

note 31266284 31266

At December 31 2007 and January 2008 HTH-J
of HK$1.00 each

WH-H-i1 .00 255314759 255314

Effect of share reduction note fl23H-MHt NH-d 229782

Issue of bonus shares note 51062951 5106

Repurchase of shares note H- tf 2350000 1235

At December 31 2008 of HK$0.10 each H-I
M0.10 294027710 29403

During the year ended December 31 2007 2433042

share options were exercised and 2433042 ordinary

shares of HK$1.00 each were issued The subscription

money of approximately HK$2433000 was credited

to share capital

T-E1H-THH-
243304211H-taH-
tj2433042

1.005t.JH
2433000HH$AJ$
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For the year ended December 31 2008

On August 13 2007 National Cape Development

Limited an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company entered into share acquisition agreement

with Yang Pei Executive Talent Limited Ye Al Fang

as vendors Lau Chi Yuen Joseph and Yuen Nim Cho

as guarantors to acquire 10% issued share capital

in Corning Investments Limited at consideration

of HK$36000000 Corning Investments Limited

is interested in the entire issued share capital of

Digital Outdoor Television Hong Kong Limited which

together with its wholly-owned subsidiary Todays

Media Limited are principally engaged in the business

of the provision of outdoor media advertising and

broadcasting network The acquisition was completed

on August 24 2007 total of 31266284 new shares

of the Company had been issued and allotted as

consideration upon completion

Pursuant to resolution passed by the shareholders

of the Company at special general meeting held on

April 30 2008 each authorised but unissued share

was subdivided into 10 shares

Pursuant to resolution passed by the shareholders

of the Company at special general meeting held on

April 30 2008 the nominal value of each share in

issue reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.10 by canceling

paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.90 for each

issued share

Pursuant to resolution passed by the shareholders

of the Company at special general meeting held

on April 30 2008 51062951 bonus shares were

issued of HK$0.10 each for every five adjusted

shares of HK$0.10 each held by the shareholders

whose names appeared on the register of members

of the Company on April 30 2008 The amount of

HK$51 06295 was capitalised from the Companys

retained profit account

36 A4
11f 2i Executive Talent

Limited

131

36000000A

AHE
1AA A31 266284AA AA

131AA

E1A$AA0.90A
31

A0.i0A

AA
H-

AAAAA51 062951 f3A

AAAf0.10AIAo
5106295

36 SHARE CAPITAL continued
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For the year ended December 31 2008

36 SHARE CAPITAL continued 36
During the year the Company repurchased its own Jf

ordinary shares through the Stock Exchange of Hong 2i 2l

Kong Limited as follows

No of ordinary

shares at

HK$0.10 each Price per share Aggregate

Date of consideration

repurchase 0.10Tc Highest Lowest paid

HK$ HK$ HK$

August 12 2008 485000 0.50 0.50 242500

August 13 2008 800000 0.54 0.51 417000

August 14 2008 605000 0.51 0.51 308550

August 15 2008 Tj\/k 460000 0.51 0.51 234600

December 16 2008 4000000 0.53 0.52 2100000

December 17 2008 6000000 0.53 0.49 3099700

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase

None of the Companys subsidiaries repurchased

sold or redeemed any of the Companys listed shares

during the year

All the shares issued during the year rank pan passu

with the then existing shares in all respects
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ttt1J
For the year ended December 31 2008

TAtcfl H-- jj

37 RESERVES 37 M4

The Company

Share Convertible

Capital options loan note

redemption reserve reserve Contriboted

Share reserve 1% JtftQ sorplosAccomnlated

premiom Ub$ flU tA losses Total

tn

HK$888 HK$808 HK$080 HK$008 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

$h

At
January

2007 916 105 361491 509453 146861

Recognition
of

equity-settled

share based
payment 2153 2153

Issue of shares
upon

eoercise

of share
options

226 72 154

Issue of shares
upon acquisition

of aeailable-for-sale financial assets 4734 4734

Lapse of share options 64 64

Loss for the
year 28940 28940

At December 31 2007

and
January

2000 TT\ 4960 916 2017 185 361491 538329 68760

Redemption
of convertible lean note f185 185

Arising
from

capital reduction 229782 229782

Elimination of accumulated

losses
upon capital reorganisation M$tf 538329 538329

Issue of bonus shares f5 06 51 06

Cancellation on repurchase of shares 4960 1235 1441 51 66

Lapse of share options 180 180

Loss for the
year 45429 45429

At December 31 2008 2151 1837 46397 45064 5321
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

37 RESERVES continued

The Company continued

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda as amended

the Company can make distribution out of contributed

surplus However the Company cannot declare or pay

dividend or make distribution out of contributed

surplus if

it is or would after the payment be unable to pay

its liabilities as they become due or

the realisable value of its assets would thereby

be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium accounts

At December 31 2008 the Company had distributable

reserves available for distribution of approximately

HK$1333000 2007 nil

37.14i

11AIAA

333000A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ftiE

For the year ended December 31 2008

38.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 381
On January 28 2008 the Group acquired 100% of the

issued share capital of Sunny Villa Holdings Limited at

consideration of HK$2500000 The amount of goodwill

arising as result of the acquisition was approximately

HK$1 45000

The net assets acquired in the transaction and the goodwill

arising were as follows

Acquire

carrying

amount and

fair value

HK$OOO

Net assets/liabilities acquired

Investment properties 8041

Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents 29

Trade and other payables 1839
Secured bank loan 3660

2573

Goodwill 145

Transaction costs 218

Total consideration 2500

Satisfied by

Cash 2500

Net cash outflow from acquisition

Cash consideration 2500
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 29

2471
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

38 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

continued

Sunny Villa Holdings Limited contributed approximately

loss of HK$41 3000 to the Groups loss for the period

between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet

date

If the acquisition had been completed on January

2008 total Group revenue for the year would have

been approximately HK$1308229000 and loss for the

year would have been approximately HK$59071000 The

proforma information is for illustrative purposes only and

is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of

the Group that actually would have been achieved had

the acquisition been completed on January 2008 nor

is it intended to be projection of future results

On May 30 2008 the Group acquired 60% of the

issued share capital in Creative Pacific Limited at

consideration of HK$1 9500000 Part of the consideration

of HK$9750000 is subject to adjustments to be made

based on the aggregate audited net profits before tax ofUPA1 and

in 2009 and 2010 and shall be paid in two

instalments The adjustments were not included at the

date of acquisition as the amount was not probable and

could not be measured reliably The amount of goodwill

arising as result of the acquisition was approximately

HK$28679000

38 WUR
IIQ fP fTh

f41 300051

13082290005t

f59071000A

HT$A1fl
MALfi

H1f

fHAAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008J-l- EJ

38 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 38
continued

The net liabilities acquired in the transaction and the

goodwill arising were as follows I1T

Acquirees

carrying

amount and

fair value

HK$OOO

Net assets/liabilities acquired

Property plant and equipment 2322

Inventories 26896

Trade and other receivables 16494

Cash and cash equivalents 2156

Trade and other payables 68773

Borrowing 8379
Tax payable

Net liabilities 29288

60% of net liabilities acquired I60% 7573

Goodwill 28679

Transaction costs 1356

Total consideration 9750

Satisfied by

Cash 9750

Net cash outflow from acquisition

Cash consideration 9750
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 2156

7594
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

Lh

38 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

continued

Goodwill arose in the business combinations because the

cost of the combinations included premium paid to acquire

Creative Pacific Limited In addition the consideration

paid for the combinations effectively included amounts

in relation to the benefit of expected synergies revenue

growth future market development and the assembled

workforce of Creative Pacific Limited These benefits are

not recognised separately from goodwill as the future

economic benefits arising from them cannot be reliably

measured

Creative Pacific Limited and its subsidiaries Creative Pacific

Group contributed approximately loss of HK$431 7000

to the Groups loss for the period between the date of

acquisition and the balance sheet date

If the acquisition had been completed on January

2008 total Group revenue for the year would have been

approximately HK$1 33231 3000 and loss for the year

would have been approximately HK$77527000 The

proforma information is for illustrative purposes only and

is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of

the Group that actually would have been achieved had

the acquisition been completed on January 2008 nor

is it intended to be projection of future results

38 l4

IlkIlkW
iii kftij

4317000

giIlk
13323130005t

f775270005t

JLi
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

39 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 39

The net assets of subsidiaries at the date of disposal

were as follows

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Net assets disposed of

Investments properties 227340

Properties plant and equipment 75046

Deferred tax assets 194

Trade and other receivables 803

Cash and cash equivalents 149

Trade and other payables 5057
Tax payable 1692
Deferred tax liabilities 19909

276874

Net consideration 357613

80739

Transaction costs 4718

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 76021

Satisfied by

Cash 357613

Net cash inflow from disposal

Cash consideration 357613

Transaction costs paid 4718
Cash and cash equivalents disposed 149

352746
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008AH-H- ih

39 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES continued

On September 13 2007 Wo Kee Hong B.V.l Limited WKH
BVI wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered

into sale and purchase agreement that WKH BVI agreed to

sell the entire issued share capital of Wo Kee Hong Estates

Limited WKH Estates and Ever Rising Investments

Limited Ever Rising two wholly-owned subsidiary of

WKH BVI for total consideration of HK$373000000

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement WKH BVI

and the purchaser shall agree to the adjustments on assets

and liabilities of WKH Estates and Ever Rising which is

determined by reference to the balance sheets of WKH

Estates and Ever Rising The adjusted liabilities exceed

the adjusted assets by approximately HK$1 5387000

and the resulting net consideration received by WKH BVI

was approximately HK$35761 3000 The disposal was

completed on November 29 2007 and the transaction

costs incurred were approximately HK$471 8000 The gain

of such disposal was approximately HK$76021000

39 2iUiI

Kee Hong BV.l Limited

thWKH
BVI iWo Kee

Hong Estates Limited rwKH Estates

Ever Rising Investments Limited

RisingBJ2l
5f373000000t

WKH BVl EstatesEverRising
J5WKH EstatesEver Rising
1iff
BVl 35761 3000

to -H--YL
f4718000
76021000t
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ftE
For the year ended December 31 2008Hd

40 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the balances with related parties disclosed

elsewhere in the financial statements during the year

the Group entered into the following significant related

party transactions

40

7E i1

TIJ

Management and agency fee paid to

related company which received the

amounts on behalf of building

management fund

Advisory fee paid to related

company

Purchase of goods from related

company

Purchase of goods from director

Sales of goods to related companies

Acquisition of share capital

and shareholders loan of

company owned by director

tt

tx

Aa
--$
RIT-1XI

The pricing of transactions regarding advertising

sponsorship air-conditioning maintenance service

fee artist fee received management and agency fees

advisory fee goods sold to related company and

goods purchased from related company/a director

were determined by the Directors on the basis of

estimated market value

The related companies acted as building manager

to operate building management fund for building

owned by the Group and collected the management

and agency fee from the Group on behalf of the

building management fund During the year ended

December 31 2007 HK$313000 management fee

and HK$1 62000 accounting service fee were paid

to the related company by the building management

fund

An1
-4B
rfl HIHjE

--
f162000b
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2007

HK$OOO

3822
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the
year

ended December 31 2008H-H-

40 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

continued

On September 18 2008 subsidiary of the Company

Auto Italia Limited purchased unit of vintage Ferrari

from director and controlling shareholder of the

Company Dr Richard Man Fai Lee Further details

were set out in the announcement of the Company

dated September 18 2008

On January 28 2008 Wo Kee Hong B.V.l Limited

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired

100% interest in the issued share capital of Sunny Villa

Holdings Limited Sunny Villa and shareholders

loan Sunny Villa was wholly owned by director

and controlling shareholder of the Company Dr

Richard Man Fai Lee The transaction was on normal

commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual

course of business of the Company For details

please refer to note 38

On November 26 2008 Wo Kee Hong Limited

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

provided letter of credit issued by the bank for

an amount of HK$4000000 to

60% owned indirect

subsidiary of the Company to secure bank loan

to up to RMB4000000

40

LA
14 __ -- z\lJL

Wo Kee Hong

B.V.l

E2I100%Xo
bJ

4\

4000000

4000000
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fn
For the year ended December 31 2008

40 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

continued

Compensation of key management

personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key

management during the year were as follows

40JAUi

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Fees 304 297

Salaries and other benefits 8207 6535

Performance related incentive payments 8555 300

Retirement benefit scheme contributions 62 41

Short-term employee benefits 17128 7173

The remuneration of Directors and other members of

key management are determined by the remuneration

committee having regard to the performance of individuals

and market trends

41.OPERATING LEASE

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned net of outgoings of

approximately HK$647000 2007 HK$4926000

during the year was approximately HK$336000 2007

HK$10505000.The property held has committed tenants

for the next year

158 WOKEEHONGHOLDTNGSLIMJTED ilii flJ tt1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fiE
For the year ended December 31 2008

41 OPERATING LEASE continued 41

The Group as lessor continued

At the balance sheet date the Group had contracted with

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments

which fall due

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Within one year 665 373

In the second to fifth year inclusive 185

850 373

The Group as lessee

2008 2007WA
HK$OOO HK$OOO9_

Operating lease rental recognised in

the income statement for the
year 42024 5916

At the balance sheet date the Group had commitments

under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due

as follows

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Within one year 53537 22947

In the second to fifth year inclusive 78194 25096

131731 48043
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

41 OPERATING LEASE continued

The Group as lessee continued

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by

the Group for certain of its office premises retail shops

and warehouse Leases are negotiated for an average

term of two years and rentals are fixed for an average

of one year

The above lease commitments only include commitments

for basic rentals and do not include commitments for

additional rental payment contingent rents if any

which are to be determined generally by applying pre

determined percentages to future sales less of the

respective leases

At December 31 2008 the Company had no significant

commitments under non-cancellable operating leases

2007 Nil

42 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

41

IIIzfl
/\ L-L

YJ 1-LE

Capital expenditure in respect of the

acquisition of property plant and

equipment and leasehold improvement

not provided in the consolidated

financial statements

authorised but not contracted for

contracted but not provide for

Other commitments contracted for but

not provided in the consolidated

financial statements in respect of

investment in subsidiary

note

investment in jointly

controlled entity note

2018

579

46

60 WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED il

42.4

2008

HK$000

The Group

2007

HK$OOO

JFJ
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ft4a
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI

42 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS continued 427t1
Notes

On May 16 2008 Famous Name Holdings Limited wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Company entered into the Share

Acquisition Agreement with Victory Globe International

Limited Creative Pacific Vendor Mr Chan Chun Wa
Vincent and the Company to acquire 60% of issued share

capital in Creative Pacific Limited Creative Pacific at

consideration of HK$19500000 HIHIHIIHI
PHIAHI NCS and HIHIHIHIHI AHI HIHIHIIH

AHI NCY are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Creative

Pacific

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement the balance

of the consideration HK$9750000 retained by the Group

and shall be paid in two instalments for certain subsidiaries

The balance of the consideration is subject to price

adjustment mechanism which is determined by the financial

performance achieve by NCS and NCY during the specified

profit evaluation periods which based on the aggregate

audited net profits before tax of the NCS and NCY in 2009

and 2010 If the financial performance of NCS and NCY

during the specified profit evaluation period does not

meet the guarantee profit the Creative Pacific Vendor will

have to compensate the Group for the price adjustment by

reducing the balance of the consideration If the financial

performance of subsidiaries during such profit evaluation

period exceeds guarantee profit then the Group is required

to make additional cash contribution to the Creative Pacific

Vendor

On May 20 2008 Trendy Move International Limited

wholly owned subsidiary of the Group entered into an

shareholders agreement with the joint venture partners

pursuant to which the Company agreed to contribute an

investment sum of HK$6000000 HK$3000000 has been

paid for 50% of issued share capital of jointly controlled

entity on the date of incorporation of jointly controlled

entity

HIAHIIHIH-icH

HIttuttfHIHIHIHIR
HI

HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI PH HI

1HIHIHI

195000005t HIHI%.HI$HIHIAHI

HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI IL HI HI

HI HI PR HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI

HIAHIHIHIHIAHI

HIHIHI HI HI HI 97 000

HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI PM HI HI

HIAHIHIHIHI
HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI

HIHIHIfE
HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI

HI IL HI An HI HI HI IL HI HI HI HI HI HI

HIHIHIHI HLLHIHIHIHIAHIHIHIHIHI

HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI HI

flHIH HIHIHI
HI HI IL HI HI HI HI HI 41 HI HI

WHIHI HIItMHIAHI
HIMHIHIHIHI
HIHIHItIILWWIHIHIHHI

AnHIHIAHIThIHInHflHI
HI HI HI PM HI HI HI HI HI PR HI

HIAHTHIRQHIIHHI IA IL

HI HI HI HI HI 1600000051

HI5HHHIHi1UIffl HIHI

30000005151 Mt WEt PH HI It HI HI

IHIEHI2HIL5O%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008-U LJ

At the balance sheet date the Group and the Company

had the following outstanding contingent liabilities

which are not provided for in the financial statements

in respect of banking facilities and other facilities

made available to subsidiaries

Under share purchase and subscription agreement

signed on June 30 2006 subsidiary of the Company

provided guarantee amounting to maximum of

RMB1 million equivalent to approximately HK$1 2.5

million as at December 31 2008 in settlement of

certain liabilities of the disposed entity incurred prior

to disposal During the year ended December 31

2008 approximately HK$8450000 were paid under

the guarantee and HK$950000 2007 HK$7500000

has been recognised in the consolidated financial

statements of the Group

62 WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED II

The Group The Company

1J

iioooooo
j212500000

kjf845o000

7500000EM

43 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 43 QJ
2008 2007 2008 2007

WWA
HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Guarantees given for banking

facilities made available

to subsidiaries 327447 279862

Guarantees given for other

facilities made available

to subsidiaries 32626 24559

360073 304421



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

44 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 44

At December 31 2008 the Group had entered into forward EEH

contracts denominated in United States Dollar USD
Japanese Yen JPY and Singapore Dollar SGD The

major terms of the foreign currency forward contracts

are as follows

Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates

iH

Sell SGD1 80237 27 February 2009 SGD1 .46250 to USD1

180237JH 1.462501

Sell SGDS861 27 February 2009 SGD1 .46250 to USD1

58610O 1.46250U1

Sell SGD47680 27 February 2009 SGD1 .46250 to USD1

47680JHt 1.46250L1J

Sell SGD41750 27 February 2009 SGD1 .46250 to USD1

41750H 1.462501

Sell SGD9590 27 February 2009 SGD1 .46250 to USD1

i9590H 1.46250U1

Sell SGD3348 27 February 2009 SGD1 .46250 to USD1

I3348 .46250H1

Sell SGD225985 27 February 2009 SGD1 .46250 to USD1

i225985U .46250fl1

Sell SGD1 15199 28 January 2009 SGD1 .52800 to USD1

IIi 5199JjH .528001

Sell SGD1 57070 March 2009 SGD1 .47850 to USD1

Ii57070 Ti .47850JL1 7L

Sell SGD51 733 13 January 2009 SGDO.01 589 to JPY1

51733 H-EEII 0.01589i.1

The above derivatives are measured at fair value at each

balance sheet date Their fair values are determined based

on the quoted market prices for equivalent instruments

at the balance sheet date
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For the year ended December 31 2008

ihJ

2008

K$ 000

The Group

2007

HK$OOO

Deposits in bank

Inventories

Investment properties

Properties held for sale

Property plant and equipment

Land and buildings

Motor yacht

Prepaid lease payments

Floating charges on all assets of

subsidiary

7J

-t1ll

2035

15872

25818

The amount represents assets pledged to banks and other

licensed financial institutions to secure banking facilities

granted to the Group The pledged assets will be released

upon the settlement of relevant bank borrowings

46 COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform

with current years presentation

47 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in

the Group will be able to continue as going concern

while maximising the return to stakeholders through the

optimisation of the debt and equity balance The Groups

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year

64 WOKEEHONGHOLDINGSLIMrFED dfi II FtJ

J5 21 in

46

47

45 PLEDGE OF ASSETS 45

106565

11944

14610

21150

86796

19601

7100

23400

18848 19602

216842 156499



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

A-l-H ii

47 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt which

includes borrowings convertible loan note and obligations

under finance leases cash and cash equivalents and equity

attributable to equity holders of the Company comprising

issued share capital reserves and accumulated losses

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at December 31 2008 and December

31 2007 were as follows

Debt comprises long-term and short-term borrowings

obligations under finance leases and convertible loan note

as detailed in notes 34 33 and 31 respectively

Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group

47 WU
fiIIH

Jft

2008

HK$OOO

2007

RK$OOO

i1Ii
3331
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Debt note ftfta 90628 11 5644

Cash and cash equivalents 164030 363949

Net debt 26598 248305

Equity note ftb 305093 380378

Gearing ratio 8.72% N/ATfl

Notes



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

H- H-

48.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

48

2008 2007

jE
HK$OOO HK$OOO

Financial assets

Fair value through profit or loss

Held for trading

Derivative financial instruments

Loans and receivables including

cash and cash equivalents

Available-for-sale financial assets

-- --
DJ-1 17

98

560072

30527

Financial liabilities

Amortised cost 536444 397863
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

48 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Financial risk management objectives

and policies

The Groups activities expose it to variety of financial

risks market risk including currency risk interest

rate risk and other price risk credit risk and liquidity

risk The Groups overall risk management programme

focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets

and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Groups financial performance

Market risk

The Groups activities expose it primarily to the

financial risks of changes in foreign exchange

rates interest rates and equity prices The Group

enters into variety of derivative financial

instruments to manage its exposure to foreign

currency risks including

forward foreign exchange contracts are

entered into in respect of highly probable

foreign currency forecast sales to limit its

exposure to exchange rate risk in relation

to foreign currency denominated monetary

items

48II
Ij

3_

-t1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

nflAn

48 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Financial risk management objectives

and policies continued

Market risk continued

Market risk exposures are measured using

sensitivity analysis

There has been no change to the Groups

exposure to market risks or the manner in which

it manages and measures the risk

Foreign currency risk management

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign

currency sales and purchases which expose the

Group to foreign currency risk The management

monitors foreign exchange exposure and will

consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arises

The carrying amounts of the Groups foreign

currency denominated monetary assets and

monetary liabilities at the reporting date are

as follows

168 WOKEEHONGHOLDINGSLIMJTED tUtHi tuItt2i

48 fliUcR

flIJ
15

flo

It5t
9Hfl
$154

$W1515$ 154415fl

fl415

Liabilities Assets

Wa
2008 2007 2008 2007

WW\ WT154 nfl\ p154

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

flf $15 ME $T5t

USD 1515 4761 40577 8707 635

RMB 47971 6371 26829 36559

EUR 1515 1717 1557 3362 1212

JPY 19849 3597

SGD 2432 2559 2624 30743

MYD 1515 301 17311 4195 18036

GBP 1515 21



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

48 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Financial risk management objectives

and policies continued

Market risk continued

Foreign currency risk management continued

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of

fluctuation in USD RMB EUR JPY SGD MYD

and GBP

The following table details the Groups sensitivity

to 5% increase and decrease in the Hong

Kong dollars against the relevant foreign

currencies 5% is the sensitivity rate used

when reporting foreign currency risk internally

to key management personnel and represents

managements assessment of the reasonably

possible change in foreign exchange rates The

sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign

currency denominated monetary items and

foreign currency forward contracts and adjusts

their translation at the period end for S%

change in foreign currency rates The sensitivity

analysis includes external loans as well as loans

to foreign operations within the Group where

the denomination of the loan is in currency

other than the currency of the lender or the

borrower positive number below indicates

an increase in profit and other equity where

the Hong Kong dollars strengthen 5% against

the relevant currency For 5% weakening of

the Hong Kong dollars against the relevant

currency there would be an equal and opposite

impact on the profit and other equity and the

balances below would be negative

48 II

J1

5%
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For the year ended December 31 2008

48 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued 48 iJt1
Financial risk management objectives

and policies continued

Market risk continued I.iIi
Foreign currency risk management continued

Sensitivity analysis continued 6W

Impact of USD Impact of RMB

2008 2007 2008 2007

flflA nflTAE
HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

fl9 fl95 WWT
Profit or loss Note WjWWWG3ftj 197 1997 1057 1509

Impact of EUR Impact of JPY

tYG2L
2008 2007 2008 2007

fl\1 iWW-2 fl\W W-Ei6

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

fZf
Profit or loss Note WfiWWW tE 82 17 992 180

Impact of SGD Impact of MYD

uJUtt2LW
2008 2007 2008 2007

flAt nfl- WW\t -Li
HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO l-IK$OOO

fl9Z7 fl5 flf flcfr

Profit or loss Note iWWW Pff 10 909 195 36

Impact of GBP2L
2008 2007

flAt nTTE
HK$OOO HK$OOO

%a9_

Profit or loss Note jWiIW I1i6i

Note

This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding ttt
on receivables and payables denominated in respective

currencies at the year end

170 WOKEEHONGHOLDSNGSLIMSTED Ut tUE fi8U1



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

48 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Financial risk management objectives

and policies continued

Market risk continued

Interest rate risk management
The Groups cash flow interest rate risk relates

primarily to variable-rate borrowings Note 34
It is the Groups policy to keep its borrowings

at floating rate of interests so as to minimise

the fair value interest rate risk

The Groups exposures to interest rates on

financial assets and financial liabilities are

detailed in the liquidity risk management section

of this note The Groups cash flow interest rate

risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation

of HIBOR arising from the Groups Hong Kong

dollar denominated borrowings

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been

determined based on the exposure to interest

rates for both derivatives and non-derivative

instruments at the balance sheet date For

variable-rate borrowings the analysis is prepared

assuming the amount of liability outstanding at

the balance sheet date was outstanding for the

whole year 50 basis point increase or decrease

in HIBOR is used when reporting interest rate

risk internally to key management personnel

and represents managements assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates

If interest rates had been 50 basis points

higher/lower and all other variables were held

constant the Groups profit for the year ended

December 31 2008 would decrease/increase by

approximately HK$95000 2007 HK$42000

This is mainly attributable to the Groups

exposure to interest rates on its variable rate

borrowings

The Groups sensitivity to interest rates has

decreased during the current period mainly due

to the reduction in variable rate borrowings

48 IUI
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48 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Financial risk management objectives

and policies continued

Market risk continued

Other price risks

The Group is exposed to equity price risk

through its investment in listed equity securities

The management manages this exposure by

maintaining portfolio of investments with

different risk and return profiles The Groups

equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity

securities operating in logistics manufacturing

and trading sectors quoted in The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited In addition the Group has

monitor the price risk and will consider hedging

the risk exposure should the need arise

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been

determined based on the exposure to equity

price risk at the reporting date

If equity prices had been 5% higher/lower

the Groups net profit for the year ended

December 31 2008 would increase/decrease by

approximately HK$500 2007 increase/decrease

by HK$1000 This is mainly due to the changes

in fair value of other financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss

The Groups sensitivity to equity prices has not

changed significantly from prior year
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48 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Financial risk management objectives

and policies continued

ii Credit risk

As at December 31 2008 the Groups maximum

exposure to credit risk which will cause

financial loss to the Group due to failure to

discharge an obligation by the counterparties

and financial guarantees provided by the Group

is arising from

the carrying amount of the respective

recognised financial assets as stated in

the consolidated balance sheet and

the amount of contingent liabilities in

relation to the financial guarantees provided

by the Group as disclosed in note 43

In order to minimise the credit risk the

management of the Group has delegated

team responsible for determination of credit

limits credit approvals and other monitoring

procedures to ensure that follow-up action is

taken to recover overdue debts In addition the

Group reviews the recoverable amount of each

individual trade debt and debt investments at

each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate

impairment losses are made for irrecoverable

amounts In this regard the directors of the

Company consider that the Groups credit risk

is significantly reduced

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit ratings

assigned by international credit-rating agencies

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid

funds which are deposited with several banks

with high credit ratings the Group does not

have any other significant concentration of

credit risk Trade receivables consist of large

number of customers spread across diverse

industries and geographical areas

48 IifMi
ii 1I
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48 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Financial risk management objectives

and policies continued

iiiLiquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk

management rests with the board of directors

which has built an appropriate liquidity risk

management framework for the management

of the Groups short medium and long-term

funding and liquidity management requirements

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining

adequate reserves banking facilities and reserve

borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring

forecast and actual cash flows and matching

the maturity profiles of financial assets and

liabilities

As at December31 2008 the Group has available

unutilised overdrafts and short and medium

term bank loan facilities of approximately

HK$1 3000000 2007 HK$20000000 and

HK$77000000 2007 HK$1 29000000

respectively

The following tables detail the Groups remaining

contractual maturity for its financial liabilities

which are included in the maturity analysis

provided internally to the key management

personnel for the purpose of managing liquidity

risk For non-derivative financial liabilities the

tables reflect the undiscounted cash flows of

financial liabilities based on the earliest date

on which the Group can be required to pay

The tables include both interest and principal

cash flows
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48 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Financial risk management objectives

and policies continued

iii Liquidity risk management

continued

For derivative instruments settle on net basis

undiscounted net cash outflows are presented

Whereas they require gross settlement the

undiscounted gross outflows on these derivatives

are shown in the table

At December 31 2008

4F
iü

ThIj

Total

Over undiscounted

years
cash flows

HK$000

48 IUI

Weighted

average

effective

interest

rate

Within

year

HK$OOO

to

years

HK$OOO

Total

carrying

amount

HK$OOOHK$000

Non-derivative

financial liabilities

Trade and other

payables 330489 330489 330489

Bills
payables 14383 14383 14383

Amounts due to

related companies 944 944 944

Borrowings 5.60 152919 17562 20147 190628 190628

498735 17562 20147 536444 536444

Annual Report 2108 AI 75



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

48 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Financial risk management objectives

and policies continued

iiiLiquidity risk management

continued

48 II

Weighted

average

effective

interest

rate

Ij

Total

Over undiscounted

years
cash flows

HK$000

383820 13674 397494 397701

76 WO KEE HoNG HOLDINGS LIMITED Ts

At December 31 2007

üí

Within

year

HK$000

to

years

HK$000

Total

carrying

amount

HK$000HK$000

Non-derivative

financial liabilities

Trade and other

payables

Bills payables

Amounts due to

related companies

Obligations
under

finance leases

Borrowings

Convertible loan notes

44

ji

2439561 243956 243956

36758 36758 36758

1343 1343 1343

4.00 1936 168 1104 11041

6.99 708271 13506 84333 84333

0.00 30000 30000 30207
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48 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial

liabilities are determined as follows

the fair value of financial assets and financial

liabilities including derivative instruments

with standard terms and conditions and traded

on active liquid markets are determined with

reference to quoted market bid prices and ask

prices respectively and

ii the fair value of other financial assets and

financial liabilities including derivative

instruments are determined in accordance

with generally accepted pricing models based

on discounted cash flow analysis using prices or

rates from observable current market transactions

as input For an option-based derivative the fair

value is estimated using option pricing model

for example the Black-Scholes option pricing

model

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of

financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in

the consolidated financial statements approximate

their fair values

48I
LThIJ5t
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49 SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

2002 Scheme

On August 23 2001 the Stock Exchange has announced

amendments to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules which has

come into effect on September 2001 In compliance with

the amendments to the Listing Rules and the announcement

of the Stock Exchange the Company adopted new share

option scheme 2002 Scheme and terminated the

2001 Scheme on May 30 2002 pursuant to resolution

passed on that date The purpose of the 2002 Scheme

is to provide incentives or rewards to participants for

their contribution to the Group and enable the Group

to recruit and retain high calibre employees and attract

human resources that are valuable to the Group and any

companies in which the Group holds any equity interest

The 2002 Scheme will expire on the 10th anniversary of

date of adoption

Under the 2002 Scheme the Board of Directors of the

Company may at their discretion grant options to the

following participants of the Company its subsidiaries

and any companies in which the Group holds any equity

interest to subscribe for shares in the Company

eligible employees including Directors or

suppliers or customers or

any person or entity that provides research

development or other technological support or

shareholders or

employees partners or Directors of any business

partners joint venture partners financial advisers

and legal advisers

Options granted to Director chief executive or substantial

shareholder of the Company or any of their respective

associates must be approved by the INEDs of the Company

excluding any
INED who is the grantee
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49 SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME continued

2002 Scheme continued

The total number of shares in respect of which options

may be granted under the 2002 Scheme and any other

schemes is not permitted to exceed 30% of the issued

share capital of the Company from time to time Subject

to the above rule the total number of shares in respect

of which options may be granted under the 2002 Scheme

and any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed

10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the

adoption date of the 2002 Scheme without prior approval

from the Companys shareholders

The number of shares in respect of which options may

be granted to any participant in any one year is not

permitted to exceed of the shares of the Company in

issue at any point of time without prior approval from the

Companys shareholders Options granted to substantial

shareholder or an Independent Non-executive Director

of the Company or any of their respective associates

under the 2002 Scheme and any other schemes in any

one year in excess of 0.134 of the Companys issued

share capital or with value based on the closing price

of the shares of the Company at the date of each grant

in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance

by the Companys shareholders

Options granted must be taken
up within 28 days of the

date of grant upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of

options The exercise period of the share options granted

under the 2002 Scheme shall be determined by the Board

of Directors when such options are granted provided that

such period shall not end later than years from the date

of grant The subscription price is determined by the Board

of Directors of the Company and will not be less than

the higher of the closing price of the Companys shares

on the date of grant or the average closing price of the

shares for the five trading days immediately preceding

the date of grant or the nominal value of share of

the Company

No share options were exercised or granted for the year

ended December 31 2008
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49 SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME continued

2002 Scheme continued
At December 31 2008 the number of shares in respect of

which options had been granted and remained outstanding

under the 2002 Scheme was 11088000 2007 16397866

representing 3.77% 2007 6.40% of the issued share

capital of the Company at that date respectively

The fair value of the options granted in 2007 measured

as at the date of grant on June 11 2007 August 2007

and September 25 2007 were approximately HK$1 72000

HK$322000 and HK$1659000 respectively and it had

been expensed as share-based payments during 2007

Options were priced using the Black-Scholes model The

following significant assumptions were used to derive the

fair value using the Black-Scholes option pricing model

at the dates of grant

Date of share options granted11

49 ti
1088000J.QJ

163978663.77%
6.40%

322000f1659000jIJ1t

August September 25

Grant date share price HK$

Exercise price HK$

Expected volatility

Option life years

Dividend yield

Risk-free interest rateIj
Where relevant the expected life used in the model has

been adjusted based on managements best estimate

for the effects of non-transferability exercise restrictions

including the probability of meeting market conditions

attached to the option and behavioural considerations

The expected volatility is based on the historical share

price volatility

After adjustment for the bonus share issue in May 2008
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June 11

2007

1-
2007 2007

0.80 1.23 0.97

1.00 1.278 1.044

83.12 102.30 113.75

0.58 0.58 0.25

0.00 0.00 0.00

4.088 3.920 3.791
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49 SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME continued 49 9Wil9lfltJUiJ

2002 Scheme continued

The following table discloses details of the Companys Hti
share options held by employees including Directors and

movements in such holdings during the year

Outstanding

Outstanding at

at Decumber 3t

January Adjustment 2008 Exercise
price

2008
Option during t\

Date of Mt\ lapsed
the year Exercisable Before After

Scheme
type grant nH EI period adjustment adjustment

fl 81 fl gfl
HK$ HK$

4SL JE

2082 June 2082 4g5373g 4864471 81 0741 June 2002June 2008 1.0000 0.8333

2002
September 24 2002 2424136 2908961 484825 September 24 2002- 1.0000 0.8333

September 23 2008

flMJLH JE

2002 June 11 2007 700000 140080 840000 June 11 2007June 10 2013 1.0000 0.8333

TL 1k

2002
August 92007 680000 96000 136000 720000 August 92007August 82013 12780 1.0650

2002
September 25 2007 8540000 720000 1708000 9528000 September 25 2007 1.0440 0.8700

TJ September242013

TTE1LY

Grand Intal fl 6397866 8589432 3279S66 11088000

Atter adjustment for the share consolidation in June BSW7\7\
2006

After adjustment tor the bonus share issue in May 2008
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49 SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME continued 49 tIUi
2002 Scheme continued

Outstanding Outstanding

at January at

2007 December 3t

After adjustment 2007

MLfl-L Option Option Option
li4Lflt

Date of granted lapsed
exercised Exercise

Scheme
type grant 1t Et Exercisable

period price

bIUi oa21

NK$

1991
January 10 2001 40901 40901 March 2001 1.661

JLJY4 March 14 2007

1991 May 28 2081 629262 629262t June 292001- 1.6610

hii- LT June 29 2007

2001 August 10 2001 11169415 1101441 55000 Septenrber 14 2001 1.661

TT TTh September 18 2007

TJL 1-A

2001 August 29 2001 534868 45621 78657 September 30 2001 1.661

September 30 2007

AJuP
-L it HA

2001 Neeember 23 2001 157315 157315 December 23 2001 1.661 Qif

TA TA December 22 2007

AL LAL

2002 June 2002 S789206 237235 1498241 4Q53 73Q June 2002

June 2008

Ait3P

2Q02 September 24 2002 262S480 200 2011 44 24241 36
September 24 2Q02 QQQQ

LTLA LLA September 23 2008

1LP LflLAALH

__________________________________
LAAA 11-H
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49 SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME continued 49.9tIOU
2002 Scheme continued

Outstanding Outstanding

at January at

2007 December 31

After adjustment 2007

Option Option Option Mi
Date of granted lapsed exercised Exercise

Scheme type grant 31 El- Exercisable period price

5ft

HK$

2002 June 112007 1200000 500000 700000 June 11 2007 1.0000Tf JunelO2013

2802
August

2007 680000 680000 August
2007 1.2780

August82013

__1
2802 September 25 2007 8880000 340000 8548800 September 25 2807 1.0440

111A September242013

Grand Total iA 20946447 10760008 12875539 2433042 16397866

After adjustment for the share consolidation in June 2006
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49 SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME continued 49.liiUi
2002 Scheme continued

Details of the share options held bythe Directors included

in the above table are as follows

Outstanding

Outstanding
at

at December 31

January Adjustment 2008 Exercise
price

2008 Option during

Date of lapsed the year Exercisable Before After

Scheme
type grant period adjustment adjustment

I1fiPf

HK$ HK$

2002 June 2002 534872 641846 06974 June 2002 .0000 0.8333

June 2008

2002
September 24 2002 2360072 2832085 472013 September 24 2002 .0000 0.8333

September 23 2008

IAL
2002 June 11 2007 500000 100000 600000 June 11 2007 1.0000 0.8333

June 10 2013

2002 September 25 2007 4370000 874000 5244000 September 25 2007 1.0440 08700

September 24 2013

Grand Total 7764944 3473931 1552987 5844000

After adjustment for the share consolidation in June

2006

After adjustment for the bonus share issue in May 2008
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49 SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME continued 49 litiU
2002 Scheme continued

Outstanding Outstanding

at January at

2007 December 31

After adjustment 2007

Option Option Option Z1
Date of

granted lapsed
exercised Exercise

Scheme
type grant

1oi1 Exercisable period price

00J rr di
HK$

1991 May 28 2001 629262 629262 June 29 2001 .6610

June 29 2007

2001 August 10 2001 11812188 11012108 September 14 2801 1.661

September 18 2007

2001
August 29 2001 157314a 78657 78657a September 30 2001 1.661

September 29 2087

EJLJTL
2002 June 2002 755113 220241 534872 June 2002 .0000Ti June 2008

2002 September 24 2002 2425280 11 44 24241 36 September 24 2002 .0000

September 23 2008

AL
2002 June 11 2007 858000 350000 500000 June 11 2807 1.0000

June 102013

2002 September 25 2007 4478800a 4470000a September 25 2007 1.0440

September 24 2013

Grand Total 14979069 5320000 11720019 650042 7929008

After adjustment for the share consolidation in June

2006

Share options granted to Dr Richard Man Fai LEEs spouse AE

were included Dr Richard Man Fai LEE is Director of the

Company
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50 DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for 2007 and 2008

nor has any dividend been proposed since the balance

sheet date

51 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 51

Particulars of the Companys principal subsidiaries are

as follows

Percentage

of equity Issued and

Place of interest fully paid

incorporation attributable share capital or

registration to the Group registered capital

Name of subsidiaries Principal activities

Direct SubsidiaryLI
Wo Kee Hong B.V.l British Virgin 100.0 30000 shares of Investment holding

limited Islands US$0.01 each

30000

Indirect Subsidiaries

Auto Italia Limited Hong Kong 70.5 10000 shares of Trading of cars and

HK$10 each related accessories and10 provision of car

JIi 0000J repairing services

Auto Sportiva Limited Hong Kong 90.0 20000000 shares of Car distribution

HK$1 each and services

20000 000

186 WOKEEHONGHOLDINGSLIMITED fll 1ItU



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

TAH-n H-I--- ih

51 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES continued 51

Percentage

of equity Issued and

Place of interest fully paid

incorporation attributable share capital or

registration to the Group registered capital

Name of subsidiaries Principal activities

itftfffl

Indirect Subsidiaries continued

re1tfl UI

Common Joy Limited Hong Kong 100.0 share of HK$1 each Property holding

ifli5t flfl
fln-%J flh

IX 711 IX

Conch Enterprises lnc British Virgin 100.0 100 shares of US$1 each Investment holding

Islands 1ca
flioo

Creative Pacific Limited Hong Kong 60.0 10000 shares of Distribution and retail

HK$1 each of fashion apparel

aii oooo

Dalian Auto Italia Car PRC 70.5 Registered and Trading of cars and

Trading Co Ltd fully paid capital of general trading

RMB5000000

sooooooAfI

Famous Name Holdings British Virgin 100.0 share of US$1 each Investment holding

Limited Islands

Grow Bright Limited Hong Kong 100.0 share of HK$1 each Distribution and retail

of fashion accessories

TH4Pji

Italian Motors Sales Hong Kong 70.5 60000 shares of Investment holding

Service Limited HK$10 each

1360 000
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51 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES continued 51

Percentage

of equity Issued and

Place of interest fully paid

incorporation attributable share capital or

registration to the Group registered capital

Name of subsidiaries ith/ Principal activities

Indirect Subsidiaries continued

rsfltL

Keyforce Holdings Limited Hong Kong 90.0 share of HK$1 each Trading of yachts and

PPCiAl fli accessories

King Express Group Hong Kong 70.5 share of HK$1 each Helicopters distribution

Limited and services

Afi IAl
Home Crown Enterprises British Virgin 100.0 share of US$1 each Investment holding

Ltd Islands

Mighty Will International Hong Kong 100.0 share of HK$1 each Property holding

Limited

Most Advance British Virgin 100.0 share of US$1 each Investment holding

International Ltd Islands

r--l--

National Cape British Virgin 100.0 share of US$1 each Investment holding

Development Limited Islands l1A1ji
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51 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES continued 51

Percentage

of equity Issued and

Place of interest fully paid

incorporation/ attributable share capital or

registration to the Group registered capital

Name of subsidiaries Ejg. Principal activities

IiLflI fAIth fl
Indirect Subsidiaries continued

ra1flt $1

Noble Brand Hong Kong 90.0 share of HK$1 each Trading of yachts and

Investments Limited accessories

f11 flflEt

Peak Elite Limited Hong Kong 100.0 300000 shares of Distribution and retail

HK$1 each of fashion appareliJ ThffiTfif

15 300 000

Right Triumph Limited Hong Kong 100.0 share of HK$1 each Distribution of audio-visual

1j equipment

fif 31%1

Sunny Villa Holdings Hong Kong 100.0 share of HK$1 each Property holding

Limited 1Y
Technorient Limited Hong Kong 70.5 461687 shares of Investment holding

HK$100 each

flflioob
f915461 687f
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Issued and

fully paid

share capital or

registered capital

Principal activitiesfl
Indirect Subsidiaries continued

refn UI

lop Up Group Limited Hong Kong 100.0

14
share of HK$1 each

41

Irendy Move

International Limited

44

British Virgin

Islands

100.0 share of US$1 each

462
41214

Investment holding

tE t5 fl1

.H till IX

4500000 ordinary

shares of S$1 each

Inili IftHI62

19645000004

Ireasury and administration

Distribution of home

audio and car audio

equipment and

accessories

II 91

Wo Kee Hong

Electronics Sdn Bhd

Malaysia 100.0 110001000 ordinary

shares of RM$1 each

If2flIIi 592

144610000004

Distribution of audio-visual

equipment

Fl Gb
22 IH E/

90 WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED I-

51 Ji51 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES continued

Percentage

of equity

Place of interest

incorporation attributable

registration to the Group

Name of subsidiaries

iIt

Investment holding

-lt IX -G rri

Gb IX Gb IIX

lurbo Fast Limited

Wo Kee Administration

Limited

4.444

Wo Kee Hong

Distribution Pte Ltd

Hong Kong 100.0

14

Hong Kong 100.0

14

Singapore 100.0

In

Distribution and retail

of fashion apparel

share of HK$1 each

Il2flfli62
19614

share of HK$1 each

41592

Gb 121 IX
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51 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES continued

Percentage

of equity

interest

attributable

to the Group

Ift

Place of

incorporation/

registration

11k

Indirect Subsidiaries continued

PiLi1

51 Ui
Issued and

fully paid

share capital or

registered capital

Hong Kong

Singapore

1ft

shares of HK$1 each

10000 non-voting

deferred shares of

HK$1000 each and

ordinary shares of

HK$1000 each

1000

ooooI
1000T

Finance and money

lending

Investment holding and

distribution of

audio-visual equipment

car audio and electronic

products air-conditioning

and refrigeration

products electrical

appliances and

electronic appliances

41- 41J J\
IX F4

LSn

Distribution of

air-conditioning

products

7J

Wo Kee Hong Trading

Sdn Bhd

Malaysia 100.0 51 00000 ordinary

shares of RM$1 each

00000

AnnuaJ Report 2008 I1AM411K

Name of subsidiaries Principal activities

Hong Kong 100.0

100.0

Wo Kee Hong Finance

Limited

Wo Kee Hong Limited

Wo Kee Hong Marketing

Pte Ltd

94.8 6200000 shares of

S$1 each

fi

156 200 000f

Wo Kee Joyful Limited Hong Kong 00.0

Distribution of

audio-visual equipment

Company secretarial

service

2000000 shares

of HK$1 each

IfU 2000000



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended December 31 2008

51 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES continued

Percentage

51 flUI

Name of subsidiaries

1nJv

Place of

incor po ratio n/

registration

ME fill

of equity

interest

attributable

to the Group

Issued and

fully paid

share capital or

registered capital

Principal activitiesfl
Indirect Subsidiaries continued

UI

IPPZ2A1 PRC 60.0 Registered and
fully paid

capital of US$3000000

ffEt
fl3000000

Distribution and retail

of fashion apparel

60.0 Registered and fully paid

capital of Us$2000000

fl2000000ifr

Distribution of fashion

apparel

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities

at the end of the year

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

which in the opinion of the Directors principally affect

the results or assets of the Group To give details of other

subsidiaries would in the opinion of the Directors result

in particulars of excessive length

Place of operation Hong Kong

192 WOKEEHONGHOLDING5LIMJTED Uti4 tl 1It441

nfl

Tht
d1 tC

3Mij Th

Wo Kee Services Limited Hong Kong 00.0 non-voting deferred Provision of warehousing

shares of HK$100 delivery repairs and

each and 9998 maintenance services

ordinary shares of

HK$100 each W1Ifl
fi 100

122

1I 100 It
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For the year ended December 31 2008H-EH-

52 PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Groups principal associates are as

follows

Percentage

of equity Issued and

Place of interest fully paid

incorporation attributable share capital or

registration to the Group registered capital

Name of associates Principal activities

China Premium USA 39.8 291 04110 shares Investment holding

Lifestyle Enterprise of common stock

Inc of US$0005 each

and 247798 shares

of preferred stock

of US$0001 each

10 .005

f291 0411

1o.ooi
47798

CPMM Asia Limited Hong Kong 39.8 300000 ordinary Distribution and retail

shares of HK$1 each of fashion apparels

and accessories

300000I9
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SCHEDULE OF GROUP PROPERTIES

For the
year

ended December 31 2008

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES At
Percentage held

Category by the Group

Address Existing use of lease

Units and on level 24 Commercial Medium-term lease 100%

New Times Plaza

No 42 Wenwu Lu

Xinhua Da Dao

Qingyang District

Chengdu

the PRC

X42
-- JIf-6

Usj

24JA BC1

Flats A-H L-N P-R and Residential Medium-term lease 100%

7th Floor Block Carlton Heights

Shenzhen PRC

7JA-H L-N P-R2TI3L

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE WP
Units 1912 Commercial Medium-term lease 100%

191 5-1918 on Level 19

Bright China Chang An Building

No Jianguomennei Da Jie

Dongcheng District

Beijing the PRC

Ii9
1912 1915 1918 1/21
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

The following table discloses movement in the Companys

share options for the year ended December 31 2008 a-
Outstanding

Outstanding as at

as at December 31 Exercise price

January 2008 Lxpsed Adjustment 2008

Scheme fA$ daring during 3$\ Exercisable Befsre After

Eligible pensnn type Date xl grant the
year

the
yeart perixd adjustment adjustmentt

fli8t Lllftl Jff bfl hT fldh fl
HK$ HK$

Dr Richard Mxr Fai LEE 2002
September 24 2002 22t 5928 26591 13 443185 September 24 2002 .0080 0.8333

Director flTh fliPJUl
September 23 2008

fl .H
It

2802 June 11 2007 220000 44000 264000 lure 11 2007tT t-fpU--H lure 10 2013 1.8000 0.8333-H
Epit-H

2435928 26591 13 487185 264000

Mr Jell Mer Bur LEE 2002 June 2002 31463P 377557 62926 lure 2002 1.8808 0.8333

Director June 2008

jI.1 flTi\08HH

2802 24 September 2802 143000 71600 28600 24 Septemben 2082 .0800 8.8333

Lfl1 flTJLt-08H D3Septemben2088

flT0Ct1-fl

fl\7 H-H

2002 June 11 2807 100000 20000 128000 June 11 2007 1.8000 0.8333

tiHH lure 10 2013

flH-H-H
T-HtH-H

2002 September 25 2807 20000 24000 144000 September 25 2007 1.0440 0.8700

LHP flt-ThH September2420l3

fl-H-ftH-HH
-HT-

677631 549157 135S26 264000

Mr Jib Jung WONG 2082
September 25 2807 2808080 580008 3480808 September 25 2887 1.8448 8.8708

Director tH-HH
September 24 2813

iI0
HLThH-P1lH

Mr Waisun Chit
Sing

HbI 2082
September 25 2087 788880 148080 840880 Seplemben 25 2087 1.8448 8.8780

Director Lt HHH September242813

IH
H4U1P0H

Afeer adjumtmerne for the ehare comeolidaeJom Jm Jume 2006

Afeer adjuenrenene tor the bomue ehare ieeue im May 2008 hWTWt
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

1E1E

Outstanding

Outstanding an at

an at December 31 Enercine price

January 218Th Lapsed Adjustment 200D

Scheme fJ\ daring during fyA$ Enercinable Betore Atter

Eligible pernun type Date nt grant the year the year -- peniud adjustment adjustment

ttioi ff iu bbt
HK$ HK$

wit j8

Mr Boon Seng IA9 2082 September 25 2887 178880 34800 204080 Snptennber 25 2087 10440 0.8780

Director flTh JfltUtTH
September242813

7$ $E$l$-fr3H

Mr
Raymond

Cho Mm LEE 2082 June 2882 22824P 264289 44048 June 2082 1.8888k 0.8333

Director $t$i$ $$T$7\$ June 2088

4$$$
7$

2802 September 24 2802 1J44 1372 228 Snptenrber 24 2082 .0800k 8.8333

t$ T$i$H
September 23 2808

AH
$MftPE

2802 June 11 2087 50080 8080 68088 June 11 2887 1.8088 8.8333

JunelU2813

Tfl$H

2882 September 25 2807 70808 34800 284808 September 25 2887 1.8448 8.8708

Tt t$LHJHH September 24 2013

flt$iH-fHH
$-HThHH

441385 265661 88276 264880

Mr 1mg Kwun CHE8NG 2802 June 11 2887 58088 18088 68888 June 11 2887 1.8808 8.8333

Director itHH June 18 2813

$n$
1$

2882 September 25 2807 170088 34808 284880 September 25 2087 1.0440 08780

fl$ftHf September242813$HH
1$H$t$EHH

220808 44008 264888

After adjustment for the share consolidation in June 2006

After adjustment for the bonus share issue in May 2008
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

1Eftfltt

Outstanding

Outstanding as at

as at Decemben 31 Eeencise
pnice

Jasuany 2008 Lapsed Adjsstnrent 2008

Scheme ff\ dsring during ff\ Exercisable Betore Atten

Eligible pensnn type Date xl
gnant .f the yean the year peried adjustment edjustment

II0 0l 81i yfl f11 flf

96$ 66$

Mu Kum Her tUE 2082 September 24 2802 64064k 76876 12812 September 24 2002 1.6008k 0.8333

Director it Note Note September 23 2008

fl fl
if

2802 lore 11 2007 80000 16800 86000 lore 11 2007 1.0000 0.8333

TflL -t JunelO2013

-EY0
2002 September 25 2007 140000 28000 168000 September 25 2007 1.0440 0.8700

kUt J0 September 24 2013

TV-Ep7t --23

284064 76870 56812 264000

Continuous oororuot 2002 lone 2002 3518858k 4222625 703767 lure 2002 1.0000k 0.8333

employees 1t t.f tune 2008

uAui1u rHt
2002 lune 11 2007 200000 40000 240000 lure 11 2007 1.0000 0.8333

JT iH lure 10 2013

-E
2002 Auguet 2007 680000 96000 36000 720000 August

2007 1.2780 1.0650

TflLO1 AThit Auguet82013

\Utl3
EU\

2002 September 25 2007 41 70000 720000 834000 4284000 September 25 2007 1.0440 0.8700

_E tLT.H September242013

j1-

EPt -23

8568858 S03862S 171 3767 5244000

16397866 8589432 3279566 11088000

Note

The 76876 Options after adjustment granted to Mr Wing Sum LEE

the spouse of Ms Kam Nar YUE and former Director of the Company
are included

After adjustment for the share consolidation in June 2006

After adjustment for the bonus share issue in May 2008
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

Stock Code 720

720

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an annual general meeting of

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED the Company will be

held at Crystal Room 3rd Floor Panda Hotel Tsuen Wah

Street Tsuen Wan New Territories Hong Kong on Monday

May 18 2009 at 1000 a.m or any adjournment thereof for

the purposes of considering and if thought fit passing with

or without modification the following resolutions

To receive and consider the audited consolidated accounts

and the reports of directors and auditors of the Company

for the year ended December 31 2008

To re-elect the following persons as directors of the

Company

Dr Richard Man Fai LEE

ii Mr Boon Seng Tan and

iii Ms Kam Har YUE and

To authorise the Board of Directors to fix the

remuneration of the Directors and

To authorise the Board of Directors to appoint auditors

of the Company and to fix their remuneration and

lIE33JJI iTi

AH-ii-

IjA
i3t

ii ftE
iii

iTU
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

As special business to consider and if though fit passing

with or without modification the following resolutions

as ordinary resolutions

THAT general and unconditional mandate be

granted to the Directors of the Company to exercise

all the power to allot issue and otherwise deal

with the new shares in the Company not exceeding

20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share

capital of the Company in issue as at the date of

the passing of the relevant resolution

THAT general and unconditional mandate be

granted to the Directors of the Company to repurchase

securities of the Company on The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited of up to 10% of the aggregate

nominal amount of the share capital of the Company

in issue as at the date of the passing of the relevant

resolution

THAT subject to the passing of resolutions Number

4A and 4B the aggregate nominal amount of

shares to be allotted issued and otherwise dealt

with by the Directors of the Company pursuant

to resolution Number 4A be increased by the

aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of

the Company which are to be repurchased by the

Company pursuant to the authority granted to the

Directors of the Company under resolution Number

4B

By order of the Board

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

Man Kit LI

Company Secretary

Hong Kong April 15 2009

Registered office

Canons Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM12

Bermuda

jJ
20%

IH10%

iA24B2i
oj

pi

Canons Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM1

Bermuda
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Principal office in Hong Kong

10th Floor Block

Wo Kee Hong Building

585-609 Castle Peak Road

Kwai Chung New Territories

Hong Kong

Notes

shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting

may appoint another person as his proxy to attend and to vote

in his stead shareholder who is the holder of two or more

shares may appoint more than one proxy to attend on the same

occasion proxy need not be shareholder of the Company

Where there are joint registered holders of any Share any one

of such persons may vote at the meeting either personally or

by proxy in respect of such Share as if he were solely entitled

thereto but if more than one of such joint holders are present

at the meeting personally or by proxy that one of the said

persons so present whose name stands first on the register of

members of the Company in respect of such Shares shall alone

be entitled to vote in respect thereof

In order to be valid the form of proxy duly completed and signed

in accordance with the instructions printed thereon together

with the power of attorney or other authority if any under

which it is signed or notarially certified copy thereof must be

delivered to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong

at 10th Floor Block Wo Kee Building 585-609 Castle Peak

Road Kwai Chung New Territories Hong Kong not less than 48

hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any

adjournment thereof

Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude

shareholders from attending and voting in person at the meeting

or any adjourned meeting or upon the
poll

concerned if they so

wish In such event the instrument appointing the proxy shall

be deemed to be revoked

circular containing detailed Notice of Annual General Meeting

will be despatched together with this Annual Report

flfl
19 1919

1919 1919585-60919

01E19191A191

191919L191919a11919
1919191919

19 1919.1919191919191919191919191919

191919019191919

1919t419A 911919191919191919
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19191199191
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WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

Stock Code 720

2008 FINAL RESULTS

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED is holding company with major subsidiaries engaged

in the import marketing distribution and after-sales service of high quality branded products serving

customers in the Asian region and in particular the markets of the Peoples Republic of China

the PRC Note Hong Kong Macau Singapore and Malaysia The products include principally

cars and car accessories motor yachts helicopters premium fashion apparels and accessories air-

conditioning and refrigeration products audio-visual equipment car audio and electronic products

other electronic and electrical products and property investment

RESULTS

The Directors of Wo Kee Hong Holdings Limited the Company announce that the audited

consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries together the Group for the year ended

December 31 2008 were as follows



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended December 31 2008

2008 2007

Notes HK$OOO HK$OOO

Turnover 1308229 1153201

Cost of sales 1059901 938222

Gross profit 248328 214979

Other operating income 16863 4479

Distribution costs 103520 72125
Administrative expenses 182479 145220
Fair value losses/gains on investment properties 641 2022

Write-down of properties held for sale to

net realisable value 2250

Loss/profit from operations 23699 4135

Finance costs 8298 14355
Impairment on available-for-sale financial assets 9000 6000
Provision for guarantee 950 7500
Transaction costs for terminated acquisition 6008
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 76021

Loss on disposal of an associate 1968
Share of results of associates 18 1169
Share of result of jointly controlled entity 3000

Loss/profit before tax 50973 49164

Income tax expenses 8079 6256

Loss/profit for the year 59052 42908

Attributable to

Equity holders of the Company 68869 35677

Minority interests 9817 7231

59052 42908

Loss/earnings per share of loss/profit

attributable to equity holders of the Company
Basic and diluted restated HK$0.23 HK$0.13
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At December 31 2008

2008 2007

Notes HK$OOO HK$OOO

Non-current assets

Investment properties 17000 9600
Property plant and equipment 56415 44541
Prepaid lease payments 26712 1558
Goodwill 31611 2787
Interests in associates 95
Interest in jointly controlled entity

Available-for-sale financial assets 21527 30527
Deferred tax assets 10 16

153370 89029

Current assets

Inventories 234664 124993
Properties held for sale at net realisable value 21150 23400
Trade and other receivables 249504 185075
Derivative financial instruments 98
Amounts due from associates 39834 14260
Amounts due from jointly controlled entity 2119
Other financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss 17

Cash and cash equivalents 164030 363949

711405 711694

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 10 330489 243956
Bills payables 14383 36758
Tax payables 2418 162
Amounts due to related companies 944 1343
Convertible loan note 30207
Obligations under finance leases due within one year 936

Borrowings due within one year 152919 70827

501153 384189

Net current assets 210252 327505

Total assets less current liabilities 363622 416534

Non-current liabilities

Obligations under finance leases

due after one year 168

Borrowings due after one year 37709 13506
Deferred tax liabilities 12

37721 13680

Net assets 325901 402854

Capital and reserves

Share capital 29403 255314
Reserves 275690 125064

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 305093 380378
Minority interests 20808 22476

Total equity 325901 402854
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Notes

Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards HKFRSs

In the current year the Group has applied for the first time the following of amendments and interpretations

the new HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants the HKICPA
which are effective for the Groups financial year beginning January 2008

HKAS 39 HKFRS

Amendments

HKIFRIC Tnt 11

HKIFRIC mt 12

HKIFRIC mt 14

Reclassification of Financial Assets

HKFRS Group and Treasury Share Transactions

Service Concession Arrangements

HKAS 19 The Limit on Defined Benefit Asset

Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results and financial position for

the current or prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented Accordingly no prior period

adjustment has been required

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised standards amendments or interpretations

that have been issued but are not yet effective

HKFRSs Amendments

HKAS Revised

HKAS 23 Revised

HKAS 27 Revised

HKAS321
Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendment
HKFRS HKAS 27

Amendments

HKFRS Amendment
HKFRS Revised

HKFRS

HKIFRIC mt 13

HKIFRIC mt 15

HKIFRIC mt 16

HKIFRIC mt 17

Improvements to HKFRSs1

Presentation of Financial Statements2

Borrowing Costs2

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements3

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations

Arising on Liquidation2

Eligible hedged items3

Cost of an Investment in Subsidiary Jointly Controlled

Entity or Associate2

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations2

Business Combinations3

Operating Segments2

Customer Loyalty Programmes4

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate2

Hedges of Net Investment in Foreign Operation5

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners3

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 2009 except for the amendments to

HKFRS effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after October 2008

The application of HKFRS Revised may affect the accounting for business combination for which

the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after

July 2009 HKAS 27 Revised will affect the accounting treatment for changes in parents ownership
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interest in subsidiary The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the other new

and revised standards amendments or interpretations will have no material impact on the results and the

financial position of the Group

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards HKFRSs which term collectively included Hong Kong Accounting Standards

HKASs and Interpretations the Interpretations issued by the HKICPA accounting principles

generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

and the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange the Listing Rules

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified

by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets financial assets and liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss including derivative financial instruments and investment properties which are carried at

fair value

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of

certain critical accounting estimates It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process

of applying the Groups accounting policies

Turnover

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Sales of goods to customers less returns and discounts 1232657 1071904

Maintenance service income 74589 65866

Rental income 983 15431

1308229 1153201

Business and geographical segments

Business segments

Principal activities of the Group are as follows

Cars and car accessories Trading of cars and related accessories and provision of

car repairing services

Electrical appliances Distribution of air-conditioning products audio-visual equipment

including car audio home appliances and installation of

air-conditioning products

Property investment Rental of investment properties and properties held for sale

Fashion apparels and accessories Trading distribution and retail of fashion apparels and accessories
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Prior to the year ended December 31 2008 the Group organised into three operating divisions cars and

car accessories electrical appliances and property investment In current year the Group has reclassified

its previously reporting business segments into four operating divisions cars and car accessories electrical

appliances property investment and fashion apparels and accessories These divisions are the basis on

which the Group reports its primary segment information

Segment information about these businesses is presented below

2008

Fashion

Cars apparels

and car Electrical Property and

accessories appliances investment accessories Others Eliminations Consolidated

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Turnover

External sales 1004038 196120 983 48725 58363 1308229

Inter-segment sales 149 25 174

Total turnover 1004038 196269 983 48750 58363 174 1308229

Inter-segment sales are charged

at prevailing market rates

Results

Segment results 36858 405 2036 20740 8970 4707

Interest income 8812

Unallocated corporate expenses 37218

Loss from operations 23699

Finance costs 8298

Impairment on available-

for-sale financial assets 9000

Provision for guarantee 950

Transaction costs for

terminated acquisition 6008

Share of results of associates 18 18

Share of result of

jointly controlled
entity 3000 3000

Loss before tax 50973

Income tax expenses 8079

Loss for the year 59052
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2007 Restated

Fashion

Cars apparels

and car Electrical Property and

accessories appliances investment accessories Others Eliminations Consolidated

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$ 000 HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Turnover

External sales 883787 208526 15431 200 45257 1153201

Inter-segment sales 110 110

Total turnover 883787 208636 15431 200 45257 110 1153201

Inter-segment sales are charged

at prevailing market rates

Results

Segment results 23148 1834 11884 2636 3634 30596

Unallocated corporate expenses 26461

Profit from operations 4135

Finance costs 14355

Impairment on available-

for-sale financial assets 6000

Provision for guarantee 7500

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 76021

Loss on disposal of an associate 1968

Share of result of an associate 1169 1169

Profit before tax 49164

Income tax expenses 6256

Profit for the year 42908
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Geographical segments

The Groups operations are mainly located in Hong Kong Singapore Malaysia PRC and Macau The

following table provides an analysis of the Groups turnover by geographical market irrespective of the

origin of the goods/services

Turnover by Contribution to

geographical market operating results

2008 2007 2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Hong Kong 1030466 980599 5190 23947

Singapore 81395 69539 3480 1999

Malaysia 35804 33532 3129 1727

PRC 153566 57017 14654 1954
Macau 6998 11175 489 280

Others 1339 118

1308229 1153201 3344 26117

Other operating income 16863 4479

Unallocated corporate expenses 37218 26461

Loss/profit from operations 23699 4135

Other operating income

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Commission income 3297 2479

Licence fee income for the right

of distribution of products 2000

Management fee refunded 580 1900

Interest income 8812

Exchange gain net 769

Fair value gains on derivative

financial instruments 98

Gain on disposal of property plant and equipment 1046

Sundry income 261 100

16863 4479
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Loss/profit from operations

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Loss/profit from operations has been arrived at after charging

Auditors remuneration 948 915

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses

included write-down of inventories to net realisable value

of approximately HK$460000 2007 HK$1029000 1059901 938222

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 306

Depreciation of

Owned assets 12493 9871

Assets held under finance leases 301 883

Fair value losses on other financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss 11

Staff costs including directors emoluments 118454 88749

Operating lease rental in respect of land and buildings

Minimum lease payments 39800 15916

Contingent rentals 2224

Share-based payment expenses 2153

and crediting

Interest income 1922

Foreign exchange differences net 593

Fair value gains

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments 57

Gain on disposal of property plant and equipment 444

Income tax expenses

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% 2007 17.5% of the estimated assessable profit arising in

Hong Kong for the year
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Outside Hong Kong taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Current tax

Hong Kong 6953 2058

Outside Hong Kong 1116 193

8069 2251

Deferred tax

Hong Kong 4005

Outside Hong Kong 10

10 4005

Income tax expenses attributable to the

Company and its subsidiaries 8079 6256

Loss/earnings per share

The calculation of the basic loss/earnings per share is based on the loss for the year attributable to equity

holders of the Company of approximately HK$68869000 2007 profit of HK$35677000 and on the

weighted average number of 305050834 2007 284961633 restated after adjusting for the effects of

bonus shares issue approved on April 30 2008 The basic earnings per share for 2007 had been adjusted

accordingly

Diluted loss/earnings per share for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 were the same as the

basic loss/earnings per share The Companys outstanding share options and convertible loan note were

not included in the calculation of diluted loss/earnings per share because the effects of the Companys

outstanding share options and convertible loan note were anti-dilutive

Trade and other receivables

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Trade receivables 128366 130118

Less allowance for doubtful debts 1604 4832

Total trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts 126762 125286

Deposits prepayments and other receivables 122742 59789

249504 185075
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The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net for allowance of doubtful debts at the balance

sheet date

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$ 000

Within 30 days 100630 82794

31 to 60 days 10547 18699

61 to 90 days 3911 6048

91 days to year 8075 16396

Over year 3599 1349

Total 126762 125286

The Group allows an average credit period of to 90 days to its customers

10 Trade and other payables

The following were an aged analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet date

2008 2007

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Within 30 days 26627 7995

31 to 60 days 12575 3111

61 to 90 days 7740 8953

91 days to year 6928 1410

Over year 528 2314

Total trade payables 54398 23783

Customers deposits accruals and other payables 276091 220173

330489 243956
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DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend 2007 nil for the year ended December

31 2008 No interim dividend was paid during the year 2007 nil

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND

FINANCIAL CONDITIONS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Turnover

For the year ended December 31 2008 Group turnover hit record high of HK$1308.2 million

growth of 13.4% compared to HK$1153.2 million last year While our car operations continued to

maintain healthy growth in turnover which for the first time achieved turnover of over HK$1 billion

the result of our fashion segment was unsatisfactory and drastic measures had been taken to fine-tune

this business model so as improve its financial performance

Gross Profit

Our gross profit margin increased by 0.4% from 18.6% last year to 19.0% this year resulting in our gross

profit contribution increased by HK$33.3 million to HK$248.3 million 2007 HK$215.0 million

Distribution Costs and Administrative Expenses

Distribution costs were up by 43.6% to HK$103.5 million 2007 HK$72.1 million due mainly

to the corresponding increase in turnover rental cost as well as direct staff cost including sales

commission

The increase in administrative expenses of HK$37.3 million from HK$145.2 million of last year to

HK$182.5 million this year is mainly attributed to the corresponding increase in turnover office rental

of Wo Kee Hong Building subsequent to its disposal in November 2007 which replaced the relevant

building depreciation cost in year 2007 as well as increased staff cost as result of expanded business

and new business segment

Loss from Operations

We report that loss from operations for the year under review was HK$23.7 million 2007 Profit of

HK$4.1 million As the global financial situation deteriorated our business in general encountered

severe downturn particularly during the last quarter of 2008 The sector of operations being adversely

affected most were fashion motor yachts as well as electrical appliances businesses
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We have made due impairment of HK$9.0 million 2007 HK$6.0 million on our 10% investment

in Digital Outdoor Television Hong Kong Limited DOTV which was also severely hit by the

financial tsunami Though this impairment hit the income statement it was non-cash adjustment and

thus has no negative impact on the Groups actual cash flow The management of DOTV is actively

seeking ways to improve the financial performance of this business

Finance costs dropped significantly by HK$6.1 million from HK$14.4 million to HK$8.3 million due

to the overall improvement in our cash position during 2008 as compared to previous year

loss was booked at HK$6.0 million arising from termination of Kingkows project being all costs

associated with the project inclusive of the compensation cost of HK$2.5 million as agreed in the

Termination Agreement as mentioned in our announcement made on November 12 2008

Income tax of HK$8.1 million 2007 HK$6.3 million represented mainly the profits tax payable of

car group for the year under review

Loss Attributable to Shareholders

The board delivers loss attributable to shareholders of HK$68.9 million 2007 Profit of HK$35.7

million We understand that during the current financial tsunami no business entity is able to be

immune from this hard time but we believe that cautious cash management especially one who can

maintain healthy cash flow on hand will endure and survive We will strictly adhere to this strategy

and have strong confidence that we will continue to build good future for the Groups business

Financial Condition

The Group was financed by combination of its equity capital base cash flow generated from operations

and bank borrowings As usual bank and other liabilities were being met upon their maturities in the

normal course of business

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 2008 were HK$164.0 million 2007 HK$363.9 million The

cash used in operating activities was approximately HK$188.5 million compared with the cash inflow

of HK$53.9 million for year 2007 The cash used in operations activities was mainly for purchase of

inventories especially in the motor car and motor yacht business

The Group had total borrowings at December31 2008 amounting to HK$190.6 million 2007 HK$84.3

million The Groups long term gearing ratio stood at 12.4% 2007 3.6% based on non-current

liabilities excluding deferred tax of HK$37.7 million 2007 HK$13.7 million and shareholders

equity of HK$305.1 million 2007 HK$380.4 million The current ratio was 1.4 2007 1.9 based

on current assets of HK$711.4 million 2007 HK$711.7 million and current liabilities of HK$501.2

million 2007 HK$384.2 million
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It is the Groups management practice to hedge foreign currency transactions with the objective to

stabilize the cost via the pegging of the exchange rates with bankers Accordingly the Group was not

exposed to material fluctuations in exchange rates and related hedges during the year under review At

December 31 2008 the total outstanding foreign exchange contracts purchased with banks amounted

to HK$4.8 million 2007 HK$1 1.1 million

The Group had trading facilities at December 31 2008 amounting to HK$298.6 million 2007 HK$274.2

million of which HK$214.5 million 2007 HK$150.2 million was utilized Certain of the Groups

properties motor yacht inventories cash deposits and all assets of subsidiary were pledged at year

ended 2008 in an aggregate amount of HK$218.8 million 2007 HK$156.5 million to secure facilities

granted by our bankers

At December 31 2008 the Group had contingent liabilities of approximately HK$4.0 million 2007
HK$3.5 million in respect of bank guarantee issued to the purchaser of the disposed associate in

Jiangmen by subsidiary

BUSINESS REVIEW

Cars and Car Accessories

The business consists mainly of the import distribution and after-sales service of Italian Ferrari

Maserati Alfa Romeo and Fiat cars and spare parts in Hong Kong and Macau In the PRC we

operate Ferrari and Maserati car dealerships in Dalian and Nanjing

Compared to the last year turnover increased by 13.6% to HK$1004 million as result of continued

growth of our car trading business

Sales of Ferraris 8-cylinder sports car models remained strong with the addition of 430 Scuderia

The launch of the new grand touring model the California GT was great success We have collected

very strong order portfolio and are now quoting delivery time of close to three years The limited

series Scuderia Spider 16M was introduced in November and we have pre-sold all of our allocation

in 2009 The Ferrari 12-cylinder models the 599 GTB Fiorano and the new 612 Scaglietti One-to-

One also did well in the year

Awareness of the Maserati brand achieved boost due to the arrival of two new models the

GranTurismo in September and the restyled Quattroporte in November Demand for Maseratis

two-door GranTurismo remained high with strong order portfolio

The dealership in Dalian achieved its budgeted results with good sales of both Ferrari and Maserati

cars In November we opened the second dealership in Nanjing to serve the prosperous eastern Jiangsu

province good response from the market was generated
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The PDI Pre-Delivery Inspection work being carried out by the Group on behalf of Ferrari Maserati

Cars International Trading Co Limited in Shanghai generated good additional income with the opening

of new dedicated PDI Centre in April in Shanghai

The Alfa Romeo business was slow due to highly competitive market environment This segment

suffered particularly in the last quarter of 2008 The new Fiat 500 model started well However this

segment was also depressed due to the economic downturn

As all of the Groups facilities are fully operational work has started to build another new 3S Centre

in Shatin to replace the existing Tokwawan Centre This will enable us to cope with our expanding

car business

Electrical Appliances

The business consists of marketing and distribution of wide range of consumer and commercial

air-conditioning and home appliance products from major brands namely MHI Mitsubishi Heavy

Industries of Japan Frigidaire and GREE and audio-visual products of our own Rogers and

Bodysonic brands Steinway Lyngdorf Marantz and Denon audio-visual products and Alpine

car electronics The product ranges are well-placed in the market to suit the needs of different market

segments

Turnover for 2008 was HK$196.1 million which decreased by 5.9% when compared with last year

The exceptionally cool weather in May and the successive rainy days in June and July caused

downturn to the air-conditioning business Jobbers and retailers were tied down with high inventory

which resulted in price dumping in the market The Group responded by lowering its inventory level

and putting more effort into developing the small and medium business sectors with our commercial

air-conditioners

Our own British Rogers brand which celebrated its 60th anniversary performed well in the period

with the relaunch of the legendary LS 3/5a monitor speaker system total of 12 Rogers shop-in-shop

counters were opened in major chain stores in eastern PRC

The Group was also awarded the exclusive distributorship of the top-end luxurious audio brand Steinway

Lyngdorf for Hong Kong Macau and the PRC

Our subsidiaries in Singapore achieved the best results in the past ten years with good business growth

of Alpine car audio in OEM and after market distribution The MHI air-conditioning business

in Singapore achieved good sales growth and profitability in the first half due to the introduction of

the new multi-split air-conditioner certification of the highest ratings by the National Environmental

Agency coupled with successful promotional activities and strong dealer networking Our subsidiaries

in Malaysia achieved good results with sales and profit growth due to successful implementation of

our marketing strategy
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Motor Yachts and Helicopters

The business consists of the import and distribution of the luxurious Italian Ferretti motor yachts

in the PRC the Italian Pershing motor yachts in Hong Kong and Macau and the leading Taiwanese

Horizon motor yachts in Hong Kong Macau and the PRC

2008 marks the first year for the Group to act as the exclusive distributor of Ferretti motor yachts

in the PRC In line with our business development plan for 2008 our offices in Xiamen Shenzhen

and Shanghai are actively engaged in the network development of the Ferretti and Horizon brands

through exhibitions advertising and promotional campaigns with one Ferretti yacht sold and delivered

during the second half of 2008

The first half of the year has also been very encouraging for Horizon with two yachts sold and

delivered in 2008 and number of orders are being secured for 2009

We also distribute Italian Agusta Westland helicopters in Hong Kong Macau and southern PRC This

business is still in its exploratory stage

Fashion Apparels and Accessories

The business consists of the import distribution sub-licensing and retailing of several fashion brands

including Italian John Richmond Richmond Richmond Denim and Sweet Years in Hong

Kong and the PRC These are premium brands ranging from up-market fashion to designer casual wear

Mono brand shops of John Richmond Richmond and Sweet Years are open in Hong Kong

and Beijing Distribution of Italian Marina Yachting designer casual wear started in late 2008 with

two mono brand shops open in Shenyang and Hong Kong

The Group is also licensed to manufacture and sell American Playboy lingerie and ladies swim wears

in the PRC Hong Kong Macau Taiwan Malaysia and Singapore and the Playboy ladies apparel

in the PRC and Taiwan Several sales counters are in prime department stores and more are going to

be set-up in the coming years

As part of our business expansion strategy the Group acquired controlling shareholding of 60% equity

interest in Creative Pacific Limited company engaged in the business of design trading and sale of

apparels in the PRC and together with its subsidiaries owns the reputed fashion brand V-one which

comprises seven clothing lines of different styles An overhaul of its operations has been made and it

maintains network of about 86 points of sale in the key cities of the PRC

In July 2008 our Group was appointed by the Italian Binda Group as its sole and exclusive distributor

of watches and accessories under the brands of Breil Milano DG Moschino and Ducati in

the PRC Hong Kong Macau and Taiwan until December 31 2010 Approximately 106 points of sale

were opened in the PRC and 33 in Hong Kong
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PERSONNEL

At the end of 2008 the total number of employees of the Group excluding associates was 659 2007
407 representing 62% increase in headcount This is mainly due to the acquisition of 60% stake

in Creative Pacific Limited during the year which operates the fashion brand V-one in the PRC
the set-up of new company in Nanjing in September 2008 for the operation of the newly acquired

second dealership for both Ferrari and Maserati cars and the expansion of our car business group

motor yacht business and the set-up of retail shops in Hong Kong and the PRC for fashion apparels

and accessories business

With the continuous expansion in the PRC and in the direction of securing more luxurious brands for

distribution we exercised more local recruitment The management is committed to staff motivation

training and development to ensure that our employees remain stable as well as competitive and dynamic

in the marketplace Together with the continuous organizational improvements led by our committed

management team we are confident that our business and our employees will grow together for the

benefit of the Group in the years to come

PROSPECTS

As the global financial situation worsens continuous slowdown in our key markets is expected

However the Group is confident of stable return from our car business especially Ferrari and

Maserati This is supported by strong order portfolio Successful new models like the California

GT and the forthcoming opening of our largest 3S Centre will further strengthen sales and service

income The new Nanjing dealership will be in full operation this year to generate additional sales

and profit margins

Major overhauls of the fashion business the electrical appliance business and the motor yacht business

are being carried out to cut costs significantly and enhance efficiency All business divisions are required

to contribute profit as result of such overhauls The general market for high-end fashion will be very

competitive and investments in this sector will be scaled back considerably

China is pushing ahead with economic policies to stimulate domestic consumption This will certainly

provide greater business opportunities for some of our consumer products We expect good growth

in our fashion watches and jewelry business consolidation of our middle-priced fashion lines like

V-one and Playboy will achieve growth in this market situation

Whilst the Group will continue to grow into an important lifestyle products distribution company our

business in 2009 will be managed cautiously to preserve strength in liquidity and increase efficiency

in the current uncertain economic environment
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PURCHASE SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

During the year the Company has repurchased 12350000 shares of the Companys securities The

particulars of repurchases are as follows

Number of Highest Lowest Aggregate

Month of repurchase Shares price paid price paid Price paid

HK$ HK$ HK$

2008

August 2350000 0.54 0.50 1202650

December 10000000 0.53 0.49 5199700

12350000 6402350

The above-mentioned shares were cancelled upon repurchases and accordingly the issued share capital

of the Company was diminished by the nominal value of these shares The repurchases were made for

the purpose of enhancing the net asset value per share of the Company

Save as disclosed above there was no purchase sale or redemption of the Companys listed securities

by the Company or its subsidiaries during the year

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors the Company has complied with the code provisions of the Code on

Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited Listing Rules during the year ended

December 31 2008 except in relation to the separation of the role of chairman and chief executive

officer under the code provision A.2

Code provision A.2 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate

and should not be performed by the same individual Dr Richard Man Fai LEE is the Executive Chairman

and Chief Executive Officer The Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power

and authority between the Board and the management This is because the Board has adopted clear

guideline as to the power and authority of the Board and the management There is guideline as to

the power and duties of Chief Executive Officer In addition the Board which comprises experienced

and high caliber individuals meets regularly to discuss issues and operation of the Group The Board

believes that this structure is conducive to strong and consistent leadership enabling the Group to make

and implement decisions promptly and efficiently
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REVIEW

The audit committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended

December 31 2008 including the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and

discussed the internal control and financial reporting matters during the review

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on May 18 2009 For details of the Annual

General Meeting please refer to the Notice of Annual General Meeting which is expected to be

despatched on or about April 14 2009

By order of the Board

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

Richard Man Fai LEE

Executive Chairman CEO

Hong Kong March 27 2009

As at the date of this announcement the Board comprises of Dr Richard Man Fai LEE Mr Jeff Man

Bun LEE Mr Tik Tung WONG and Mr Waison Chit Sing HUI all of whom are Executive Directors

Ms Kam Har YUE who is Non-executive Director Mr Boon Seng TAN Mr Raymond Cho Mm LEE

and Mr Ying Kwan CHEUNG all of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors

Copies of the result announcement can be obtained from the principal office in Hong Kong The 2008

Annual Report and Accounts will be sent to shareholders on or about April 14 2009

Wo Kee Hong Holdings Limited

Principal Office 1O/F Block Wo Kee Hong Building 585-609 Castle Peak Road Kwai Chung New

Territories

Fax No 852 2521-7198

Website http//www.wokeehong.com.hk

Note For the sole purpose of this announcement the PRC excludes Hong Kong and Macau Special

Administrative Regions
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WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

Stock Code 720

CHANGE OF COMPANY SECRETARY AND
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE

The board Board of directors of Wo Kee Hong Holdings Limited the Company announces

that Ms Phyllis Sum Yu NG Ms Ng has resigned as the company secretary and authorised

representative of the Company under Rule 3.05 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Listing Rules effective December 2008 The Board would

like to thank Ms Ng for her contribution to the Company during her tenure of service

Mr Man Kit LI Mr Li has been appointed as the company secretary and authorised representative

of the Company under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules effective the same day Mr Li is an associate

member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries

and Administrators The Board would like to welcome Mr Li in joining the Company

As at the date of this announcement the Board comprises Mr Richard Man Fai LEE Executive

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Mr Jeff Man Bun LEE Mr Tik Tung WONG and Mr Waison

Chit Sing HUI all of whom are executive Directors Ms Kam Har YUE who is non-executive

Director Mr Boon Seng TAN Mr Raymond Cho Mm LEE and Mr Ying Kwan CHEUNG all of

whom are independent non-executive Directors

By Order of the Board

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Richard Man Fai LEE

Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Board announces that Ms Phyllis Sum Yu NG has resigned as the company secretary and

authorised representative of the Company effective December 2008 and Mr Man Kit LI has

been appointed as the company secretary and authorised representative of the Company effective

the same day

Hong Kong December 2008



Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this announcement make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim

any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents

of this announcement

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

Stock Code 720

PROFIT WARNING

This announcement is made by Wo Kee Hong Holdings Limited the Company and together

with its subsidiaries the Group pursuant to Rule 13.091 of the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited the Listing Rules

The board of Directors of the Company the Board wishes to inform the shareholders of the

Company the Shareholders and potential investors that the Group is expected to record loss

for the year ended 31 December 2008 as compared to profit for the year ended 31 December 2007

Based on the information currently available the loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December

2008 is expected to be mainly attributable by the unsatisfactory performance of the fashion and

motor yacht businesses ii costs associated with potential acquisition which has been terminated

iii the absence of one-off significant gain arising from the disposal of subsidiaries in the year ended

31 December 2008 as compared with prior year and iv an impairment on the Groups assets

This announcement is only based on the preliminary assessment by the management in accordance

with the unaudited consolidated management accounts of the Group and is not based on any figures or

information which has been audited or reviewed by the Companys auditors The audited consolidated

results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 are expected to be announced by the end

of March 2009

Shareholders and potential investors are advised to exercise caution in dealing in shares of the

Company

This announcement is made by the Company pursuant to Rule 13.091 of the Listing Rules

The Board wishes to inform the Shareholders and potential investors that the Group is expected

to record loss for the year ended 31 December 2008 as compared to profit for the year ended

31 December 2007

Shareholders and potential investors are advised to exercise caution in dealing in shares

of the Company



As at the date of this announcement the Board comprises Mr Richard Man Fai LEE Executive

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Mr Jeff Man Bun LEE Mr Tik Tung WONG and Mr Waison

Chit Sing HUI all of whom are executive Directors Ms Kam Har YUE who is non-executive

Director Mr Boon Seng TAN Mr Raymond Cho Mm LEE and Mr Ying Kwan CHEUNG all of

whom are independent non-executive Directors

By Order of the Board

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Richard Man Fai LEE

Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong 13 March 2009



The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this announcement makes no

representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever

arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

Stock Code 720

CONNECTED TRANSACTION
PROVISION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO

NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY

PROVISION OF THE GUARANTEE

On 26 November 2008 Wo Kee Hong wholly owned subsidiary of the Company provides the

Guarantee to the Bank to secure loan to be granted by the Bank to New Conception Shanghai The

Loan will be for the principal amount of up to the Renminbi equivalent of HK$4 million bearing

normal interest chargeable by the Bank for period of 12 months New Conception Shanghai is

wholly owned subsidiary of Creative Pacific 60% indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company
New Conception Shanghai is primarily engaged in the design marketing wholesales and retail of

mens fashion apparels and the sales of accessories such as ties mens and travelling bags in the PRC
The purpose of the Loan is to provide additional working capital to New Conception Shanghai Wo
Kee Hong will charge New Conception Shanghai fee equivalent to 1% per annum of the amount of

HK$4 million being the amount of the Guarantee in respect of the provision of the Guarantee which

is the same fee charged by the Issuing Bank No security has been provided by Creative Pacific or

New Conception Shanghai to Wo Kee Hong for the Guarantee

On 26 November 2008 Wo Kee Hong wholly owned subsidiary of the Company provides the

Guarantee to the Bank to secure loan to be granted by the Bank to New Conception Shanghai

The Loan will be for the principal amount of up to the Renminbi equivalent of HK$4 million

bearing normal interest chargeable by the Bank New Conception Shanghai is wholly owned

subsidiary of Creative Pacific 60% indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company Wo Kee

Hong will charge New Conception Shanghai fee equivalent to 1% per annum of the amount

of the Guarantee in respect of the provision of the Guarantee

The provision of the Guarantee by the Company constitutes connected transaction under Rule

14A.662 of the Listing Rules and is subject to the reporting and announcement requirements

set out in the Listing Rules



Victory Globe the 40% shareholder of Creative Pacific has on 26 November 2008 provided an

indemnity in favour of Wo Kee Hong to indemnify Wo Kee Hong up to 40% of its liability under

the Guarantee being the proportionate share of Victory Globes obligation towards New Conception

Shanghai if the Guarantee is provided by Wo Kee Hong in proportion to the percentage interest of

the Company in Creative Pacific The principal activity of Victory Globe is investment holding No
fee is payable by Wo Kee Hong under the Indemnity and no asset of the Company or Wo Kee Hong

is granted to Victory Globe in respect of the provision of the Indemnity

Mr Chan director of Creative Pacific and 3.20% shareholder of Victory Globe on 26 November

2008 provided guarantee in favour of Wo Kee Hong guaranteeing the due and punctual performance

of the obligations of Victory Globe under the Indemnity No fee is payable by Victory Globe or Wo
Kee Hong for the provision of the Chans Guarantee by Mr Chan and no asset of the Company or

Wo Kee Hong is granted to Mr Chan in respect of the provision of the Chans Guarantee

REASONS FOR PROVISION OF THE GUARANTEE

The Group is principally engaged in the import marketing distribution and after-sales service of

high quality brand-name products serving customers in the Asian region in particular the markets

of the PRC Hong Kong Macau Singapore and Malaysia and property investment The products

include principally cars and car accessories motor yachts helicopters premium fashion apparels

and accessories air-conditioning and refrigeration products audio-visual equipment car audio and

electronic products

The Group has maintained credit facilities with the Issuing Bank which has not been fully utilised

As New Conception Shanghai requires additional working capital and taking into account the time it

would require for New Conception Shanghai to apply to the banks for credit facilities it is considered

to be more efficient for New Conception Shanghai to request the Bank which is the holding company
of the Issuing Bank for the Loan to be secured by the Guarantee by Wo Kee Hong to the Bank
The Guarantee is limited to HK$4 million Furthermore the exposure of Wo Kee Hong under the

Guarantee is limited to the percentage interest of the Company in Creative Pacific as Victory Globe

the 40% shareholder of Creative Pacific has provided the Indemnity in favour of Wo Kee Hong in

respect of its proportionate interest in Creative Pacific The obligations of Victory Globe under the

Indemnity are further guaranteed by Mr Chan under the Chan Guarantee The fee chargeable by

Wo Kee Hong for the provision of the Guarantee is determined by reference to the fee that is charged

by the Issuing Bank It is considered that the terms of the Guarantee are on normal commercial terms

as they are the same as those New Conception Shanghai would obtain from the Bank an independent

third party not connected with the connected persons of the Company within the meaning of the

Listing Rules

Having considered the above the Directors including the independent non-executive Directors

are of the view that the provision of the Guarantee by the Company is fair and reasonable so far

as the Shareholders are concerned and is in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as

whole



GENERAL

New Conception Shanghai is wholly owned subsidiary of Creative Pacific Creative Pacific is

owned as to 60% by Famous Name wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and as to 40% by

Victory Globe which is owned as to 66.40% by two directors of Creative Pacific Hence Creative

Pacific is company falling under Rule 14A.132aii of the Listing Rules and the provision of

the Guarantee by Wo Kee Hong to the Bank to secure the Loan constitutes connected transaction

for the Company As the Guarantee provided by Wo Kee Hong wholly owned subsidiary of the

Company is not on several basis in proportion to the Companys interest in Creative Pacific and

each of the percentage ratio other than the profits ratio is more than 2.5% but less than 25% and the

total value of the assistance is less than HK$10000000 the provision of the Guarantee is governed

by Rule 14A.662 of the Listing Rules and is subject to the reporting and announcement requirements

set out in the Listing Rules

DEFINITIONS

In this announcement the following expressions shall have the meanings set out below unless the

context requires otherwise

Bank an independent third party not connected with the connected persons

of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules and the

holding company of the Issuing Bank

Board the board of Directors

Mr Chan Mr Chan Chun Wa Vincent director of Creative Pacific who is

interested in 33.20% of Victory Globe

Chan Guarantee the guarantee provided by Mr Chan in respect of the obligations of

Victory Globe under the Indemnity

Company Wo Kee Hong Holdings Limited company incorporated in

Bermuda with limited liability and the shares are listed on the Main

Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

connected person has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

Creative Pacific Creative Pacific Limited company

incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability

Directors the directors of the Company

Famous Name Famous Name Holdings Limited company incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands with limited liability and wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company which holds 60% of the issued share

capital of Creative Pacific



Group the Company and its subsidiaries

Guarantee the guarantee provided by Wo Kee Hong by way of letter of

credit issued by the Issuing Bank for an amount of HK$4 million

as security for the Loan

Hong Kong the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the Peoples

Republic of China

Indemnity the indemnity provided by Victory Globe to Wo Kee Hong

indemnifying Wo Kee Hong for up to 40% of its liability under the

Guarantee

Issuing Bank the issuing bank of the letter of credit constituting the Guarantee

which is an independent third party not connected with the

connected persons of the Company within the meaning of the

Listing Rules

Listing Rules the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited

Loan the loan by the Bank to New Conception Shanghai in the principal

amount of up to the Renminbi equivalent of HK$4 million

Macau the Macau Special Administrative Region of the Peoples Republic

of China

New Conception Shanghai L1JNew Conception Fashion Shanghai Co
Ltd wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC and

wholly-owned subsidiary of Creative Pacific

PRC The Peoples Republic of China and for the sole purpose of this

announcement shall exclude Hong Kong Macau and Taiwan

Renminbi the lawful currency of the PRC

Victory Globe Victory Globe International Limited company incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands with limited liability which holds 40% of the

issued share capital of Creative Pacific

Wo Kee Hong Wo Kee Hong Limited wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
and

HK$ Hong Kong dollars the lawful currency of Hong Kong



As at the date of this announcement the Board comprises Mr Richard Man Fai LEE Executive

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Mr Jeff Man Bun LEE Mr Tik Tung WONG and Mr Waison

Chit Sing HUI all of whom are executive Directors Ms Kam Har YUE who is non-executive

Director Mr Boon Seng TAN Mr Raymond Cho Mm LEE and Mr Ying Kwan CHEUNG all of

whom are independent non-executive Directors

By Order of the Board

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Richard Man Fai LEE

Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong 26 November 2008



The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this announcement makes no

representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever

arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

Stock Code 720

TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT TO ACQUIRE
80% INTEREST IN COMPANY ENGAGING IN

THE BUSINESS OF RETAILING AND WHOLESALING OF
CHILDREN APPARELS

AND GRANT OF PUT OPTION

BACKGROUND

Reference is made to the announcement made by Wo Kee Hong Holdings Limited the Company
together with its subsidiaries the Group dated September 2008 in relation to the proposed

acquisition of 80% interest in company engaging in the business of retailing and wholesaling of

children apparels and grant of put option and the circular issued by the Company dated 26 September

2008 the Circular Unless otherwise defined terms used herein shall have the same meanings as

in the Circular

The Sale and Purchase Agreement was entered into between the Vendors and Smart Apex wholly

owned subsidiary of the Company on September 2008 in relation to the Acquisition Since the

signing of the Sale and Purchase Agreement the parties have taken necessary actions to fulfil the

conditions precedent for the completion of the Sale and Purchase Agreement As at the date of this

announcement all the conditions precedent of the Sale and Purchase Agreement have been fulfilled

in particular the Sale and Purchase Agreement and the Acquisition and the grant of the Put Option

were approved by the Shareholders at the Special General Meeting held on 14 October 2008 The

parties were prepared to proceed to complete the Sale and Purchase Agreement however for reasons

set out in the paragraph headed Reasons for the Termination below the parties mutually agreed to

terminate the Sale and Purchase Agreement the Termination

This announcement is made pursuant to the disclosure obligation of the Company under Rule

14.36 of the Listing Rules

On 12 November 2008 the Vendors and Smart Apex entered into the Termination Agreement

and mutually agreed to terminate the Sale and Purchase Agreement Upon the signing of the

Termination Agreement Smart Apex has paid an amount of HK$2500000 to the Vendors

pursuant to the terms of the Termination Agreement



THE TERMINATION

On 12 November 2008 the Vendors and Smart Apex entered into the termination agreement the

Termination Agreement and mutually agreed to terminate the Sale and Purchase Agreement

Pursuant to the Termination Agreement Smart Apex has paid to the Vendors sum of HK$2500000

the Compensation being the costs incurred by the Vendors in relation to the negotiation of the

Sale and Purchase Agreement and the performance of their obligations thereunder Upon the signing

of the Termination Agreement and payment of the Compensation none of the parties to the Sale

and Purchase Agreement has any liability towards the other parties under the Sale and Purchase

Agreement

REASONS FOR THE TERMINATION

Although the parties were prepared to proceed to complete the Sale and Purchase Agreement and the

Company has sufficient financial resources to perform its obligations under the Sale and Purchase

Agreement in light of the current economic condition the Board decided to adopt more conservative

approach in managing the financial affairs of the Group The Group has maintained healthy cash

level and the long term gearing ratio was 11.4% based on the unaudited consolidated non-current

liabilities of HK$39.1 million and shareholders equity of HK$342.0 million as at 30 September

2008 The Board considered it more appropriate to retain more cash in hand instead of completing the

Acquisition As the Termination is initiated by the Company and the Vendors have taken all necessary

actions for the fulfilment of those conditions precedent which are within their responsibilities the

Directors are of the view that the payment of the Compensation which amount is equivalent to the

costs incurred by the Vendors in relation to and under the Sale and Purchase Agreement is fair and

reasonable Having considered the above the Directors are of the view that the Termination does

not have any material impact on the operation and business of the Group and that the Termination

and the payment of the Compensation is in the best interest of the Company and the shareholders as

whole

GENERAL

The entering into of the Termination Agreement constitutes termination of transaction of the

Company previously announced pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is disclosable under

Rule 14.36 of the Listing Rules

As at the date of this announcement the Board comprises Mr Richard Man Fai LEE Executive

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Mr Jeff Man Bun LEE Mr Tik Tung WONG and Mr Waison

Chit Sing HUI all of whom are executive Directors Ms Kam Har YUE who is non-executive

Director Mr Boon Seng TAN Mr Raymond Cho Mm LEE and Mr Ying Kwan CHEUNG all of

whom are independent non-executive Directors

By Order of the Board

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Richard Man Fai LEE

Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong 12 November 2008



WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

Stock Code 720

DATE OF BOARD MEETING

The board of directors the Board of Wo Kee Hong Holdings Limited the Company announces

that meeting of the Board will be held on Friday 27 March 2009 for the purpose of among other

matters approving the final results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December

2008 and considering the recommendation of final dividend if any

As at the date of this announcement the Board comprises Mr Richard Man Fai LEE Executive

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Mr Jeff Man Bun LEE Mr Tik Tung WONG and Mr Waison

Chit Sing HUI all of whom are executive Directors Ms Kam Har YUE who is non-executive

Director Mr Boon Seng TAN Mr Raymond Cho Mm LEE and Mr Ying Kwan CIIEUNG all of

whom are independent non-executive Directors

By order of the Board

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

Man Kit LI

Company Secretary

Hong Kong 17 March 2009



Form of Share Buyback Report to The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited the Exchange

Form

To The Head of the Listing Divisbn

The Listing Division

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited 16 December2008

Dear Sir

Name of Company Wo Kee Hong Holdings Limited

Description of Securities Ordinary Shares

Purchase Report

We hereby report the following purchases by our company of the above securities

Price per
Number of Share or Lowest

Trading
Securities Method of Highest Price Price Total

Day/Date Purchased Purchase Paid Paid Paid

16 December 4000000 On the 0.53 0.52 2100000.00

2008 Exchange

Total 4000000 2100000.00

Either on the Exchange on another stock exchange stating the name of the exchange by private

arrangement or by general offer

Additkrnal Information for companys whose primary listing is on the Exchange

Number of such securities purchased on the Exchange

in the ar to date since oitlinary resolution 6.350000

of issued share capital at time ordinary resolution

passed acquired on the Exchange since date of resolution

axlOO

Issued share capital 2.4871%



We hereby confirm that the purchases set out in above which were made on the Exchange were made in

accordance with the listing rules of the Exchange entitled Rules Governing the Listing of Securities and that

there have been no material changes to the particulars contained in the Explanatory Statement dated Aril

which has been filed with the Exchange We also confirm that any purchases set out in above which

were made on another stock exchange were made in accordance with the domestic rules applying to

purchases made on that other exchange

Yours faithfully

Name Man Kit LI

Company Secretary

for and on behalf of

Wo Kee Hong Holdings Limited



Form of Share Buyback Report to The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited the Exchange

Form

To The Head of the Listing Division

The Listing Division

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited 17 December2008

Dear Sir

Name of Company Wo Kee Hong Holdings Limited

Description of Securities Ordinary Shares

Purthase Report

We hereby report the following purchases by our company of the above securities

Price per
Number of Share or Lowest

Trading Securities Method of Highest Price Price Total

Day/Date Purchased Purchase Paid Paid Paid

17 December 6000000 On the 0.53 0.49 3099700.00

2008 Exchange

Total 6000000 3099700.00

Either on the Exchange on another stock exchange stating the name of the exchange by private

arrangement or by general offer

Additional Information for companVs whose primary listing
is on the Exchange

Number of such securities purchased on the Exchange
in the arto date since orthnary resolution 12.350000

of issued share capital at time ordinary resolution

passed acquired on the Exchange since date of resolution

axlOO

Issued share capital 4.8372%



We hereby confirm that the purchases set out in above which were made on the Exchange were made in

accordance with the listing rules of the Exchange entitled Rules Governing the Listing of Securities and that

there have been no material changes to the particulars contained in the Explanatory Statement dated Arril

2008 which has been filed with the Exchange We also confirm that any purchases set out in above which

were made on another stock exchange were made in accordance with the domestic rules applying to

purchases made on that other exchange

Yours faithfully

Name Man Kit LI

Company Secretary

for and on behalf of

Wo Kee Hong Holdings Limited



THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken you should

consult your licensed securities dealer bank manager solicitor professional accountant or other

professional adviser

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

you should at once hand this circular with the accompanying form of proxy to the purchasers or

transferees or to the licensed securities dealer bank or other agent through whom the sale was

effected for transmission to the purchasers or transferees

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take

no responsibility for the contents of this document make no representation as to its accuracy or

completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or

in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this document

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

Stock Code 720

PROPOSED DIRECTORS FOR RE-ELECTION
GENERAL MANDATE TO ISSUE NEW SHARES

AND
GENERAL MANDATE TO REPURCHASE SECURITIES

notice convening the annual general meeting of WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED the

Company to be held at Crystal Room 3rd Floor Panda Hotel Tsuen Wah Street Tsuen Wan
New Territories Hong Kong on Monday May 18 2009 at 1000 a.m or any adjournment thereof is

set out on pages 13 to 16 of this circular

If you are not able to attend the annual general meeting in person please complete the form of proxy in

accordance with the instructions printed thereon and return it to the principal office of the Company in

Hong Kong at 10th Floor Block Wo Kee Hong Building 585-609 Castle Peak Road Kwai Chung

New Territories Hong Kong as soon as possible and in any event not less than 48 hours before the

time fixed for holding of the annual general meeting or any adjourned meeting as the case may be
Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude you from attending and voting in person

at the annual general meeting or any adjourned meeting as the case may be or upon the poll concerned

should you so wish In such event the instrument appointing proxy shall be deemed to be revoked

April 15 2009

for identification purposes only
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RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the purpose

of giving information with regard to the Company The Directors collectively and individually accept

full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this document and confirm having

made all reasonable enquiries that to the best of their knowledge and belief there are no other facts

the omission of which would make any statement herein misleading
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular unless the context otherwise requires the following expressions shall have the

following meanings

Annual General Meeting the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at Crystal

Room 3rd Floor Panda Hotel Tsuen Wah Street Tsuen Wan
New Territories Hong Kong on Monday May 18 2009 at 1000

a.m or any adjournment thereof

associates has the same meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules

Board the board of Directors

Bye-laws the bye-laws of the Company

Company WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED an exempted company

incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability whose Shares

are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange

Directors the directors of the Company

Group the Company and its subsidiaries

Hong Kong The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the Peoples

Republic of China

Issue Mandate the general and unconditional m.andate to be granted to the

Directors at the Annual General Meeting to exercise all the

power to allot issue and otherwise deal with new shares in the

Company not exceeding 20% of the issued share capital of the

Company as at the date of the passing of the resolution approving

such mandate

Latest Practicable Date April 2009 being the latest practicable date prior to the

printing of this circular for ascertaining certain information

contained herein

Listing Rules The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange

Repurchase Mandate the general and unconditional mandate to be granted to the

Directors at the Annual General Meeting to repurchase securities

of the Company on the Stock Exchange of up to 10% of the

issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the passing

of the resolution approving such mandate



DEFINITIONS

SF0 Securities and Futures Ordinance Chapter 571 of the Laws of

Hong Kong

Shares ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the

Company

Shareholders holders of Shares

Stock Exchange The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Takeovers Code The Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers and

HK$ Hong Kong dollars the lawful currency of Hong Kong
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

Stock Code 720

Executive Directors

Dr Richard Man Fai LEE

Executive Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Mr Jeff Man Bun LEE

Mr uk Tung WONG
Mr Waison Chit Sing HUT

Non-executive Director

Ms Kam Har YUE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Boon Seng TAN

Mr Raymond Cho Mm LEE

Mr Ying Kwan CHEUNG

To all Shareholders

Dear Sir or Madam

Registered office

Canons Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM12

Bermuda

Principal office in Hong Kong

10th Floor Block

Wo Kee Hong Building

585-609 Castle Peak Road

Kwai Chung

New Territories

Hong Kong

April 15 2009

PROPOSED DIRECTORS FOR RE-ELECTION

GENERAL MANDATE TO ISSUE NEW SHARES

AND
GENERAL MANDATE TO REPURCHASE SECURITIES

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this circular is to provide you with information on matters to be dealt with

at the Annual General Meeting They are the proposed re-election of Dr Richard Man Fai LEE
Mr Boon Seng TAN and Ms Kam Har YUE as Directors and ii the proposed grant of the Issue

Mandate and the Repurchase Mandate

for identification purpose only
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD

PROPOSED DIRECTORS FOR RE-ELECTION

According to Bye-law 99A at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors save

for any chairman or managing director for the time being or if their number is not multiple of

three the number nearest to but not greater than one-third shall retire from office by rotation

The Directors to retire at every annual general meeting shall be those who have been longest in office

since their last election but as between persons who became Directors on the same day those to retire

unless they otherwise agree between themselves shall be determined by lot Such retiring Directors

shall be eligible for re-election

The number nearest one-third of the seven Directors excluding Dr Richard Man Fai LEE who

is the executive Chairman shall retire from office according to Bye-law 99A Mr Boon Seng TAN
the independent non-executive Director and Ms Kam Har YUE the non-executive Director being

the Directors longest in office since their last election shall retire at the Annual General Meeting

and being eligible shall offer themselves for re-election According to the Wo Kee Hong Holdings

Limited Company Act 1991 no Director holding the office of chairman or managing director shall

be subject to retirement by rotation as provided in the Bye-Laws of the Company In order to comply

with Code Provision A.4.2 of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices set out in Appendix 14

to the Listing Rules that every director including those appointed for specific term should be

subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years Dr Richard Man Fai LEE being the

Chairman of the Company will retire voluntarily from office at the Annual General Meeting and

being eligible offer himself for re-election

Each of Dr Richard Man Fai LEE Mr Boon Seng TAN and Ms Kam Har YUE has indicated

his/her willingness to be re-elected at the Annual General Meeting

Bye-law 103 provides that no person other than retiring Director shall unless recommended

by the Board for election be eligible for election to the office of Director at any general meeting

unless not less than seven days before the date appointed for the meeting there shall have been

lodged at the office of the Company notice in writing signed by Shareholder other than the person

to be proposed duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his

intention to propose such person for election and also notice in writing signed by the person to be

proposed of his willingness to be elected

Accordingly if Shareholder wishes to nominate person to stand for election as Director at

the Annual General Meeting notice of his intention to propose such person for election as Director

and the notice executed by the nominee of his willingness to be elected must be validly served at

the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong at 10th Floor Block Wo Kee Hong Building

585-609 Castle Road Kwai Chung New Territories Hong Kong on or before Sunday May 10

2009

Details and brief biographies of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the Annual

General Meeting are set out in Appendix to this circular If valid notice from Shareholder to

propose person to stand for election as Director at the Annual General Meeting is received after

the printing of this circular the Company will issue supplementary circular to inform Shareholders

of the details of the additional candidates proposed

-4-



LETTER FROM THE BOARD

ISSUE MANDATE

An ordinary resolution will be proposed to grant to the Directors the Issue Mandate in the

terms set out in the notice of the Annual General Meeting to exercise the power to allot issue and

otherwise deal with new Shares not exceeding the aggregate of 20% of the issued share capital of the

Company as at the date of passing the relevant resolution and adding the aggregate nominal amount

of any Shares repurchased by the Company pursuant to the Repurchase Mandate

REPURCHASE MANDATE

An ordinary resolution will also be proposed to grant to the Directors the Repurchase Mandate

in the terms set out in the notice of the Annual General Meeting to exercise the power to repurchase

Shares not exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of passing of

the relevant resolution

An explanatory statement to provide relevant information in respect of the Repurchase Mandate

is set out in Appendix II to this circular

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

notice convening the Annual General Meeting to be held at Crystal Room 3rd Floor Panda

Hotel Tsuen Wah Street Tsuen Wan New Territories Hong Kong on Monday May 18 2009 at

1000 a.m or any adjournment thereof is set out on pages 13 to 16 of this circular and form of

proxy for use at the Annual General Meeting is herein enclosed

If you are not able to attend the Annual General Meeting in person please complete the form

of proxy in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and return it to the principal office of

the Company in Hong Kong at 10th Floor Block Wo Kee Hong Building 585-609 Castle Peak

Road Kwai Chung New Territories Hong Kong as soon as possible and in any event not less than 48

hours before the time fixed for holding of the Annual General Meeting or any adjourned meeting as

the case may be Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude you from attending

and voting in person at the Annual General Meeting or any adjourned meeting as the case may be

or upon the poil concerned should you so wish In such event the instrument appointing proxy

shall be deemed to be revoked

PROCEDURES FOR POLL VOTING

Pursuant to Rule 13.394 of the Listing Rules all resolutions set out in the notice of the Annual

General Meeting will be decided by poll

Accordingly the Chairman of the meeting will at the Annual General Meeting demand poll on

all resolutions set out in the notice of the Annual General Meeting pursuant to Bye-law 70

-5-



LETTER FROM THE BOARD

Pursuant to Bye-law 76 on poii every member present in person or by duly authorised

corporate representative or by proxy shall have one vote for every share of which he is the holder

which is fully paid up or credited as fully paid up but so that no amount paid up or credited as paid

up on share in advance of calls or instalments shall be treated for the purposes of this Bye-law as

paid up on share On poll member entitled to more than one vote need not use all his votes or

cast his votes in the same way

Poll voting slips will be distributed to Shareholders or their authorised corporate representative

or their proxies upon registration of attendance at the Annual General Meeting Shareholders who want

to cast all their votes entitled may mark in either FOR or AGAINST box corresponding to

the resolution to indicate whether he/she supports that resolution For Shareholders who do not want

to use all their votes or want to split votes in casting particular resolution shall indicate the number

of votes cast on particular resolution in the FOR or AGAINST box where appropriate but the

total votes cast must not exceed his/her entitled votes or otherwise the voting slip will be spoiled

and the Shareholders vote will not be counted Shareholders shall sign on the voting slip

After closing the poll Tricor Standard Limited the Companys registrar in Hong Kong who is

appointed as scrutineer for the vote-taking will count the votes

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Board considers that the proposed re-election of the retiring Directors and the grant of the

Issue Mandate and the Repurchase Mandate are in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as

whole and therefore recommends the Shareholders to vote in favour of all of the relevant resolutions

to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

Yours faithfully

For and on behalf of

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

Dr Richard Man Fai LEE

Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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APPENDIX BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS PROPOSED
FOR RE-ELECTION

The details and brief biographies of the Directors proposed to be re-elected at the Annual

General Meeting are set out as follows

Dr Richard Man Fai LEE aged 52 was appointed as an executive Director on June 1991

Dr LEE is the executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company Dr LEE holds

bachelor degree in Business Studies and master degree in Business Administration from the University

of Minnesota He is the son of Mr Wing Sum LEE the former Director and the Honorary Chairman

of the Company and Ms Kam Har YUE non-executive Director and the elder brother of Mr Jeff

Man Bun LEE an executive Director Save as disclosed Dr LEE does not have any relationship with

any directors senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company

Dr LEE is director of various subsidiaries and principal associates of the Company Dr

LEE is responsible for formulating the Groups overall strategic planning and business development

Dr LEE has 29 years experience in marketing consumer products He was elected and had served for

two consecutive terms as the Chairman of the Radio Association of Hong Kong the trade association

of audio visual business in Hong Kong He has been with the Group for 25 years He is the Chairman

and Chief Executive Officer of China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise Inc an associated company

of the Group whose shares are traded on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board in the U.S Save as

disclosed Dr LEE has not held any directorships in any other listed public companies in the last

three
years

and any other positions with other members of the Group

According to the service contract between Dr LEE and the Company there is no fixed term

of service Dr LEE as the Chairman of the Company is not subject to retirement by rotation and

re-election provisions under the Bye-Laws However in accordance with paragraph A.4.2 of the Code

on Corporate Governance Practices set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules Dr LEE is subject

to retirement by rotation every three years Under the service contract there is no provision for

fixed directors fee for Dr LEE however Dr LEE is entitled to monthly remuneration package of

HK$189467 plus discretionary profit sharing and bonus scheme with reference to the Companys

consolidated net profits

As at the Latest Practicable Date Dr LEE together with Modern Orbit Limited and their

respective associates is interested in 119340009 Shares representing approximately 40.59% of the

issued share capital of the Company Save for the above interest in Shares and the options granted

to him under the share option schemes of the Company established in accordance with Chapter 17

of the Listing Rules Dr LEE has no other interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV
of the SF0

To the best of Dr LEEs knowledge and as far as he is aware the following companies have

been dissolved pursuant to creditors winding-up proceedings during the time when Dr LEE was

director of each of the followings Forward International Singapore Private Limited incorporated

in Singapore and whose nature of business was sales and distribution of multimedia products The

winding up proceedings which was based on an outstanding judgment debt for the amount of Singapore

Dollars 4074944.10 was commenced on January 2002 and concluded on September 2005 ii

Wo Kee Hong Singapore Pte Limited incorporated in Singapore and whose nature of business was
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APPENDIX BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS PROPOSED
FOR RE-ELECTION

sales and distribution of car and home audio products The winding up proceedings which was based

on an outstanding judgment debt for the amount of Singapore Dollars 2024942.53 was commenced

on January 2002 and concluded on September 2005 and iii Forward Electronics Malaysia

Sdn Bhd incorporated in Malaysia and whose nature of business was sales and distribution of audio

products before it became dormant in December 31 2001 The winding up proceedings which was based

on an outstanding judgment debt for the amount of Malaysian Ringgits 670060.77 was commenced

on February 13 2008 winding up petition hearing will be held on April 29 2009 at High Court

of Malaysia at Kuala Lumpur

Save as disclosed above in relation to Dr LEEs re-election as Director there is no other

information to be disclosed pursuant to any of the requirements of the provisions under Rule 13.5 12
of the Listing Rules

Mr Boon Seng TAN aged 53 has been an independent non-executive Director since April

1999 and is member of the Audit Committee and the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee of

the Company Mr TAN holds master degree in Arts from the Cambridge University Mr TAN is

the Chairman and Managing Director of Lee Hing Development Limited and non-executive director

of Star Cruises Limited both companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange He

is also the executive Director of 1GB Corporation Berhad company listed on the stock exchange

of Kuala Lumpar Malaysia Save as disclosed Mr TAN has not held any directorships in any other

listed public companies in the last three years

Mr TAN is not connected with any director senior management substantial or controlling

shareholders of the Company Apart from being an independent non-executive Director Mr TAN

does not hold any position in other members of the Group As at the Latest Practicable Date Mr

TAN is interested in 325662 Shares representing approximately 0.11% of the issued share capital of

the Company Save for the above interests in Shares and the options granted to him under the share

option schemes of the Company established in accordance with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules Mr

TAN has no other interests in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SF0

There is no service contract between Mr TAN and the Company Mr TANs term of service

with the Company has been fixed at two years with effect from April 25 2007 subject to retirement by

rotation and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws Mr TANs remuneration as an independent

non-executive Director is set at HK$90000 per annum with reference to the Companys remuneration

policy and guidelines adopted by the remuneration committee of the Company and the prevailing

market rate

Mr TAN has met the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rule

In relation to Mr TANs re-election as Director there is no other information to be disclosed

pursuant to any of the requirements of the provisions under Rule 13.512 of the Listing Rules
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APPENDIX BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS PROPOSED
FOR RE-ELECTION

Ms Kam Har YUE aged 76 was involved in the policy making of the Group from 1962 to

December 1989 She has been re-designated as non-executive Director since then to scrutinise

the performance of management of the Company She has over 34 years experience in trading and

distribution of consumer products Other than the directorship with each of the Company and various

subsidiaries of the Company Ms YUE has not held any directorships in any other public listed

companies in the last three years and any other positions with other members of the Group

Ms YUE is the spouse of Mr Wing Sum LEE who is the former Director and the Honorary

Chairman of the Company and the mother of Dr Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr Jeff Man Bun LEE
both of whom are executive Directors Save as disclosed Ms YUE does not have any relationship

with any directors senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company

As at the Latest Practicable Date Ms YUE together with Modern Orbit Limited and their

respective associates is interested in 122811943 Shares representing approximately 41.77% of the

issued share capital of the Company Save for the above interest in Shares and the options granted

to her under the share option schemes of the Company established in accordance with Chapter 17 of

the Listing Rules Ms YUE has no other interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of

the SF0

There is no service contract between Ms YUE and the Company Ms YUEs term of service

with the Company is fixed at two years with effect from April 25 2007 and she is subject to retirement

by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the

Bye-laws Ms YUEs remuneration as non-executive Director is set at HK$34000 per annum with

reference to the Companys remuneration policy and guidelines adopted by the remuneration committee

of the Company and the prevailing market rate

In relation to Ms YUEs re-election as Director there is no other information to be disclosed

pursuant to any of the requirements of the provisions under Rule 13.5 12 of the Listing Rules

The Board is not aware of any other matter in relation to the proposed re-election of the retiring

Directors which needs to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company
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APPENDIX II EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

This Appendix serves as an explanatory statement as required by the Listing Rules to provide

information to you with regard to the Repurchase Mandate to be proposed at the Annual General

Meeting

THE LISTING RULES

The Listing Rules contain provisions regulating the repurchase by companies whose primary

listings are on the Stock Exchange of their securities on the Stock Exchange The following is

summary of certain provisions of the Listing Rules relating to repurchase of securities

Shareholders Approval

The Listing Rules provide that all proposed repurchases of securities by company with

primary listing on the Stock Exchange must be approved in advance by an ordinary resolution of

shareholders either by way of general mandate or by specific approval of particular transaction

Source of Funds

Repurchases must be funded out of funds legally available for such purpose in accordance with

the Companys memorandum of association and Bye-laws and the Companies Act company may

not repurchase its own securities on the Stock Exchange for consideration other than cash or for

settlement otherwise than in accordance with the trading rules of the Stock Exchange Any repurchase

by the Company may be made out of the capital paid up on the purchased shares or out of the funds of

the Company which would otherwise be available for dividend or distribution or out of the proceeds

of fresh issue of shares made for the purpose Any premium payable on purchase over the par

value of the shares to be purchased must be provided for out of funds of the Company which would

otherwise be available for dividend or distribution or out of the Companys share premium account

REASONS FOR REPURCHASES

Although the Directors have no present intention of repurchasing any securities they believe

that the flexibility afforded by the Repurchase Mandate would be beneficial to the Company and the

Shareholders Repurchases will only be made when the Directors believe that such repurchases will

benefit the Company and the Shareholders Such repurchases may depending on market conditions

and funding arrangement at the time lead to an enhancement of the net value of the Company and

its assets and/or its earnings per Share

FUNDING OF REPURCHASES

Repurchases of Shares will be funded out of funds legally available for the purchase in

accordance with the Companys memorandum of association and the Bye-laws and the applicable

laws of Bermuda
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APPENDIX II EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

On the basis of the current financial position of the Company as disclosed in the audited

accounts contained in the 2008 annual report of the Company there might be an adverse effect on

the working capital requirements or gearing levels of the Company in the event that the Repurchase

Mandate is exercised in full at any time However the Directors do not propose to exercise the

Repurchase Mandate to such an extent as would in the circumstances have material adverse effect

on the working capital requirements of the Company or its gearing levels which in the opinion of the

Directors are from time to time appropriate for the Company The exercise in full of the Repurchase

Mandate on the basis of 294027710 Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date assuming that

no Shares are issued or repurchased during the period from the Latest Practicable Date up to the date

of the Annual General Meeting would result in up to 29402771 Shares being repurchased by the

Company during the period in which the Repurchase Mandate remains in force

GENERAL

None of the Directors nor to the best of their knowledge having made all reasonable enquires

any of their associates have any present intention if the Repurchase Mandate is approved by the

Shareholders to sell any Shares to the Company

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange that so far as the same may be applicable

they will only exercise the Repurchase Mandate in accordance with the Listing Rules the applicable

laws of Bermuda and the Companys memorandum of association and Bye-laws

If as result of repurchase Shareholders proportionate interest in the voting rights of the

Company increases such increase will be treated as an acquisition for the purposes of the Takeovers

Code and if such increase results in change of control may in certain circumstances give rise to

an obligation to make mandatory offer in accordance with Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code

As at the Latest Practicable Date Modern Orbit Limited Dr Richard Man Fai LEE Ms Kam

Har YUE Mr Jeff Man Bun LEE and Fisherman Enterprises Inc and their respective associates

collectively the Controlling Shareholders were interested in 127892810 Shares representing

approximately 43.50% of the issued share capital of the Company Based on such shareholdings in

the event that the Directors exercise in full the power to repurchase shares in the Company pursuant

to the Repurchase Mandate the shareholdings of the Controlling Shareholders would increase to

approximately 48.33% of the issued share capital of the Company thereby triggering an obligation to

make mandatory offer under Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code The Directors however have no present

intention of exercising the general mandate to such extent as would result in any mandatory offer

Furthermore the Directors do not consider such increase would reduce the issued share capital

in public hands to less than 25% or the relevant prescribed minimum percentage required by the

Stock Exchange

No connected person as defined in the Listing Rules including director chief executive or

substantial shareholder of the Company or its subsidiaries or an associate of any of them has notified

the Company that he has present intention to sell Shares to the Company or has undertaken not to

do so if the Repurchase Mandate is approved by the Shareholders
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APPENDIX II EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

SHARE PRICES

The highest and lowest prices at which the Shares were traded on the Stock Exchange during

each of the previous twelve months preceding the Latest Practicable Date were as follows

Highest Lowest

HK$ HK$

2008

April 0.6920 0.5900

May 0.6500 0.5800

June 0.6000 0.5200

July 0.6000 0.4850

August 0.5400 0.4200

September 0.4300 0.1750

October 0.2800 0.1200

November 0.2050 0.1420

December 0.6600 0.1650

2009

January 0.2850 0.2020

February 0.2600 0.1680

March 0.2150 0.1500

April up to the Latest Practicable Date 0.2150 0.1950

SECURITIES PURCHASES MADE BY THE COMPANY

The Company has purchased 10000000 Shares on the Stock Exchange during the six months

preceding the Latest Practicable Date particulars of which are as follows

Highest

price paidl Lowest

Number of Price per price paid/

Date of purchase Shares purchased Share Price per Share

HK$ HK$

2008

16 December 4000000 0.53 0.52

17 December 6000000 0.53 0.49

Save as disclosed the Company has not make any repurchase of Shares whether on the Stock

Exchange or otherwise during the six months preceding the Latest Practicable Date
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

Stock Code 720

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS
LIMITED Company will be held at Crystal Room 3rd Floor Panda Hotel Tsuen Wah Street

Tsuen Wan New Territories Hong Kong on Monday May 18 2009 at 1000 a.m or any adjournment

thereof for the purposes of considering and if thought fit passing with or without modification

the following resolutions

To receive and consider the audited consolidated accounts and the reports of directors

and auditors of the Company for the year ended December 31 2008

To re-elect the following persons as directors of the Company

Dr Richard Man Fai LEE

ii Mr Boon Seng TAN and

iii Ms Kam Har YUE and

To authorise the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration of the Directors

To authorise the Board of Directors to appoint auditors of the Company and to fix their

remuneration

As special business to consider and if thought fit passing with or without modification

the following resolutions as ordinary resolutions

THAT

subject to paragraph of this resolution the directors of the Company the

Directors be and are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised to

exercise during the Relevant Period as that term is defined below all the

powers of the Company to allot issue and deal with additional shares of the

Company and to make or grant offers agreements and options including

warrants bonds and debentures notes and any securities which carry rights

to subscribe for or are convertible into ordinary shares of the Company
which would or might require the exercise of any of such powers during or

after the end of the Relevant Period

for identfi cation purpose only
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

the aggregate nominal amount of the shares allotted issued or otherwise

dealt with or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted issued

or otherwise dealt with whether pursuant to an option or otherwise by

the Directors pursuant to the approval in paragraph of this resolution

other than pursuant to Rights Issue as that term is defined below

or ii an issue of ordinary shares of the Company upon the exercise of

rights of subscription or conversion under the terms of any warrants of the

company or any securities which are convertible into ordinary shares of

the Company or iii an issue of ordinary shares of the Company by way

of script dividend pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company from time to

time or iv the exercise of any option granted under any option scheme

or similar arrangement for the time being adopted for the grant or issue to

employees of the Company and/or its subsidiaries of options to subscribe

for or rights to acquire shares of the Company shall not in total exceed

20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company

in issue as at the date of passing of this resolution

for the purpose of this resolution Relevant Period means the period from

the passing of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company

ii the revocation or variation of the authority given under this resolution

by ordinary resolution of the shareholders in general meeting or

iii the expiration of the period within which the next annual general

meeting of the Company is required by the Bye-laws of the Company

or any applicable laws to be held and

for the purpose of this resolution Rights Issue means an offer of shares

for subscription open for fixed period by the Company to holders of

shares on the register of members of the Company on fixed record date in

proportion to their then holdings of shares subject to such exclusion or other

arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation

to fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or obligations

under the laws of or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or

any stock exchange in any territory outside Hong Kong

-14-



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

THAT

subject to paragraph of this resolution the directors of the Company be

and are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised to exercise during

the Relevant Period as that term is defined below all the powers of the

Company to purchase its shares in the capital of the Company subject to and

in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations of Bermuda Bye-laws

of the Company and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as amended from

time to time

the aggregate nominal amount of the shares which may be purchased pursuant

to the approval in paragraph above shall not in total exceed 10% of the

aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue as

at the date of passing of this resolution and

for the purpose of this resolution Relevant Period means the period from

the passing of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company

ii the revocation or variation of the authority given under this resolution

by ordinary resolution of the shareholders in general meeting or

iii the expiration of the period within which the next annual general

meeting of the Company is required by the Bye-laws of the Company

or any applicable laws to be held

THAT conditional upon the resolutions Number 4A and 4B contained in the

notice convening this meeting being approved the aggregate nominal amount of the

shares in the capital of the Company which are to be repurchased by the Company

pursuant to and in accordance with the resolution Number 4B shall be added to

the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company that may be

allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted by the directors

of the Company pursuant to and in accordance with resolution Number 4A

By order of the Board

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

Man Kit LI

Company Secretary

Hong Kong April 15 2009

15



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Registered office Principal office in Hong Kong

Canons Court 10th Floor Block

22 Victoria Street Wo Kee Hong Building

Hamilton HM12 585-609 Castle Peak Road

Bermuda Kwai Chung

New Territories

Hong Kong

Notes

shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting may appoint another person as his proxy to attend and to

vote in his stead shareholder who is the holder of two or more shares may appoint more than one proxy to attend on

the same occasion proxy need not be shareholder of the Company

Where there are joint registered holders of any Share any one of such persons may vote at the meeting either personally

or by proxy in respect of such Share as if he were solely entitled thereto but if more than one of such joint holders are

present at the meeting personally or by proxy that one of the said persons so present whose name stands first on the

register of members of the Company in respect of such Shares shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof

In order to be valid the form of proxy duly completed and signed in accordance with the instructions printed thereon

together with the power of attorney or other authority if any under which it is signed or notarially certified copy

thereof must be delivered to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong at 10th Floor Block Wo Kee Hong

Building 585-609 Castle Peak Road Kwai Chung New Territories Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time

fixed for holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting as the case may be

Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude shareholders from attending and voting in person at the

meeting or any adjourned meeting or upon the poll concerned if they so wish In such event the instrument appointing

the proxy shall be deemed to be revoked

Pursuant to Rule 13.394 of the Listing Rules all resolutions set out in this notice will be decided by poll at the above

meeting

The Chinese version of the notice is for reference only Should there be any discrepancies the English version will

prevail
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0.6920 0.5900

0.6500 0.5800

0.6000 0.5200

0.6000 0.4850

0.5400 0.4200

0.4300 0.1750

0.2800 0.1200

0.2050 0.1420

0.6600 0.1650

0.2850 0.2020

0.2600 0.1680

0.2150 0.1500

0.2150 0.1950

ioooooooI

E4/ E1f/

iii 4000000 0.53 0.52

iiY-E 6000000 0.53 0.49
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Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take

no responsibility for the contents of this announcement make no representation as to its accuracy or

completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or

in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

Stock Code 720

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS
LIMITED Company will be held at Crystal Room 3rd Floor Panda Hotel Tsuen Wah Street

Tsuen Wan New Territories Hong Kong on Monday May 18 2009 at 1000 a.m or any adjournment

thereof for the purposes of considering and if thought fit passing with or without modification the

following resolutions

To receive and consider the audited consolidated accounts and the reports of directors and auditors

of the Company for the year ended December 31 2008

To re-elect the following persons as directors of the Company

Dr Richard Man Fai LEE

ii Mr Boon Seng TAN and

iii Ms Kam Har YUE and

To authorise the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration of the Directors

To authorise the Board of Directors to appoint auditors of the Company and to fix their

remuneration



As special business to consider and if thought fit passing with or without modification the

following resolutions as ordinary resolutions

THAT

subject to paragraph of this resolution the directors of the Company the Directors

be and are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised to exercise during the

Relevant Period as that term is defined below all the powers of the Company to allot

issue and deal with additional shares of the Company and to make or grant offers

agreements and options including warrants bonds and debentures notes and any

securities which carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible into ordinary shares

of the Company which would or might require the exercise of any of such powers

during or after the end of the Relevant Period

the aggregate nominal amount of the shares allotted issued or otherwise dealt with or

agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted issued or otherwise dealt with

whether pursuant to an option or otherwise by the Directors pursuant to the approval

in paragraph of this resolution other than pursuant to Rights Issue as that

term is defined below or ii an issue of ordinary shares of the Company upon the

exercise of rights of subscription or conversion under the terms of any warrants of the

company or any securities which are convertible into ordinary shares of the Company

or iii an issue of ordinary shares of the Company by way of script dividend pursuant

to the Bye-laws of the Company from time to time or iv the exercise of any option

granted under any option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being adopted

for the grant or issue to employees of the Company and/or its subsidiaries of options

to subscribe for or rights to acquire shares of the Company shall not in total exceed

20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue

as at the date of passing of this resolution

for the purpose of this resolution Relevant Period means the period from the passing

of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company

ii the revocation or variation of the authority given under this resolution by ordinary

resolution of the shareholders in general meeting or

iii the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the

Company is required by the Bye-laws of the Company or any applicable laws

to be held and

for the purpose of this resolution Rights Issue means an offer of shares for subscription

open for fixed period by the Company to holders of shares on the register of members

of the Company on fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of shares

-2-



subject to such exclusion or other arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary

or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions

or obligations under the laws of or the requirements of any recognised regulatory

body or any stock exchange in any territory outside Hong Kong

THAT

subject to paragraph of this resolution the directors of the Company be and are

hereby generally and unconditionally authorised to exercise during the Relevant Period

as that term is defined below all the powers of the Company to purchase its shares

in the capital of the Company subject to and in accordance with the applicable laws

and regulations of Bermuda Bye-laws of the Company and the requirements of the

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited as amended from time to time

the aggregate nominal amount of the shares which may be purchased pursuant to the

approval in paragraph above shall not in total exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal

amount of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of passing of this

resolution and

for the purpose of this resolution Relevant Period means the period from the passing

of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company

ii the revocation or variation of the authority given under this resolution by ordinary

resolution of the shareholders in general meeting or

iii the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the

Company is required by the Bye-laws of the Company or any applicable laws

to be held

THAT conditional upon the resolutions Number 4A and 4B contained in the notice

convening this meeting being approved the aggregate nominal amount of the shares in

the capital of the Company which are to be repurchased by the Company pursuant to and

in accordance with the resolution Number 4B shall be added to the aggregate nominal

amount of the share capital of the Company that may be allotted or agreed conditionally or

unconditionally to be allotted by the directors of the Company pursuant to and in accordance

with resolution Number 4A

By order of the Board

WO KEE HONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

Man Kit LI

Company Secretary

Hong Kong April 15 2009
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Registered office Principal office in Hong Kong

Canons Court 10th Floor Block

22 Victoria Street Wo Kee Hong Building

Hamilton HM12 585-609 Castle Peak Road

Bermuda Kwai Chung

New Territories

Hong Kong

Notes

shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting may appoint another person as his proxy to attend

and to vote in his stead shareholder who is the holder of two or more shares may appoint more than one proxy

to attend on the same occasion proxy need not be shareholder of the Company

Where there are joint registered holders of any Share any one of such persons may vote at the meeting either

personally or by proxy in respect of such Share as if he were solely entitled thereto but if more than one of such

joint holders are present at the meeting personally or by proxy that one of the said persons so present whose name

stands first on the register of members of the Company in respect of such Shares shall alone be entitled to vote in

respect thereof

In order to be valid the form of proxy duly completed and signed in accordance with the instructions printed thereon

together with the power of attorney or other authority if any under which it is signed or notarially certified copy

thereof must be delivered to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong at 10th Floor Block Wo Kee

Hong Building 585-609 Castle Peak Road Kwai Chung New Territories Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before

the time fixed for holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting as the case may be

Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude shareholders from attending and voting in person at

the meeting or any adjourned meeting or upon the poll concerned if they so wish In such event the instrument

appointing the proxy shall be deemed to be revoked

Pursuant to Rule 13.394 of the Listing Rules all resolutions set out in this notice will be decided by poll at the

above meeting

The Chinese version of the notice is for reference only Should there be any discrepancies the English version will

prevail

As at the date of this announcement the Board comprises of Dr Richard Man Fai LEE Mr Jeff Man

Bun LEE Mr Tik Tung WONG and Mr Waison Chit Sing HUI all of whom are Executive Directors

Ms Kam Har YUE who is Non-executive Directoi Mr Boon Seng TAN Mr Raymond Cho Mm LEE

and Mr Ying Kwan CHEUNG all of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors

for identfl cation purpose only
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FORM3A

DIRECTORS/CHIEF EXECUTIVES NOTICE INTERESTS IN SHARES OF LISTED CORPORATION

Notice pursuant to 347 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance Cap 571

Form for use by director or chief executive directory giving an Initial Notification or notice of

Acquiring an interest in shares or short position in shares of listed
corporation of which he is director

ii Changes in the nature of his interest in such shares and

ii2 Ceasing to have an interest in such shares complete Boxes to 16 and 24 only

This Form must be completed in accordance with the directions and instructions in the Notes to Form 3A

Name of listed corporation

Wo Kee Hong Holdings Limited

Stock code 720 Number of issued shares in class

Class of shares Ordinary 294027710

Name of Director English as printed on HKID/Passport

LEE Man Fai

Surname Other names

Name of Director Chinese

HklDlPassport No Country of issue of Passport

01973291

Chinese Character Code

262124296540

Address of Director

17th Floor Flat Al Block Villa Monte Rosa 41A Stubbs Road Hong Kong

10 Daytime tel No

25144880

II e-mail address

12 Date of relevant event

31 12 2008

day month year

relevant eve ntl interest in the shares if later

13 01 2009

day month year

Lu

RL-26-13-Ol.09



14 Details of relevant event

Short position

interest in share options

15 Total shares In listed corporation Immediately before

the relevant event

16 Total shares in listed corporation immediately after

the relevant event

interest in shares

interest in share options

18 Further information in respect of derivative interests in listed corporation

please see the continuation sheet

Relevant event

code describing

circumstances

see Table

136Long position

Code describing capacity in which

shares were/are held

Table

Before relevant After relevant

event event

Number of

shares

bought/sold or

involved

Currency of

transaction

204

On Ei

120000

Off Exchange

Highest price per Average price

share per share

Average

consideration

per share

Consideration

Code

see Table

Total number of shares Percentage figure

Long position 119724009 40.7
Short position

17 Capacity in which interests disclosed in Box 16 are held

required for Initial Notification only

Code describing capacity

see Table

Number of shares

Long position Short position

201 264000

201 2779725

210 116560284

Total number of shares
Percentage figure

Long position 119604009 40.67

Short position

interest in share options 264000 0.09%

Long positions

Code describing

derivatives

see Table

Exercise period

dd/mm/yy
Consideration if derivatives granted by listed corporation

Number of shares

Begins Ends Price for grant Exercise price Price on assignment

RL-26-13-01.09



Short positions

19 Further information in relation to interests of children under 18 andlor spouse

Number of sharesName of child/spouse Address

Long position Short position

20 Further information in relation to interests of corporations controlled by Director

Name of corporation Address and place of incorporation
Name of controlling tO
shareholder control

Direct

interest

YIN

Number of shares

Long position Short position

RL-26- 13-01.09



21 Further information In relation to interests held by Dir jjointly with another person

Name of joint shareholder Address

Long position

Number of shares

Short position

22 Further Information from director who is trustee or beneficiary of trust or person who has set up Discretionary Trust

Name of Trust IStatus CodeAddress

ksee Table

Number of shares

Long position Short
Modern Orbit Limited P.O Box 3340 Road Town Tortola British Virgin Islands

position

The WS Lee Unit Trust
502 116560284

Names of other parties Address

23 Further information from party to an agreement under Section 317 Please see Notes for further information required

Total number of shares in which substantial shareholder is interested under section 317 and 318

Number of shares

24 Date of filing this Form 3A
13

Form 3A

01 2009

day month year

25 Number of continuation sheets

26 Number of attachments

RL-26- 13-01.09



Continuation Sheet

18 Further information in respect of derivative interests in listed corporation

Code describing

denvatives see
Table

Exercise period ddlmmlyyyy Consideration paid for derivatives granted by listed corporation

Number of shares@
Begins Ends Price for grant Exercise price@ Price on assignment

Long positions 409 11/06/2007 10I06/2O1
HK$O.8333 26400O

Short positions

Notes

AA Share options granted to my spouse are included

RL-26- 13-01.09



Wo Kee Hong Holdings Limited

Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

the Company

Minutes of Meeting of Executive Directors Committee of the Company held at 10/F

Block Wo Kee Hong Building 585-609 Castle Peak Road Kwai Chung New Territories

Hong Kong on 30 December 2008

Present Mr Richard Man Fai LEE

Mr Jeff Man Bun LEE

Mr Tik Tung WON

Mr Waison Chit Sing HUI

Chairman

Mr Richard Man Fai LEE took the chair of the Meeting

Quorum

The necessary quorum for the Meeting was present

Expiry of Share Options

It was noted that pursuant to the Clause 7b of the 2002 Share Option Schemes

adopted by the Company on 30 May 2002 the 2002 Scheme the Options should

lapse automatically on the expiry of the period of three months following the date

the Grantee ceased to be the employee of the Company or its relevant Subsidiaries

It was reported that the employee listed on the Appendix had ceased to be the

employee of the Company or its relevant Subsidiaries as at 30 September 2008

It was resolved that the Options granted to the employee listed on the Appendix be

lapsed pursuant to Clause 7b of the 2002 Scheme

Termination

There being no further business the Chairman declared the Meeting closed



Appendix

Share Options Lapsed under the 2002 Share Option Scheme due to Termination of

Employment of Grantee on or before 30 September 2008

Lee Chiu Sing Eddy 4/7/2008 60000

Total no of share options lapsed 420000

8/7/2008 360000
CHANG Hor Hing


